
 

 

    

 
Meeting 
 

Cabinet 
 

Date and Time 
 

Wednesday, 23rd October, 2019 at 9.30 am. 

Venue 
 

Walton Suite, Winchester Guildhall 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

PROCEDURAL ITEMS  

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given. 

 

2.   Membership of Cabinet bodies etc.  
 To give consideration to the approval of alternative arrangements for 

appointments to bodies set up by Cabinet or external bodies, or the 
making or terminating of such appointments. 
 

3.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in 

matters to be discussed. 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance 
with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

4.   To note any request from Councillors to make representations on an 
agenda item under Council Procedure Rule 35  

 Note: Councillors wishing to speak about a particular agenda item are 
requested to advise the Democratic Services Officer before the meeting.  
Councillors will normally be invited by the Chairman to speak during the 
appropriate item (after the Portfolio Holder’s introduction, questions from 
Cabinet Members and public participation). 

 

BUSINESS ITEMS  

5.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 September 2019 (Pages 5 - 
14) 
 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   Public Participation  
 – to note the names of members of the public wishing to speak on general 

matters affecting the District or on agenda items (in the case of the latter, 
representations will normally be received at the time of the agenda item, after 
the Portfolio Holder’s introduction and any questions from Cabinet Members). 
 

7.   Leader and Cabinet Members' Announcements  
 

 

8.   Draft Council Plan 2020-25 (Pages 15 - 28) 

 Key Decision (CAB3195) 

9.   Outcome Based Budget Challenge (Pages 29 - 54) 

 Key Decision (CAB3178) 

10.   Station Approach - Purchaser Selection Process (Pages 55 - 84) 

 Key Decision (CAB3197) 

11.   River Park Leisure Centre - Future Use of Site (Pages 85 - 120) 

 Key Decision (CAB3190) 

12.   Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Spending Programme (Pages 121 - 
148) 

 Key Decision (CAB3194) 

13.   Adoption of Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators (Pages 149 - 
180) 

  (CAB3200) 

14.   To note the future items for consideration by Cabinet as shown on the 
November 2019 Forward Plan. (Pages 181 - 184) 

   

Lisa Kirkman 
Strategic Director: Resources and Monitoring Officer 

 
Members of the public are able to easily access all of the papers 
for this meeting by opening the QR Code reader on your phone 
or tablet. Hold your device over the QR Code below so that it's 
clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected to the 
agenda pack. 

 
15 October 2019 
 
Agenda Contact: Nancy Graham, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 235, Email: ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 



*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are 
available on the Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 
 
CABINET – Membership 2019/20 
 
Chairperson: Councillor Thompson (Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Communications) 
Councillor Cutler (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Risk) 
 
Councillor - Cabinet Member 
Learney - Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset Management 
Murphy - Cabinet Member for Environment 
Porter - Cabinet Member for Built Environment and Wellbeing 
Prince - Cabinet Member for Sport, Leisure and Communities 
Tod - Cabinet Member for Service Quality and Transformation 
Weir - Cabinet Member for Local Economy 
 
Quorum = 3 Members 
 
Corporate Priorities: 
As Cabinet is responsible for most operational decisions of the Council, its work 
embraces virtually all elements of the Council Strategy. 
 
Public Participation 
Public Participation is at the Chairperson’s discretion.  If your question relates to an 
item on the agenda, you will normally be asked to speak at the time of the relevant 
item.  Representations will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes, subject to a 
maximum 15 minutes set aside for all questions and answers.  If several people wish 
to speak on the same subject, the Chairperson may ask for one person to speak on 
everyone's behalf.  As time is limited, a "first come first served" basis will be 
operated.  
 
To reserve your place to speak, you are asked to arrive no later than 10 minutes 
before the start of the meeting to register your intention to speak.  Please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer in advance for further details. 
 
Filming and Broadcast Notification 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 
 
Disabled Access: 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 
 
Terms Of ReferenceIncluded within the Council’s Constitution (Part 3, Section 2) 
which is available here 

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

CABINET 
 

Wednesday, 18 September 2019 
 

Attendance:  
 

Councillor Thompson 
(Chairperson) 

 Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Communications and Transformation 

Councillor Cutler (Vice-Chair)  Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Risk 

Councillor Learney  Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset 
Management 

Councillor Murphy  Cabinet Member for Environment 
Councillor Porter  Cabinet Member for Built Environment and 

Wellbeing 
Councillor Prince  Cabinet Member for Sport, Leisure and 

Communities 
Councillor Weir  Cabinet Member for Local Economy 

 
 
Others in attendance who addressed the meeting: 
 
Councillors Brook and Horrill 
Monica Gill (TACT) 
 
Others in attendance who did not address the meeting: 
 
Councillors Clementson and Evans 
David Chafe (TACT) 
 

 
1.    DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 
Councillor Porter declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest in relation to 
various items on the agenda, due to her role as County Councillor. 
 

2.    MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held 28 August 2019 be 
approved and adopted. 

 
3.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
Two members of the public spoke under general public participation as 
summarised below.  In addition, Ian Tait spoke regarding Report CAB3160 and 
CAB3184 and his comments are summarised under the relevant minutes below. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

Teresa Skelton welcomed the record of her comments made at the previous 
Cabinet meeting on 28 August as contained in the minutes thereon.  She asked 
three questions: 

 Were there proposals for a liaison officer between the City Council and 
the Police? 

 The Council’s views on the arrest of 11 Hampshire police officers for a 
variety of offences? 

 Was the Council aware that local people’s medical records had been 
unlawfully accessed by authorities, including the Police (resulting on one 
occasion of damages payable by Southern Health Trust)? 

 
Mark Rowe spoke as Chairman of the local English Democrats and a Council 
tenant and asked the following: 

 The Council’s views on the introduction of Universal Credit and in 
particular the potential for a large gap between payments ceasing under 
the old scheme and restarting; 

 The Council’s views on the ongoing drug and alcohol problems in the city 
centre. 

 
 

4.    LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The following announcements were made: 

 The opportunity for questions from the public at full Council meetings 
would be introduced at the Council meeting on 25 September 2019.  In 
addition, the meeting would be audio recorded.  

 The interactive budget simulator (launched on 4 September) was 
available on the Council’s website until 29 September 2019.   

 
5.    STATION APPROACH - SITE DISPOSAL PROCESS  
 (CAB3188) 

 
Councillor Weir introduced the report and reminded Members that at the Cabinet 
meeting on 28 August 2019 it had been agreed to dispose of the Carfax site to a 
selected purchaser, subject to the award of an outline planning consent.  Outline 
planning consent was subsequently granted at Planning Committee on 12 
September 2019. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillor Horrill addressed Cabinet in support of 
the project, as she had at the previous Cabinet meeting and Planning 
Committee.  It was her view that Station Approach presented a significant 
opportunity to boost to the local economy (estimated at approximately £80m) 
and also opportunities for improving the public realm in the area.  She also 
welcomed the opportunity to participate in the evaluation process as detailed at 
Paragraph 11.10 of the report.  In summary, she raised the following points: 

 Regarding timing, could the proposal for the purchaser selection to be 
made in March 2020 be brought forward, particularly to avoid further 
pressure on securing the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) monies by 
March 2021? 

 In their report, JLL indicated that there was a potential for broader interest 
in the site than from the local area and she therefore sought assurances 

Page 6



 

 
 

that the Council was taking adequate measures to access this wider 
market. 

 What triggers were written into the process to take account of significant 
uncertainties, such as the impact of Brexit? 

 
One Cabinet Member proposed that the requirements on a prospective 
purchaser to prove a demonstrable commitment to sustainability/carbon-neutral 
best practice be prioritised.  The Council’s legal advisor, Steven Matthew 
(BrowneJacobson) confirmed this was acceptable and was to be welcomed as 
offering further clarity to the market.  In addition, Members requested that 
bidders have the opportunity to respond to the comments from the Regional 
Design Panel.  Cabinet agreed to an amendment to recommendation 1 of the 
report to take account of both points (as set out in amended Resolution 1 below). 
 
Members commented at that the recent meeting of the Station Approach Open 
Forum on 16 September 2019, some issues had been raised over the next steps 
of the process.  The selection of the purchaser to develop the scheme was 
recognised as crucial to the process and Cabinet wished to be as transparent as 
possible in making this decision.  Therefore, Members requested that a further 
report be submitted to a future Cabinet on the assessment process for the 
prospective purchaser(s).  The report’s recommendations were further amended 
accordingly, as set out below. 
 
With regard to paragraph 11.10, Cabinet agreed that the Members included in 
the group to whom potential purchasers could make a presentation be expanded 
to include one Ward Councillor and also a Cabinet Member.  It was clarified that 
only one Ward Councillor would be nominated (even though the proposed 
development fell within two wards). 
  
With regard to comments made by Councillor Horrill, Cabinet were mindful of the 
potential impact and risks from the current Brexit uncertainties. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the arrangements detailed in this report for the 
marketing and Purchaser selection process for disposal of the Carfax site 
be approved, but that further emphasis be given to matters of 
sustainability, and that bidders respond to the comments of the Regional 
Design Panel. 

 
2. That the Strategic Director – Place be authorised to finalise 

and undertake the marketing in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Local Economy, based on the disposal methodology set out in this report.  

 
3. That  a further report be brought to Cabinet setting out the 

detailed purchaser selection process based on the disposal methodology 
in this report 

 

Page 7



 

 
 

4. That the Strategic Director – Place be required to bring a 
report to Cabinet for a decision on the disposal of the site to a purchaser 
once the marketing and selection process has been completed. 

 
6.    ESTABLISHING THE WINCHESTER HOUSING COMPANY  
 (CAB3160) 

 
Councillor Learney introduced the report in support of the proposals to establish 
the Housing Company.  
 
Ian Tait spoke during public participation and in summary, whilst generally 
welcoming the proposals, raised the following points: 

 queried how many dwellings would be delivered each year and the likely 
tenure split.   

 believed that the likely level of sub-market rents would remain 
unaffordable for many potential tenants. 

 queried the availability of suitable land for new dwellings; 

 raised that the profit figures quoted in the report were unrealistic. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillor Horrill addressed Cabinet in general 
support for the proposals.  She raised a number of points as summarised below: 

 raised queries regarding the proposed governance arrangements, 
including whether it was appropriate for the Housing New Build Panel to 
include a Director who was also a Board Member. 

 A review of the success of the Housing Company should be undertaken in 
12-18 months. 

 Disappointment at the recommendation to reduce the Partnered Home 
Purchase (PHP) budget by £1.2m at this stage.  A reassessment should 
have been undertaken following the district review of housing delivery. 

 
In response to comments made, Councillor Learney emphasised that the 
Housing Company was intended to enable the Council to develop other types of 
housing tenure it was not currently able to under the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA).  It would operate as an ethical landlord and she believed it was 
appropriate to have housing officers on the Board due to the necessary 
commitment to deliver housing required.  
 
Councillor Learney stated that the PHP funding would be reconsidered as part of 
the 2020/21 Council budget.  The Strategic Director: Services (Interim) advised 
that the report’s proposals to reduce the PHP budget would still enable the pilot 
scheme to be completed and the scheme would then be reviewed. 
 
The Strategic Director: Services (Interim) explained that the predicted profit 
figures contained in the appendix were an example and not a proposal for a 
specific development.  It was anticipated that approximately 50 dwellings could 
be provided with the initial investment level. 
 
The Service Lead – Legal advised that it was not inappropriate for a Council 
Strategic Director to also be appointed as a Director of the Housing Company.  

 

Page 8



 

 
 

Councillor Learney agreed to the proposal to review the operation of the Housing 
Company in 12-18 months time. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the appointment of three senior officers to the Board of 
Directors be approved: 
a)  Strategic Director – Place 
b)  Corporate Head of Housing 
c)  Housing Finance & Resources Manager. 

 
2. That the approval process for housing company 

development opportunities be approved; with authority to agree Terms of 
Reference for the Housing New Build Panel delegated to the Corporate 
Head of Housing in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing and 
Asset Management. This proposal was considered and supported by the 
Business and Housing Policy Committee on 18 June 2019. 

 
3. That the £10 million General Fund expenditure be approved 

on the basis of a 25:75 equity/loan split, to be drawn down as the housing 
company requires the funds, and to be funded by capital receipts and 
prudential borrowing proportionally within each tranche. 

 
4. That the Partnered Home Purchase budget be reduced by 

£1.2m in order to finance the equity purchase, noting that the Council 
may increase this budget in the future subject to future capital receipts. 
 

RECOMMENDED: 
 
           5.         THAT COUNCIL GIVES PERMISSION TO ESTABLISH 
A COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES AND WHOLLY OWNED BY THE 
COUNCIL TO DELIVER AND MANAGE UNITS FOR SUB-MARKET 
RENT, SHARED OWNERSHIP ACCOMMODATION AND UNITS FOR 
OUTRIGHT SALE. 
 
           6.        THAT THE COUNCIL APPROVES THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE HOUSING COMPANY SCRUTINY 
PANEL AND NOMINATES THREE MEMBERS TO SIT ON THE 
PANEL. 

 
7.    LOCAL PLAN 2036 CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT PROCESS  
 (CAB3191) 

 
Councillor Porter introduced the report and noted that its proposals had been 
supported by the Winchester Town Forum at its meeting on 11 September 2019. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillor Brook addressed Cabinet and in 
summary, raised the following points: 

Page 9



 

 
 

 Disagreement that £50,000 was to be allocated from the General Fund 
Local Plan budget to assist the Town Forum in updating the Vision for 
Winchester.  She believed this was inappropriate as the Vision would not 
be relevant to the wider District.  In addition, she questioned why a 
separate vision was required for the Winchester town area. 

 Lack of consultation to date with parish councils – the focus instead 
appeared to be on the town area through the Winchester Town Forum; 

 She considered that rural parts of the District were being ignored. 
 
In response, Councillor Porter stated that parish councils would be fully involved 
at an appropriate time in the Local Plan process, based on evidence then 
available.  Cabinet Members also commented that the Vision for Winchester 
document was of significance to a wide range of current Council major projects 
(such as the Station Approach development and proposals for Central 
Winchester regeneration) which did impact on the wider district and the Council’s 
future finances more generally.  Members also highlighted that funds had 
previously been allocated towards Parish Neighbourhood Plans, such as the 
Denmead Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the views of Winchester Town Forum in respect of 

development of a Vision for Winchester and its subsequent role in 

informing policies to achieve appropriate development in the Forum area 

be considered. 

 

2. That the engagement model for the emerging local plan be 

agreed, as set out in the report.  

 
3. That £50,000 be allocated from existing General Fund Local 

Plan budget to assist the Town Forum to prepare an update of the Vision 

for Winchester. 

 
Councillor Porter left the meeting after this item (10.45am). 
 

8.    PREVENTING HOMELESSNESS & ROUGH SLEEPING STRATEGY  
 (CAB3184) 

 
Councillor Learney introduced the report which proposed a refresh to the existing 
Strategy allowing the Council to continue offering a gold standard service.  There 
remained a commitment to not using bed and breakfast accommodation and to 
end rough sleeping by 2023.  She emphasised the ongoing importance of close 
partnership working with various agencies in achieving these aims. 
 
Ian Tait spoke during public participation and in summary, raised the issue that it 
was sometimes difficult to differentiate between those who were homeless and 

Page 10



 

 
 

others who might be begging on the street due to their chaotic lifestyle and other 
dependency issues (whilst acknowledging all groups required help and 
assistance).  However, he generally welcomed the report’s proposals. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillor Horrill spoke in support of the report 
and congratulated the work of the Housing Team.   She encouraged Officers to 
remain ahead of new statutory duties in order to maintain its gold standard 
service.  She agreed that partnership working was vitally important and it was 
essential that the Council took a lead.  Ensuring the sufficient supply of adequate 
accommodation to avoid the having to house people in bed and breakfast 
accommodation should remain at the heart of the Strategy. 
 
In response to the points raised by Mr Tait, the Strategic Director: Services 
(Interim) confirmed that Council were aware of the majority of the individuals 
causing concerns. Officers were members of a cross organisation group which 
had been established to ascertain how these individuals could best be supported 
by the various agencies involved. 
 
With regard to Mr Tait’s comments regarding begging, Councillor Learney noted 
that the Diverted Giving Scheme would be relaunched.  She welcomed the 
support of Councillor Horrill and agreed that adopting a “housing first” approach 
should continue. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Preventing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
2019 – 2024 be approved and formally adopted.  

 
9.    FORMER POLICE STATION TWYFORD - APPROVAL OF TENDER TO 

CONSTRUCT COUNCIL HOMES  
 (CAB3189) 

 
At the invitation of the Leader, representatives of TACT (Monica Gill and David 
Chafe) were invited to the table for consideration of this item. 
 
Councillor Learney introduced the report and advised that, if approved, 
construction would start straight away with an expected completion date of 
December 2020. 
 
Mrs Gill (TACT) welcomed the provision of new homes, particularly outside of 
Winchester. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillor Horrill also expressed support for the 
proposal to build two new homes in a rural location. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
report. 
 

Page 11



 

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Corporate Head of Housing be authorised to award 
and to enter into a build contract with Whitman Builders to construct 2 
new properties at Dolphin Hill, Twyford for the sum of £441,635. 

 
2. That the additional scheme cost of £167,611to be funded by 

right to buy 1-4-1 receipts be approved bringing the total budget to 
£599,611 
 

3. That, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rule 7.4, total 
capital expenditure of £599,611 as set out in Appendix 1 be approved. 
 

4. That the Corporate Head of Asset Management be 
authorised to negotiate and agree terms and to enter into easements, 
wayleaves and related agreements with utility suppliers, telecom/media 
providers and neighbours in order to facilitate the development. 

 
10.    QUARTER 1 FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 (CAB3183) 

 
The Leader noted that the content of the report had been considered at the 
Scrutiny Committee on 9 September 2019 (report SC011 refers) where a 
number of points were raised, as detailed in paragraph 6.3 of the report.   
Cabinet Members provided the following responses to a number of the points 
raised by Scrutiny Committee: 

 A review of the Guildhall business had been completed  Plans for 
converting the existing café into a stand alone facility had been drawn up 
and the unit was being marketed.  Depending on the outcome of this, a 
further report to Cabinet would be required. 

 Negotiations were continuing with the GP practice finalising the lease 
arrangements for the new surgery. 

 The first Central Winchester Regeneration Open Forum would take place 
on 24 September 2019 where an update on the project as a whole would 
be provided.   

 A stakeholder event on the future use of the River Park Leisure Centre 
(RPLC) site had taken place in March 2019 and the Winchester Town 
Forum was leading work on improvements to the North Walls green 
spaces, including a replacement pavilion.  All kerbside glass collection 
boxes should now have been delivered and residents were asked to 
contact the Council if their box had not arrived.  The new collection 
calendars and letters would shortly be posted out to all residents and 
additional staff would be placed in the Council’s call centre to deal with 
the anticipated increase in customer calls. 

 The new Leisure Centre project was progressing within budget. 

 The structure of the quarterly report and possibility of providing 
comparisons with previous years’ quarters would be considered. 

 With regard to the EU LEADER funding, no alternative was currently 
available.  

 Councillors Cutler and Porter were meeting with the Chief Executive to 
discuss staffing matters . 

Page 12



 

 
 

 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out above and outlined in the 
report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the progress achieved during the first quarter of 2019/20 be 
noted and the contents of the report be endorsed. 

 
11.    RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 2019  
 (CAB3176) 

 
Councillor Cutler introduced the report. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons outlined in the report. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Risk Management Policy for 2019, its Risk Appetite 
Statement for 2019/20 and the Corporate Risk Register be approved. 

 
12.    FUTURE ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the list of future items, as set out in the Forward Plan for 
October 2019, be noted. 

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 9.30 am and concluded at 11.15 am 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

CAB3195 
CABINET 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: DRAFT COUNCIL PLAN 2020 - 2025 
 
23 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL. CLLR LUCILLE THOMPSON 

Contact Officer:  Lisa Kirkman, Strategic Director of Resources 

Tel No: 01962 848 501 Email LKirkman@winchester.gov.uk   

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The current Council Plan 2017-20 was adopted by Council on 16 January 2019 and 
runs until 31 March 2020.   

There have been some significant changes at the Council since this time including a 
change in administration following the local elections in May and the declaration of a 
Climate Emergency in June. 

The Council Plan 2020-25 sets out the Council’s key ambitions for the coming five 
years and focusses on five priority outcomes. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That Cabinet approves the draft Council Plan 2020-25 for consultation with 

stakeholders, residents and businesses until the 29 November 2019. 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

mailto:LKirkman@winchester.gov.uk


  CAB3195 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 This report sets out the proposed new Council Plan which details the activities 
that the Council will undertake over the next five years to deliver the five 
priority outcomes included in the new Council Plan 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 None directly in this report.  The activities in the Plan, along with the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy will guide how the Council’s financial resources will 
be allocated and utilised in the future.  Proposals for budget growth will be 
brought forward for approval as required.  

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 No legal implications arise directly from the attached Plan, though individual 
projects and actions will be subject to review as required by Legal Services. 
The Localism Act 2011also introduced legally binding duties and other legal 
implications which will arise from decisions through implementation.  

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None directly arising from the report.  To deliver the aims and objectives in the 
Council Plan, resources will need to be assigned as required across the 
council. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None in the Plan, though asset management and investment is an important 
element of the Council’s activities   

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 Executive Leadership Board and senior managers have been consulted on 
the content of the draft Council Plan. All Cabinet members have contributed to 
the draft Council Plan. 

6.2 Once approved, the draft Council Plan will be published for consultation with 
residents, stakeholders and elected members until 29 November and will 
follow the timetable below: 

Date Milestone 

October – 29 November 2019 Five week consultation period for 
Draft Plan with stakeholders, residents, 
and businesses via a number of methods 
including the council’s on-line consultation 
tool, Parish Connect, City Voice and 

Page 16



  CAB3195 
 

 

 

Entrepreneur newsletter.  This will also be 
publicised on social media. 
 
The consultation will be advertised in 
reception and visitors encouraged to 
access the on-line consultation via the 
public computer terminals. 
 

27 November 2019 Scrutiny Committee - consideration of the 
draft Plan by Scrutiny Committee as part 
of wider consultation 

11 December 2019 Cabinet - approval of the Plan and 
recommendation to Council for adoption 

15 January 2020 Full Council - adoption of final version of 
the Plan 

 
6.3 A presentation giving an overview of the new Council Plan including the 

priority outcomes was given to members at the Business and Housing Policy 
Committee on 7 October 2019. 
 

6.4 At that meeting the following issues were raised and discussed: 
 

 Reference to the data source that supports the outcomes and priorities 
to be considered for inclusion in the Plan 

 Review the outcomes and priorities to ensure that they respond 
positively to the challenges that the Council is facing  

 The Council Plan needs to set out our vision for how Winchester will 
look in the future 

 A request for the priorities in the draft Plan to be costed and assurance 
that they are affordable 

 The Station Approach and Cattle Market projects to be included in the 
table of Council key projects 

 The future of River Park Leisure Centre (RPLC) is not just for 
Winchester but for the whole of the district 

 Concern that that five week consultation period is too short 

 Reference to council resources, including staff to be included in the 
Plan 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

Page 17



  CAB3195 
 

 

 

7.1 There are no direct environmental considerations included in this report, 
however tackling the Climate Emergency and reducing the carbon emissions 
across the district contribute to all the aims of the draft Council Plan.  

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None, although individual projects included in the draft Plan may be subject to 
an equality impact assessment if required. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Property - none   

Community Support Provide engagement 
opportunities especially 
through key projects 

Further opportunity to 
engage with our residents 
and community 

Timescales Quarterly monitoring of the 
measures included in the 
Plan by Scrutiny 
Committee and Cabinet 

 

Project capacity Project Team structure 
across the Council 
supports the delivery of 
the programmes and  
projects included in the 
Plan 

Ensuring that adequate 
resources are allocated to 
all new projects as part of 
the business justification 
case and before they 
commence.   

Financial / VfM The Council’s Risk 
Appetite as set out in the 
Risk Management Policy 
2018 defines the amount 
of financial risk the Council 
is willing to consider. 
All major projects have 
their own risk register 
which identifies among 
others financial risks and 
includes relevant actions 
to mitigate these risks. 

New revenue streams are 
proposed, as well as 
enhancing existing 
schemes to positively 
contribute to the Council’s 
financial position. 

Legal Each significant action or 
project will be subject to its 
own legal consideration in 
appropriate reports 

 

Innovation By exploring new ways of 
working, this increases the 
Council’s exposure to risk 

This Plan proposes some 
innovative proposals that 
will provide the Council 

Page 18



  CAB3195 
 

 

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

and alters its risk profile.  
This is mitigated by 
consideration of a robust 
business justification case 
before approval is given.  

with the opportunity to 
introduce new ideas and 
ways of working.  The risk 
of remaining the same is 
significant in that funding 
reductions are such that 
the Council would be 
unable to fund some of its 
core services 

Reputation The risk of delivering the 
Plan is mitigated through 
the monitoring of the 
outcome measures 
contained within the 
Strategy, and ensuring 
corrective action is taken. 
Not delivering on some of 
these items, especially 
some of the major projects 
will have a large financial 
risk to the Council through 
impacting on future 
revenue streams 

This Plan gives the 
opportunity for the Council 
to enhance its reputation 
through establishing a 
more targeted ambition for 
the district that is based on 
clear measures. Success 
against these key 
measures will enhance the 
Council’s reputation to 
move key programmes of 
work forward 

Other – none   

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 The Council Strategy 2017 – 20 was refreshed a year ago and formally 
adopted by Council on 16 January 2019.  The Strategy will cease on 31 
March 2020 and therefore needs to be updated.  

11.2 Much has changed since January when the Council Strategy was adopted 
and the new Council Plan provides the opportunity for the Administration to 
reshape activities and resources and align them to their outcomes. This 
document drives the allocation of the Council’s resources over the period until 
2025. 

11.3 The Plan (attached as Appendix 1) is a draft for consultation with a proposed 
final copy being presented to Cabinet on 11 December and adoption at 
Council on 15 January 2020. 

11.4 The plan is a high level document which will be backed up by an evidence 
base, a performance plan showing our outcome measures and service plans. 

11.5 The draft Council Plan sets out the main challenges the Council faces and the 
priority outcomes for the five year period together with the main delivery 
mechanisms for achieving them.  

Page 19



  CAB3195 
 

 

 

11.6 The climate emergency is an overarching priority and the targets to create a 
carbon neutral Council by 2024 and carbon neutral District by 2030 will be 
central to everything we do.  

11.7 The outcomes and what we want to achieve under each priority are: 

1. Tackling the climate emergency and creating a greener district 

What we want to achieve: 
 

 A carbon neutral Winchester City Council by 2024 

 A  carbon neutral Winchester District by 2030 

 Reduced levels of waste and increased recycling, exceeding national 

targets 

 An increase in the proportion of journeys taken by walking, cycling and 

public transport 

 

2. Homes for all 

What we want to achieve: 

 More young people and families working and living in the district. 

 All homes are energy efficient and affordable to run 

 The creation of communities not just homes 

 No-one sleeping rough except by choice 

 
3. Vibrant local economy 

What we want to achieve: 

 Increased opportunities for high-quality, well-paid employment across 

the district 

 New offices and workspace  located in areas with sustainable transport 

links or where they reduce the need to travel to work 

 More younger people choosing to live and work here 

 Businesses grasping opportunities for green growth 

 A compelling and competitive offer attracting visitors to our City, market 

towns and rural communities across the district  

 
4. Living well 

What we want to achieve: 

 A reduction in health inequalities 

Page 20



  CAB3195 
 

 

 

 Greater participation in physical and cultural activities 

 An increase in active travel  

 Services that work for all, but especially for residents who need more 

help to live well. 

 Attractive and well used green spaces with space for relaxation and 

play 

 
5. Your services, Your Voice 

What we want to achieve: 

 An open and transparent Council 

 Improving satisfaction for our services 

 Good value compared to other similar authorities 

 Continuous improvement in cost-effectiveness 

 High accessibility and usage 

 A balanced budget and stable Council finances 

 
11.8 Quarterly progress reports will be presented to Scrutiny Committee and 

Cabinet. 
 
 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 The Council could choose not to have a Council Plan or not refresh the 
current Council Strategy.  It is the Council Plan that sets out the key delivery 
programme for the Council and enables effective business planning and 
programme management for teams.  Not to have a Plan is not recommended 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

CAB3094 Council Strategy update 

Other Background Documents:- 

None. 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 Draft Council Plan 2020 -2025 

 
 

Page 21



  CAB3195 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



APPENDIX 1 

Draft Council Plan 2020-2025 

The challenges we face 
 

The Winchester District faces many challenges and this Plan sets out the core principles which 

underpin our work and respond to these challenges. 

The main challenges: 

 The Climate crisis and the need to reduce the Winchester District’s very high carbon 

footprint 

 Poor air quality in parts of the District 

 Inequality and its effects on mental health and physical wellbeing  

 Expensive housing 

 A population which is aging while younger people leave the district  

 Brexit and its impact on the economy 

 Shifting employment patterns and technological change  

 Poor provision of services such as public transport in the rural parts of the District 

 Maintaining high quality services while balancing the Council budget 

 

Your Council Plan 
 

This Council Plan is a high level document covering the period 2020 to 2025. It sets out what the 

Council wants to achieve and informs other strategies and plans including the Local Plan and 

individual team plans. 

The Climate emergency is the overarching priority for the council and will be at the heart of 

everything we do. 

Our priorities are: 

Tackling the Climate emergency and creating a greener district 

Homes for all 

Vibrant local economy 

Living well 

Your services. Your voice 
  

Page 23



APPENDIX 1 

 

Tackling the Climate emergency and creating a greener District  
 

The climate crisis is the biggest challenge all of us face in the coming years and decades. Winchester 

must play its part in tackling the crisis and hand our district to our children and grandchildren in a 

better state than it is now. 

What we want to achieve. 

  A carbon neutral Winchester City Council by 2024 

 A  carbon neutral Winchester District by 2030 

 Reduced levels of waste and increased recycling, exceeding national targets 

 An increase in the proportion of journeys taken by walking, cycling and public transport 

 

How will we achieve this? 

 Carbon neutrality to be made central to everything we do. 

 Have an adopted and up to date Local Plan with positive policies which promote low carbon 

development and transport while protecting our heritage and natural environment. 

 Take a lead with partners and residents to deliver the Carbon Neutrality Action Plan 

throughout the district. 

 Deliver the City of Winchester Movement Strategy and prioritise walking, cycling and public 

transport throughout the district 

 Safeguard our district’s extensive natural habitats and precious ecosystems by delivering the 

actions in our Biodiversity Action Plan.  

Page 24



APPENDIX 1 

Homes for all 
 

Housing in our district is expensive and young people and families are moving out because they can’t 

find suitable accommodation they can afford.   

Winchester District needs homes for all – homes that are affordable and built in the right areas for 

our changing communities.  

What we want to achieve. 

 More young people and families working and living in the district. 

 All homes are energy efficient and affordable to run 

 The creation of communities not just homes 

 No-one sleeping rough except by choice 

 

How will we achieve this? 

 The Council building significantly more homes, both traditional council homes and through 

the council housing company  

 Strengthen our local plan to ensure homes are built for all sectors of our society including 

young people 

 Use the new Winchester Housing Company to deliver a wide range of housing tenures to 

meet local needs 

 Provide support for our homeless and most vulnerable people 

 Be innovative in moving the energy efficiency of new and existing homes towards zero 

carbon  

 Work with developers to ensure that they provide affordable housing and homes at fair 

market value as part of new developments  

Page 25



APPENDIX 1 

Vibrant local economy 
 

Winchester district is home to a host of successful businesses and enterprises with high levels of 

employment in our urban and rural areas. In the face of tough competition, our high streets, town 

and business centres must attract new investment in low carbon offices, workspace and transport 

links.   

What we want to achieve.  

 Increased opportunities for high-quality, well-paid employment across the district 

 New offices and workspace  located in areas with sustainable transport links or where they 

reduce the need to travel to work 

 More younger people choosing to live and work here 

 Businesses grasping opportunities for green growth 

 A compelling and competitive offer attracting visitors to our City, market towns and rural 

communities across the district  

 

How will we achieve this?  

 Working with business, universities and colleges to position Winchester District as a centre 

for digital, creative, knowledge–intensive networks 

 Using Council assets to provide new work, housing and leisure opportunities   for younger 

people. 

 Strengthening the Winchester brand and investing in visitor services to promote our unique 

cultural, heritage and natural environment assets. 

 Supporting business in meeting the challenge of carbon neutrality  

 Securing support to replace LEADER funding and sustain business development in rural 

areas. 

 

 

  

Page 26



APPENDIX 1 

Living well 
 

We want all our residents to live healthy and fulfilled lives.  We recognise that our residents are 

living longer and want to ensure the district offers the right mix of facilities for all ages and abilities. 

What we want to achieve. 

 A reduction in health inequalities 

 Greater participation in physical and cultural activities 

 An increase in active travel  

 Services that work for all, but especially for residents who need more help to live well. 

 Attractive and well used green spaces with space for relaxation and play 

 

How will we achieve this? 

 Opening of the new Winchester Sport and Leisure Park to offer sustainable, accessible 

facilities for all to enjoy a wide range of activities  

 Supporting communities to extend the range of sports facilities across the District 

 Create safe cycleways and pathways to make it safer and more appealing for our residents 

to cycle and walk to their destination 

 Maintain and enhance the open spaces and parks that support good mental and physical 

health for residents of all ages 

  

Page 27



APPENDIX 1 

Your Services, Your Voice 
 

We want to have high quality, good value services that are continuously improving to address the 
changing needs and expectations of residents, tenants, visitors, businesses and non-profit 
organisations across our district – and are accessible to all, whatever their circumstances. 

We want our residents to have the opportunity to make their voice heard and be able to see and 
understand how the Council makes it decisions.  

What we want to achieve. 

 An open and transparent Council 

 Improved satisfaction for our services 

 Good value compared to other similar authorities 

 Continuous improvement in cost-effectiveness 

 High accessibility and usage 

 A balanced budget and stable Council finances 

How will we achieve this? 

 New processes that: 
o Involve the public and ward councillors earlier and more deeply in the design and 

decision-making process 
o Effectively respond to and use complaints and feedback to drive service 

improvement 
 New wider set of published measures designed to drive improved satisfaction and 

performance 
 More effective use of technology to make it simpler and easier to deal with the council and 

its delivery partners while reducing cost 
 Strong focus on accessibility standards to ensure our services are usable by all 
 Investing in our staff and making the most of their skills and talents 

 

 

Page 28



  
 

CAB3178 
CABINET 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: OUTCOME BASED BUDGET CHALLENGE 
 
23 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: CLLR NEIL CUTLER (PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
FOR FINANCE AND RISK)  

Contact Officer:  Richard Botham    Tel No: 01962 848421 Email 
rbotham@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The current four year central government settlement funding ends in 2019/20. A 
fundamental review of funding levels and distribution mechanisms was expected 
from 2020/21. A one year settlement has now been announced for 2020/21 with 
provisional estimates expected by the end of the year. 

This paper provides the basis for consultation on the options available to ensure a 
balanced budget over the four year medium term period to 2023/24. A budget 
simulator was launched in September, building on the recent residents’ survey, in 
order to encourage greater consultation with the public and understanding of priority 
service areas. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Cabinet: 

1. Consider the projected shortfalls on the General Fund in the medium term, the 

proposed options for addressing those shortfalls in order to determine in 

December which of the options should be included within the medium 

financial plan. 

 

2. Approve the creation of a Transition Reserve, utilising the projected 

underspend forecast for the current financial year. 

 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

3. Approve one-off revenue expenditure proposals for additional Local Plan 

resource at £160k to fund 2 x 2 year fixed term posts as set out in paragraph 

11.12 be approved. 

 
4. That the requirement to increase the charge for On Street Permits to £50 for 

first permits be phased over 3 years (£30 from April 2020, £40 from April 2021 

and £50 from April 2022).  

 

Page 30



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 The Council Strategy is the core strategic document, helping to guide and 
inform budget planning work and the options around delivery. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 As detailed in the main body of the report. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 Under section 151 if the Local Government Act 1972 a local authority as to 
make proper arrangements for the administration of its financial affairs. Under 
s28 of the Local Government Act 2003 a local authority has to review its 
budget calculations from time to time during the financial year and take 
appropriate action if there is any deterioration of its budget. 

3.2 The Council is also required to set a balanced budget, taking into account a 
range of factors, including consultation feedback and decisions must be taken 
in accordance with the Council’s duties in the Equality Act 2010. 

3.3 The budget setting consultation and approval process is separate from any 
individual decisions in relation, for example, to service delivery or project 
implementation. Any implications arising from budget options contained within 
this report will be dealt with in the individual business cases and committee 
papers relating to those specific decisions and Council will approve the final 
budget in February 2020. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None directly relating to this paper, which sets out the strategic budget 
planning direction. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 A key strand of the Council’s financial and treasury strategies is to maximise 
income from its assets and seek to manage risk by achieving a balanced 
portfolio of assets. Options considered during the budget planning process 
may therefore involve either the acquisition or disposal of assets, requiring a 
full business justification case.   

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 This paper is a key part of the budget consultation process. Views will be 
sought from local businesses, parish council’s, and local residents as part of 
this exercise. Responses will be considered and help to inform the final 
budget setting in February 2020. 

Page 31



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

6.2 In order to encourage participation from as many stakeholders as possible a 
budget simulator was released in September in order to give high level 
indications of how participants would balance the budget over the medium 
term. Whilst not a statistically valid survey the simulator gave the opportunity 
for participants to reduce or increase both resources and fees and charges 
with the requirement to deliver a balanced budget overall. The council 
received 115 responses with a number commenting how challenging it was to 
deliver a balanced budget within available resources.    

6.3 An overall theme running through the responses was a preference for 
increased income through council tax and fees and charges rather than a 
reduction in services.  

 95.8% of respondents supported an increase in car parking charges 

 92.5% of respondents supported increases on other fees and charges 

 91.7% of respondents supported increases in council tax 

6.4 Despite the very challenging task of delivering a balanced budget, 41.6% of 
respondents supported putting extra funding into a climate change response. 
Choosing to support this through either increased funding or reducing other 
services. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 Environmental considerations will be part of the business case supporting any 
budget proposals. 

7.2 Following the Climate Emergency Declaration in June 2019, the Council is 
preparing an action plan for consideration at the December Cabinet meeting.  
Many actions are already accounted for within the budget.  Whilst future 
actions will be subject to feasibility, it is proposed to establish a Climate 
Emergency Reserve.  This reserve will support programme delivery and 
feasibility work to ensure essential actions can be resourced. 

7.3 Detail of work to be supported by the reserve will be set out in the December 
Climate Emergency Action Plan report but will include additional provision for 
assessment and monitoring, engagement programmes and to ensure there is 
appropriate resource to deliver what will be an ambitious programme of 
actions. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 This document is part of the budget consultation process and equality impact 
assessments are considered alongside any relevant budget options. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required 

Page 32



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Significant reductions in 
government funding over 
the medium term. 
 
“Damping Funding” is not 
confirmed and may not 
form part of the spending 
review from 2021/22. 
 

Financial projections are 
shown over the medium 
term and the scenario 
planning highlights the 
potential sensitivities. 
 

Development of locally 
generated income streams 
with less reliance on 
government funding 

Councils service priorities 
are not reflected in the 
budget 

The use of Outcome 
Based Budgeting as a 
method of delivering the 
budget. 

Ensure the prioritisation of 
resources to best meet the 
outcomes of the authority 

Delays to or failure to 
deliver major capital 
schemes leaving future 
years forecast deficits 

Ensure robust business 
cases are taken forward 
and sufficient resources 
are available to deliver the 
projects. 
 
 

Consideration of a wide 
base of potential capital / 
investment schemes to 
enable a balanced risk 
portfolio and options for 
other schemes to be 
chosen should any 
schemes not progress 

An optimism bias over the 
capacity and capabilities 
of the organisation to 
deliver major projects with 
a positive financial 
contribution to the 
authority 

Ensure all major projects 
are considered in the 
wider context of the 
council’s financial position 
and MTFS. 
 
 
Effective project planning 
to ensure that sufficient 
resources and expertise is 
available to support all 
major projects at the 
outset. 
 

 

One-off resources such as 
earmarked reserves are 
fully utilised leaving no 
funding available for future 
plans 

Effective and transparent 
prioritisation of the use of 
reserves to ensure the 
council does not 
overcommit itself. 
 
A clear and robust plan for 
the delivery of savings, 
particularly if reserves are 
used to mitigate any short 
term budget shortfalls. 

Clear and transparent plans 
for the use of reserves 
ensures that effective 
prioritisation can take place 

Page 33



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

Background 

11.1 The current year is the fourth and final year of the current multi-year 
settlement. A fundamental review of local government funding is currently 
underway but the implementation has now been delayed by central 
government by one year until 2021/22. Details of a one year spending review 
settlement for 2020/21 have been announced, with further provisional detail 
expected in December. 

11.2 Along with other local authorities the council is anticipating a significant 
financial challenge over the medium term financial planning period to 2023/24. 
A number of key grants such as new homes bonus and business rates 
retention are forecast to reduce significantly over this period due to changes 
in the current funding system. 

11.3 Significant changes are expected to commence from 2021/22 with a strong 
risk of material reductions to current funding. 

I. Retained business rates, totalling £4.9m, is made up of: 

a) The ‘baseline funding level’ of £2.2m which is calculated based on 
the needs assessment of the authority. A fair funding review is 
currently underway in order to review and update the mechanisms for 
calculating and distributing this assessment of ‘need’. 

b) The ‘retained growth’ of £2.7m which is the share of business growth 
retained by the council since the current scheme was implemented in 
2013/14. Government have given strong indications that a ‘reset of 
growth’ will take place from 2021/22, which potentially places all of this 
funding at risk. 

Government have previously announced plans to move to a 75% retention 
system, up from the current 50% retention. There is still uncertainty around 
the mechanics of this; for example will the current tier splits change (currently 
40:9:1 between district:county:fire), will the current ‘levy’ of 50% change, and 
will the scheme be significantly simplified.  

II. New homes bonus, totalling over £2m, has rewarded growth in 
housing through a reward grant equivalent to the council tax of a band 
d property (split 80:20 district:county), originally over a period of six 
years and subsequently reduced to the current four year reward. 
Government have announced that the current scheme will end with no 
indications whether it will be replaced with a new reward scheme. If the 
current funding is distributed on the basis of ‘need’ then it is likely that 
the majority of this grant will be lost. This has been factored into future 
financial forecasts. 

Page 34



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

III. The Council ceased to receive Revenue Support Grant from 2019/20. 
The previously proposed negative grant of c£0.4m which was not 
implemented in 2019/20 is also forecast to remain unimplemented in 
2020/21 but final confirmation has not yet been received. Other smaller 
grants relating to Homelessness are expected to continue, and new 
burdens grants are expected to continue on a one-off basis to match 
the extra burdens placed on local authorities. 

11.4 These changes in local government funding from 2021/22 are expected to 
have a significant impact on authorities that have seen strong growth in 
housing and business, such as Winchester. This will also create a significant 
shift in the balance of funding, with council tax making up a much larger share 
of overall funding.  

11.5 The graphs below, produced by Pixel Financial Management, show the 
estimated significant shift towards council tax as the main source of funding 
(c50% in 2017/18 to c74% by 2025/26). There is also a disproportionate 
reduction in funding for Winchester, caused mainly be changes to new homes 
bonus and the business rates retention reset. 

 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

TOTAL GRANT FUNDING 3.527 2.522 2.742 3.262 2.721 2.332 1.389 0.447 0.447

TOTAL COUNCIL TAX 7.340 7.650 7.817 8.191 8.590 8.994 9.413 9.843 10.288

TOTAL RATES 4.068 4.246 4.882 5.025 3.002 2.980 3.013 3.036 3.096

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

£
m

 

Chart 1a - Sources of Funding 

TOTAL RATES TOTAL COUNCIL TAX TOTAL GRANT FUNDING

Page 35



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

 

 

11.6 Alongside funding pressures, the council has other cost pressures such as 
contractual inflation, rising costs for infrastructure schemes and other 
unavoidable financial pressures such as the national pay award. These are 
factored into the model with an assumed inflation level of 2% per annum over 
the medium term. 

11.7 The Hampshire Pension Fund is in the process of confirming the conclusions 
of its latest 2019 triennial review. The process of reviewing and updating 
assumptions such as investment returns and life expectancies as well as the 
overarching fund strategies will provide an updated employer contribution rate 
commencing April 2020. The current draft results show a significant fund 
improvement since the previous triennial review in 2016 which is expected to 
lead to reduced overall pension contributions for the three year period from 
2020 to 2023. The expected overall contribution reduction relates to past 
service pension contributions where the fund had previously forecast that it 
could not meet its future obligations without significant additional employer 
contributions. 

a) The current review will only provide certainty of contribution rates until 
2023 and is based on a number of assumptions which could be subject 
to change over the next three years, for example a significant fall in the 
value of equities or an increase in life expectancy. 

b) Bearing this in mind the forecasts in Appendix A are based on current 
contribution rates with the proposal that any savings over the next 
three years are transferred to earmarked reserves and used for one-off 
‘transition’ purposes rather than taken to baseline revenue projections.  

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0% Chart 1b - Forecast change in Total Resources (Local Versus 
National Change) 

National Winchester

Page 36



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

2019/20 Budget Forecast 

11.8 CAB3183 Q1 Finance and Performance Monitoring report highlighted a 
forecast underspend of just over £1m in 2019/20. The main causes of this 
underspend are operational and relate to additional income from car parking 
usage, planning fees, and net interest receivable. 

11.9 A number of the underspends were also identified in the 2018/19 outturn and 
are reflected in the forecasts in Appendix B. 

11.10 The 2019/20 forecast underspend will make available additional one-off 
resources which is proposed to be transferred to earmarked reserves for 
transitional purposes. 

A proposed “Transitional Reserve” 

11.11 As set out above, the Council is facing a significant amount of uncertainty in 
relation to future funding, the potential impact of “Brexit” and the need for 
additional investment as a result of the Climate Emergency declaration. 
Based on current projections, positive action is required to address medium 
term shortfalls and this is discussed further below.  Transferring existing 
underspends to a “Transitional Reserve” could help the preparations for 
addressing the shortfalls. 

11.12 In addition, there are a number of issues that require additional funding, many 
“one off” in nature, that could be supported from such a reserve, including: 

a) Climate Emergency -  to fund essential resources required to 
implement short term actions in the emerging Climate Action Plan, 
further detail of which will be reported to Cabinet in December 2019 
(£350-500k) 
 

b) Additional fixed term resource to support waste management and 
recycling campaigns and public engagement (£100k) 

 
c) Additional support required to keep the Local Plan project on track 

(£160k) 
 
d) Any unforeseen additional expenditure that may arise in the remainder 

of the current financial year. 
 

Unavoidable Budget Pressures 

11.13 A number of expenditure budget pressures have been identified over the 
medium term: 

a) Hampshire County Council has given notice of its intention to cease to 
participate in the Project Integra waste partnership from April 2021 and 
to amend the existing financial arrangements for the payment of 

Page 37



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

recycling credits and materials income, as well the introduction of 
charges for the handling of contaminated recyclate material.  
Discussions with the County Council regarding these changes are 
continuing but it must be assumed that there will be an additional cost 
to the City Council of circa £0.5m per annum commencing April 2021. 

b) The Waste and Recycling collection contract is currently under a tender 
process. There is a risk that the successful tender may be above the 
existing service cost, which will have an additional negative impact on 
the budget forecast.  A lower tender could obviously have a positive 
impact. 

c) The Council has a number of land holdings. There is a cost associated 
with holding land for regeneration, this cost usually relates to interest 
and a minimum revenue provision. 

d) Contractual inflation is applied to the majority of the council’s 
contracts on an annual basis. CPI inflation is currently running at 1.7% 
(August 2019) and a forecast of an additional £0.225m of expenditure 
has been applied for 2020/21, based on contractual expenditure of 
c£11m. 

e) Employee pay and pension costs are due to increase in 2020/21. 
Allowance has been made in the budget projections for an overall 
increase of £0.57m, which includes a forecast 2% inflationary salary 
uplift. 

Council Tax 

11.14 The Winchester district 2019/20 council tax charge of £138.92 (per band d 
equiv.) is below the average charge levied by district council’s across 
England. 

11.15 The spending review announced in September confirmed a referendum limit 
of up to 2% will apply for 2020/21. Details of the existing upper limit of an 
additional £5 (raising the limit to just over 3% for Winchester) have not yet 
been confirmed. 

11.16 Using the latest council tax base estimate for 2020/21 approximately £6.932m 
of district tax would be raised at the existing charge of £138.92. A three 
percent district increase (assuming an equivalent increase to the town 
precept) to £143.09 would generate an additional £0.208m of funding. 

% Increase 

Precept - 
Band D 

(£) 

Precept 
Income 

£000 
Increase    

£000 

0% 138.92 6,932 0 

1% 140.31 7,001 69 

2% 141.70 7,071 139 

3% 143.09 7,140 208 

Page 38



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

 

11.17 The current projections are based on a two percent increase in council tax for 
2020/21. This does not include the town precept which will consider its plans 
for recommendation in January 2020. 

 

Medium Term Financial Projections 

11.18 The following ‘central case’ estimates set the scene for the rolling outcome 
based budgeting process. The shaded area indicates a forecasting deviation 
of 25%. A marked increase in deficit is shown from 2021/22 and relates to 
government controlled funding reductions highlighted above. 

11.19 The below table and graph are a summary of the medium term financial 
projections in Appendix B. 

 

Medium Term Financial Projections - Surplus / (Deficit) £m 
   

 
ANNUAL TARGETS 

 
CUMULATIVE TARGETS  

 
20/21 21/22 23/24 24/25 

 
20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 

 
Net Surplus / 
(Deficit) -1.3  -2.0  -1.4  -1.8  

 
-1.3  -3.3  -4.7  -6.4   

 

 

 

  
 

-1.0

1.0

3.0

5.0

7.0

9.0

11.0

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29

Cost base reduction required for a balanced 
financial position (£m) 

Page 39



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

Car Parking Strategy 

11.20 Work is well underway on the car parking strategy which is due to be 
presented at December Cabinet. In light of the significant environmental and 
financial implications of the proposals included in the updated strategy a 
summary in 11.23 identifies the current emerging proposals in order to align 
these with this budget consultation paper. 

11.21 Whilst the strategy itself will explore the proposals and reasons in much 
greater detail, the context is very much around the climate change emergency 
action plan and what actions can be implemented in both the short to medium 
term in order to help to address this. 

11.22 Changes to car parking charges is one of the most significant ways of 
influencing behaviour, with a key focus on encouraging users to park outside 
of the central car parking area. The options presented in Appendix A  
represent the financial consequences of influencing this behaviour in order to 
reduce congestion and pollution in the centre of Winchester.  

11.23 Emerging proposals include: 

a) Sunday charging – Demand on Sundays is very high and all central car 
parks are at capacity which contributes to city centre congestion on 
Sundays.  Implementing charges to the main centre car parks but 
keeping “inner ring” parking and Park and Ride as free provision will 
encourage more use of Chesil, Tower St and Barfield Close. The full 
year effect of a £2 flat rate is estimated as a net increase in income of 
£278k.  Adopting standard weekday/Saturday charges in these car 
parks would generate an estimated £600k. 

b) Evening charging – Winchester remains one of the few Hampshire 
towns that provide free evening parking.  A £2 flat rate is projected to 
generate a net increase in income of £286k. 

c) Park and Ride Charging – Park and Ride charges are very low 
compared to other Hampshire and south east region schemes and 
have been kept low for many years, initially to promote use.  However, 
existing provision is now at capacity and does not cover existing 
operating costs.  An increase of 50p per day would generate an 
additional £186k annually, still be well below daily charges in city car 
parks and still be lower than other south east region schemes. 

d) Parking Discounts – Historic discounts are provided to businesses 
effectively subsidising parking for a small number of companies in the 
Cattlemarket and Worthy Lane car parks.  These facilities now operate 
at full capacity and it is proposed to remove these discounts.  This 
would generate an estimated £70k per annum. 

e) Park and ride discounts – Initial park and ride usage was fairly low 
particularly with the introduction of south park and ride. To encourage 

Page 40



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

usage discounts where offered for smart cards being 10% for everyone 
plus an additional 20% (30% total discount) to RHCH and the 
University of Winchester. As P&R is now up to almost full capacity it is 
considered there is no commercial reason to continue these discounts 
leading to potential legality issues (state aid) over the additional RHCH 
and UoW extra discounts. 

f) Market Town Charges – Market town charges are low and have not 
been reviewed for some years.  All day parking is cheap (less than £5) 
and this results in limited “churn” in many car parks.  Although this 
should be balanced with the need to support market town trading, a 
review of charging is proposed.  Additional income could range from 
£10k to £50k depending on the options chosen, the main focus of the 
review will be improving short stay access. 

g) Inflationary Increases – Some targeted increases to long stay charges 
were introduced three years ago to promote park and ride and to 
reduce use of central area car parks for all day parking.  However, 
other charges have not increased for many years, whilst operating 
costs continue to increase ahead of inflation.  Whilst very small annual 
increases could not be recommended, the Strategy will propose regular 
increases rounded to nearest 10p, say every two years. It is not 
recommended to further increase to revised all day charges to inner 
ring car parks.  However, all other charges need review and an 
increase to reflect inflation of 3% per annum over four years would 
achieve an estimated £400k of additional income. 

11.24 It should be noted that whilst an indication is given of the potential additional 
receipts that may be generated by the above options, there may well be 
additional costs that need to be taken into account, such as changes to 
technology/meters to facilitate differential charging for low emission vehicles, 
additional enforcement and the provision of additional park and ride buses if 
the operation of the service is extended to Sundays and evenings.   

11.25 On Street Charging – The Council is required to increase “on street” permit 
charges to £50 for first permits.  Some councils have determined to increase 
charges to £30 in 20/21, £40 in 21/22 and £50 in 22/23.  Other councils are 
increasing straight to £50, recognising the challenges of annual increases.  
The current service is under review but is subsidised by “off street” income.  
An increase to £50 is likely to remove the existing subsidy and result in the 
“on street” account becoming self funding.   

 

General Fees and Charges 

11.26 A part of the base budget projections detailed below, an assumed 3% 
increase in all fees and charges (except those where fee levels are controlled 
by statute.  A detailed review of all fees and charges is currently being 

Page 41



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

undertaken and further detail on this will be included in the detailed budget 
report in December 2019. 

11.27 In addition to provision for inflation, all charges have been subject to review 
and a number are proposed to increase above inflation for a number of 
reasons.  Full details will be included in the December budget report to 
Cabinet.  An example is the new proposed Planning Pre-App service which 
could generate an additional £140,000.  Proposed changes to parking 
charges are discussed later in the report. 

11.28 An option for the Council to help manage the additional costs imposed by the 
County Council’s unilateral changes in the waste management regime would 
be for the Council to amend the existing garden waste collection service by 
replacing the “free” service (paid for by Council Tax by every household 
regardless of whether they use it) with a separate service on a chargeable 
basis. 

11.29 The Council is permitted to charge for the collection of garden waste and most 
local authorities, including all other authorities in Hampshire apart from 
Fareham, already do so.  The introduction of an ‘opt in’ service based on the 
fortnightly collection of a 240litre bin would result in a substantial saving in the 
existing contract cost. Householders would be able to decide whether they 
wish to receive an improved service for a modest separate payment. In view 
of the unavoidable pressures on the waste collection budget this would be a 
reasonable step to consider. 

 

Outcome Based Budgeting Proposals for the medium term financial position 

11.30 The Council has adopted an “outcomes based budgeting” approach to the 
budget challenge. This approach seeks to align cost base reductions and 
service investment in line with the council strategy. The proposals included in 
Appendix A have been aligned to the council strategy wherever possible to try 
and enable those activities that deliver outcome measures in the strategy.  

11.31 The focus of the options is to cover the four year medium term period to 
2023/24. This is to ensure sufficient time to plan for the forecast savings 
requirements which step up significantly over the four year period.  

11.32 A key part of the planning process will be to ensure there are sufficient 
transition resources available in order to deal with the financial and 
environmental challenges faced by the authority. This means the budget 
planning is not looking to purely balance one financial year in isolation but is 
instead focused on the entire four year period. For example any additional 
savings achieved in year one (2020/21) will be used for transition purposes 
either to deliver the four year programme of savings or for high priority council 
strategy outcomes. 

 

Page 42



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

Baseline Projections 

11.33 A number of operational savings have been identified by officers as part of the 
Outcome Based budgeting process which do not have a direct impact on 
service levels and have been included within the projections below, including: 

a) Increases in income due to volumes and demand and such as parking, 
planning and legal fees and pitch bookings. 

b) Implementing new services such as the Planning “Pre-App” service 

c) Rent reviews and income generation in relation to a number of 
corporate assets. 

11.34 Despite presenting options to deliver savings of over £1.6m in 2020/21 and 
increasing to over £3m by 2023/24, it is clear that further cumulative savings 
in excess of £3m per annum are required by 2023/24. 

11.35 Asset Management plans are underway in order to achieve target savings of 
£1.2m by 2023/24. This additional income is forecast to be met from planned 
rent reviews and strategic decisions around existing Council assets. 

General Fund Revenue (£m) Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 

 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

 
  

   Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) -1.298  -3.334  -4.686  -6.449  

% of Gross Expenditure 4.2% 10.4% 14.4% 19.3% 

     Operational Savings Proposals 1.613 1.908 2.465 3.028 

Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) 0.314  -1.425  -2.221  -3.421  

 

Key Decisions / Budget Options 

11.36 As highlighted in the baseline projections above the financial challenge is at a 
level which cannot be met by operational changes alone. Appendix A  
provides a list of budget options which are considered to be key decisions and 
are expected to have a greater impact on either service delivery or a 
considerable change to how the council charges for services. 

General Fund Revenue (£m) Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 

 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

     Key Decision Proposals 1.007 2.021 2.401 2.636 

Less: 30% allowance for not taking all options -0.302  -0.606  -0.720  -0.791  

Transition Reserve -1.019  
   Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) 0.000  -0.011  -0.540  -1.576  

Page 43



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

 

11.37 The table below shows the breakdown of budget options by type, income is by 
far the largest heading and is in line with the budget simulator feedback in 6.3. 

11.38 Significant options need to be considered if over £3m is to be found to 
address the potential budget shortfall. In addition to the potential impact of 
decisions in relation to the Parking Strategy as highlighted in 11.21 above, 
this could include: 

a) Introducing a “charged for” Garden Waste service – Delivering the 
existing “free” service costs the Council in excess of £500k.  With the 
additional costs now being incurred as a result of the Hampshire Waste 
and Recycling changes as detailed in paragraph 11.13, charging for 
“green waste” collection would help to mitigate the impact of this 
change.  It would also mean only those residents who receive the 
service will pay for it, rather than all residents contributing as they do 
now, even if they don’t have a garden. 

b) A Major Transformation Programme – A review of management posts 
has taken place over the past two years and some further 
rationalisation of teams is proposed in the coming 12 months. With 
staffing being the most significant cost to the Council, a fundamental 
review of policies and service levels may be unavoidable.  As an 
example, reducing overall staff numbers by 20 as a result of a review of 
service levels could achieve up to £1m reduction in salary costs.  

c) Asset Review – As a landlord in charges of significant assets, the 
future of many operational assets may need to be considered with a 
view to either generating receipts and/or reducing overall operating 
costs. An example could be moving to an alternative office location 
creating the opportunity to redevelop the existing site. 

d) Increasing Council tax by 3% rather than the 2% included within the 
current projections would generate an additional £70k per annum. 

e) Reducing the provision of city centre public conveniences (there are 
three each within a few hundred yards of each other) and/or 
encouraging parish councils to take on responsibilities for 
conveniences in market towns could achieve significant savings.. 

f) A number of additional options are included in appendix 2, such as the 
future CCTV services, “all out elections”, withdrawing community 
transport etc.  An initial steer from cabinet members on how best to 
develop this list of options is needed to help prepare the November 
Cabinet budget report. 

Page 44



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

 

 

Growth/Investment Budget Options 

11.39 Whilst unavoidable growth has been included in the current financial 
projections, allowance has not yet been made for reprioritising resources in 
order meet the council strategy outcomes. 

11.40 The declaration of the Climate Emergency in June 2019 has committed the 
Council to prepare an Action Plan to set out how it will achieve ambitious 
targets for a carbon neutral council by 2024 and a carbon neutral district by 
2030.  This will no doubt require significant investment and will impact on all 
future decisions taken by the Council.  Whilst much of the long term 
investment will be reviewed against prudential code standards, some up front 
revenue investment will be required to support additional staff/resource needs 
in the short term and to fund feasibility work for many of the proposed actions. 

11.41 The Council is currently evaluating the tenders received for the provision of 
waste collection services from 2020.  It is not possible to disclose any figures 
at this time because this would prejudice that process but as soon as 
evaluation is complete a report will be produced for Cabinet to factor into 
budget considerations.  This will include commentary on whether it the 
introduction of a separate food waste collection service would be an 
affordable option.  

11.42 Parking Enforcement/technology – The Parking Strategy is expected to 
propose a significant increase in parking enforcement.  Initially, a minimum of 
three additional enforcement officers are required to address existing 
demand.  It is anticipated that this could be self financing through enforcement 
income, but this would need a strategic review as existing enforcement is 
delivered at a net cost.  If some/all of the options for parking charges set out 
in 11.23 above are adopted, additional resource would be required over and 
above this initial proposal. 

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000

Income

Expenditure

Support Services

Guildhall Trading A/C

Budget Options by Type (£000) 

Page 45



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

 
Managed Reserves 
 
11.43 The total of General Fund reserves 2019/20 opening balance stood at just 

over £28m (plus the non allocated general fund balance of £2.8m). 

11.44 Reserves are a key factor which underpin the Council’s ability to fund Asset 
Management Plans, the IT Strategy, Car Parking Strategy, and Service Plans. 
They are also critical to our ability to fund the transformation of services and 
ability to invest in order to generate the necessary savings to balance the 
budget over future years. 

11.45 In summary, reserves are used to support: 

(i) Funding of the Capital Programme 
(ii) Investment in transformation 
(iii) Providing one-off support for service budgets (such as the local 

plan) 
(iv) Community Infrastructure plans 
(v) Council Strategy Support 
(vi) Asset Management Plans, IT Strategy, Car Parking Strategy 
(vii) Winchester Town Account (notably major play area 

refurbishment and replacements) 
(viii) Short term budget deficits, if supported by a robust medium term 

savings plan 

 
11.46 It is important to appreciate that reserves are finite and their use must 

therefore be managed and prioritised effectively in order to ensure that 
resources are available to support expenditure requirements including those 
which are potentially urgent and unexpected. 

11.47 The Major Investment Reserve is the key revenue reserve used to support 
investment in major projects such as the new leisure centre, Central 
Winchester Regeneration, Station Approach, as well as other smaller projects. 
This is particularly crucial in the early stages of projects (such as consultation 
and feasibility studies), as these costs cannot usually be capitalised. Whilst 
the opening 2019/20 balance of £8.7m is deemed a healthy level, there are 
already significant commitments against this balance and therefore any future 
plans will require close scrutiny and prioritisation in order to ensure resources 
remain available to support new high priority projects. 

11.48 Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 the S151 officer is 
required to state in the budget report their view of the robustness of estimates 
for the coming year, the medium term financial strategy, and the adequacy of 
proposed reserves and balances. The Council is required to take this into 
account when making its budget and taxation decisions. 

11.49 It is proposed that a transition reserve is created to dampen the impact of 
funding reductions in the medium term financial strategy. As there are so 

Page 46



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

many uncertainties over the medium term position, e.g. the future of new 
homes bonus, business rates retention etc, strategically it is very difficult for 
the council to execute a plan for the very worse scenario and deliver this, if it 
does not occur. That could leave the council with declining services at a time 
when it would be crucial to maintain or even increase certain service levels. It 
is also important to recognise that some savings take a longer timeframe to 
deliver and so the ability to, in the short-term only, dampen the savings 
requirement can assist with long term financial stability.   

11.50 The following four high level categories of reserves are available as detailed 
below: 

a. Operational Reserves, significantly the Major Investment Reserve, are 
revenue reserves which can be used to support revenue or capital 
expenditure, for example major projects. 

b. Risk Reserves, such as the General Fund Balance, are available to mitigate 
risks faced by the council. The overall levels are reviewed each year in line 
with the medium term financial strategy. 

c. Asset Reserves, such as the Asset Management Reserve, are used to 
maintain existing council assets and are supported by spending plans such as 
the asset management plan. 

d. Restricted Reserves, such as the Community Infrastructure Levy, can only be 
used for restricted purposes and therefore must be considered separately to 
other reserves which can be used for wider purposes. 

11.51 The graph below shows that operational reserves will reduce significantly over 
the four year planning period. 

 

 
 

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24

'£
0

0
0

 

Reserves Forecast 

Operational Reserves

Risk Reserves

Asset Reserves

Restricted Reserves

Page 47



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

General Fund Capital 
 
11.52 The Council has an ambitious general fund capital programme totalling more 

than £120m over the next 10 years. Not all projects provide savings or 
generate income but, in aggregate, the capital programme is forecast to have 
a positive net benefit to the General Fund from 2024/25 (based on February 
2019 budget). There is an overall negative impact on the General Fund prior 
to this year which reflects significant spend on preliminaries and costs 
associated with major projects early in their lifecycle. Any delays to the 
programme can defer these early lifecycle costs but also defers future 
benefits. 

 

Capital Financing 

11.53 The main sources of finance for capital projects are as follows: 

 Capital receipts (from asset sales); 

 Capital grants and contributions (e.g. Disabled Facilities Grant, Local 
Enterprise Partnership, and Community Infrastructure Levy); 

 Earmarked Reserves (e.g. the Major Investment Reserve, the Property 
Reserve, the Car Parks Property Reserve, and the IMT Reserve); 

 Revenue contributions; and 

 Borrowing including internal (also known as the “Capital Financing 
Requirement”). 

11.54 Following approval of the Housing Company (CAB3160), the capital receipts 
reserve is fully committed and so any new projects will be reliant on funding 

Page 48



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

from external grants and contributions, earmarked reserves where 
appropriate, and prudential borrowing.  

11.55 Capital projects financed by prudential borrowing will incur an annual revenue 
cost over the life of the asset – a minimum revenue provision (principal 
repayment) and external interest/opportunity cost. Where a project does not 
provide additional income or savings in excess of the annual borrowing cost, it 
may be necessary for the Council to make further savings elsewhere. 

Capital receipts 

11.56 When a capital asset is sold the proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be 
spent on new assets or to reduce debt from prior year capital expenditure. 
The Council reviews the opportunity to realise additional capital receipts as 
part of its rolling asset challenge programme. In addition to the proposed sale 
of the Station Approach site, there is potential for a significant capital receipt 
from the sale of the old Bar End depot and from some smaller sites. If 
realised, this will increase the capital receipts reserve and can be used to fund 
capital projects as an alternative to borrowing and so reduce the annual 
revenue cost. 

Potential new projects and changes to existing projects 

11.57 With the reduced resources available to finance capital projects, careful 
consideration needs to be given to the impact of new emerging projects and 
changes to existing projects. Where possible, the Council will identify external 
funding sources and the potential for projects to generate income to defray 
the cost of borrowing and, in some cases, provide a surplus.  The following 
potential projects have a number of challenges as well as opportunities. 
Further exploratory work and engagement will take place in the coming 
months and, where appropriate, new projects will be included in the Capital 
Investment Strategy in February 2020. 

11.58 The Climate Emergency Action Plan will be presented to Cabinet in 
December and there is likely to be a number of near and medium term capital 
projects as a consequence. Some potential projects, such as green energy 
generation, have the potential to produce an income in excess of the 
associated cost of borrowing and thus provide a small surplus. Other projects 
will not be income generating and so alternative funding sources are being 
identified. Where these are not available, the Council will need to consider the 
use of prudential borrowing and its associated annual cost or the use of any 
future capital receipts from disposal of existing assets.  

11.59 The demolition of and provision of a temporary surface at Coventry House 
(the Vaultex site) is currently underway. There is an existing budget to 
provide a surface car park in the programme; however, in line with the 
emerging Movement Strategy, the potential for a multi storey facility is being 
considered and initial estimates indicate a cost of circa £3m. Potential 
external funding sources are being considered and any shortfall will need to 
be financed by prudential borrowing and will result in an annual borrowing 

Page 49



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

cost to the Council. There will be no immediate increase in overall car parking 
income to offset the increased cost of borrowing. Options for the generation of 
solar power on the site are also being considered and any net income 
generated would partially offset the borrowing cost. 

11.60 If the Council decides to introduce the collection of food waste it will be 
necessary to purchase caddies for each household. Work is underway to 
determine the total cost to the Council.  The estimated purchase and delivery 
cost is between £250,000 and £300,000 which equates to a borrowing cost of 
between £35,000 and £42,000 per annum over the 8 years waste contract. In 
addition, there will be a significant additional cost of both collection and 
disposal.  

11.61 There is potential to redevelop the former Goods Shed site at an estimated 
cost of up to £3m which would provide several business units. After borrowing 
costs, this could generate a surplus income of up to £50,000 per annum. The 
site also has the potential to be developed as housing. 

11.62 There is also potential to provide 3 small business units at Matley’s Yard at a 
cost of circa £0.5m which would provide additional income to the Council. 

11.63 Following discussions with Natural England with regards to ecological 
mitigation and additional complications from the Reservoir Act, the overall 
estimated cost of the Durngate Flood Alleviation scheme has increased to 
£1.695m from £1.2m. However, officers have successfully secured additional 
funding commitments from the Environment Agency  and so there will be no 
additional capital cost to the Council. Further work is being undertaken to 
clarify any other required commitments as a result of discussions with Natural 
England and a request to formally increase the budget will be brought to 
Cabinet as part of the Q2 Finance and Performance Monitoring Report in 
December.  

11.64 Options are being considered for the future of the River Park Leisure Centre 
site which is due to close in early 2021 once the new Sport & Leisure Park is 
completed. It will be necessary to decommission the existing centre and the 
town account will consider the provision of alternative facilities such as toilets 
and changing rooms for use by the wider North Walls site. Should the 
decision be made to demolish the centre initial estimates of the cost are circa 
£0.5m and there will be some additional cost depending on the surface 
treatment desired following demolition.. 

11.65 Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL) is working closely with the Council on the Central 
Winchester Regeneration (CWR) project. JLL will complete their review of 
the CWR delivery roadmap by the end of October assessing the relevance of 
what’s included and advising on the next steps. Next steps will include a list of 
selection criteria and priorities for the site as well as developing a range of 
scenarios to demonstrate what these might look like - for discussion and 
decision by Cabinet. JLL are also working on assessing the one-off revenue 
budget requirements to undertake preliminary work such as feasibility studies. 

Page 50



  CAB3178 
 

 

 

11.66 The viability of providing a memorial garden and letting the lodge at 
Magdalen Hill Cemetery is currently being explored. As well as generating 
income from the letting of office space, further income may be generated by 
the sale and lease of various memorials such as vases and plaques. 

 
12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 There are a variety of options open the council over the medium term, and 
included in the above are a range of achievable options that fit within the 
council strategy. 

12.2 Other council’s have focussed on different approaches. Some have purely 
focussed on what is the legal minimum services to provide. This has been 
rejected as though the council has many statutory services to provide, how 
these are delivered can take many different shapes and associated costs. The 
financial position for the forthcoming year is not in such a position that the 
council needs to remove all discretionary related services so this would be 
premature, especially with a major Government review of finance now 
expected for 2021. 

12.3 Another option is take a much more aggressive approach to income 
generation, especially in respect of commercial property acquisition. If the 
Council spent £250m on acquiring commercial property, it could expect a net 
return (assuming gross yield of 6%) of up to £5m. This option has been 
rejected. There are a number of risks in commercial property investment, 
especially outside of the local economic areas, due a lack of a secondary plan 
for the properties. Yields are also very ‘tight’ at present meaning there is little 
room for losses due to voids. The council has a policy of achieving a double-
win at present through any commercial property investment and it is not 
proposed to move from this approach. There has been recent guidance 
issued by CIPFA also warning authorities who borrow in advance of need for 
certain acquisitions. 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

CAB3175 – Medium Term Financial Challenge – July 2019 

Other Background Documents:- 

None 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix A: Outcome Based Budgeting Options 

Appendix B: Medium Term Financial Projections 

Page 51



 23 CAB3178 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

 

Key Decision budget options 

 

Potential Impact of Emerging Parking Strategy 
2020/21 Full Year

£000 £000

1 Winchester parking charges An inflationary increase of around 3% to specific car parks 100 400 

2 Evening Parking Charges Introduction of a £2 flat rate charge in central car parks only 143 286 

3 Sunday Parking Charges Introduction of a £2 flat rate charge in central car parks only 139 278 

4 Park and Ride Rise in daily charges by 50p per day: £3.50 (peak) and £3.00 (off-peak) 186 186 

5 Cease parking discounts 
Removal of parking concessions for Cattlemarket and Worthy Lane car 

parks
70 70 

6 Market town parking charges
An estimate of minimum 10% increase in charging rates in line with the car 

parking strategy
10 10 

648 1,230 

2020/21 Full Year

£000 £000

7 Garden Waste Charging Net effect of introducing a chargeable garden waste service 250 500 

8
Major Transformation 

Programme
"P3" - Review Service levels to achieve specific savings targets ?

9 Asset Review Consider future of major assets (Guildhall, City Offices etc) ?

10 Council Tax Increase at 3% rather than 2%? 70 292 

11
Reduce provision of WCs in 

Winchester town

Closure of three or four public conveniences or approach Parishes to see if 

they would be willing to take on any outside of the Town area
50

12 Cease 24hr CCTV monitoring
Cease active monitoring of CCTV, continue to record CCTV to be viewed at 

a later date
150 

13 All out elections Introduction of four year all out elections instead of the current 1/3rds system 100 

14
Review community transport and 

shobmobility support

Review of all community transport and shopmobility services (e.g. dial-a-

ride)
100 

15 Employment and Skills Plan

A developer fee paid to the council in order to discharge ESP agreements. 

This would allow the council to increase apprentice support and growth 

within the district whilst also recovering the costs of providing the service 

from developers

0 100 

16 Advertising Opportunities
Advertising hoardings at key locations such as Friarsgate Car Park / Bus 

Station 
15 25 

17 Grants Programme Further review of grants propgramme 50 

335 1,367 Totals

Additional Savings/Income Options to Address Medium Term Shortfalls 

Totals

Page 52



 24 CAB3178 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

 

 

Medium Term Revenue Forecasts 
 

General Fund Revenue (£m) Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 

 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Funding 
    Council Tax (excluding Parish Precepts) 8.069  8.309  8.557  8.812  

Retained Business Rates 4.953  2.793  2.836  2.880  

New Homes Bonus 1.900  1.382  0.970  
 Damping - 5% cap on total resource reduction 

 
1.684  1.089  1.198  

Other Grants 0.150  0.150  0.150  0.150  

 
15.072  14.318  13.602  13.040  

     Investment Activity 1.655  0.155  0.223  0.093  

Resources available 16.727  14.473  13.825  13.132  

     Baseline Net Expenditure 
    Gross Income 13.435  13.968  14.777  15.151  

Gross Expenditure -31.249  -31.962  -32.644  -33.410  

Unavoidable Growth - HCC Recycling 
 

-0.500  -0.500  -0.500  

Baseline resource requirements -17.813  -18.494  -18.366  -18.759  

     One-off budgets & Reserve Related Movements -0.212  0.687  -0.145  -0.822  

Total net resource requirements -18.025  -17.807  -18.511  -19.581  

     Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) -1.298  -3.334  -4.686  -6.449  

% of Gross Expenditure 4.2% 10.4% 14.4% 19.3% 

     Operational Savings Proposals 1.613 1.908 2.465 3.028 

Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) 0.314  -1.425  -2.221  -3.421  

     Key Decision Proposals 0.983 2.021 2.401 2.597 

Less: 30% allowance for not taking all options -0.295  -0.606  -0.720  -0.779  

Transition Reserve -1.003  
   Budget Surplus / (Shortfall) -0.000  -0.011  -0.540  -1.603  

 
 

     
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 
 

CAB3197 
CABINET 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: STATION APPROACH CARFAX SITE – PURCHASER 

SELECTION PROCESS  

23 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: CLLR ANNE WEIR, CABINET MEMBER FOR 

LOCAL ECONOMY  

Contact Officer:  Ian Charie Tel No: 01962 848420  Email icharie@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  ST PAULS / ST BARTHOLOMEW 

 

PURPOSE 

 
On 18 September 2019 Cabinet approved the arrangements for the marketing and 
selection process to be undertaken to find a purchaser for the Carfax redevelopment 
site at Station Approach. This report provides further details of the proposed process 

to address the amended recommendation made at that Cabinet (CAB3172) ‘that 
detailed arrangements for the purchaser selection process for disposal are subject to 
a further report to Cabinet, having considered the specific comments of the Scrutiny 
Committee in this regard’. 
 

The council’s original strategic objectives for implementation of this project are to: 

 Achieve greater economic performance from land uses 

 Maintain or improve the City Council assets 

 Improve the aesthetic and environmental impact of the area 

The emerging new council plan will have significant emphasis on tackling the 
challenges of the climate emergency, and this is a very important factor in the 
purchaser selection process. The council aims to ensure that this development is an 
exemplar sustainable office development, transforming the station area of the city and 
setting a regional benchmark in carbon neutral employment space. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the further detail of the marketing and selection process based on the 
disposal methodology for selection of a site purchaser of the Carfax site as 
set out in this report is agreed. 

2. That the selection criteria set out in Appendix 1 are approved, with 
delegation given to the Strategic Director - Place to make minor 
amendments to finalise in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Local 
Economy. 

3. That the project risks (and risk mitigation measures) set out in Appendix 2 
are noted. 

 
 
  

Page 56



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS: 

 
2 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME  

2.1 Successful regeneration of the Carfax site is central to delivering high value, 
private sector employment opportunities to support several themes in the 
Council Strategy (2018-20).  It will be a landmark exemplar of sustainable 
office development in the heart of the city and act as a regeneration catalyst 
for other development and enhancements, as well as being of wider economic 
benefit to the city and district. 

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 The financial implications of the project were set out in detail in CAB3172. 

3.2 The recommended selection criteria address the value of the capital receipts, 
or rental streams offered by prospective purchasers, alongside the non-
financial benefits of the scheme.  Demonstration of achieving best financial 
consideration will be a critical part of the selection process and decision. 

3.3 Under section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972, a local authority has 
the power to dispose of land with the caveat that an authority must not do so 
for a consideration less than the best that can be reasonably obtained i.e. the 
best achievable price in the open market.  If the Council can demonstrate that 
value is being received in other ways that justify the monies foregone to the 
public purse it may dispose of land at less than best consideration with the 
consent of the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government.  The recommended sale process will create competitive tension 
between parties and therefore an assurance that best consideration is being 
achieved. 

3.4 In order to assess best consideration, the submissions will be compared 
based on their Net Present Values (NPVs); i.e. comparing the various offers 
of initial capital receipt and the future geared rent arising from tenant leases 
receivable over the life of the lease.   

3.5 In addition to best consideration, other factors will be taken into account, 
including the financial robustness, financial deliverability and detail of the 
financial offer; for example, the level of deposit, overage terms and lease 
gearing.  

4 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 The Council has statutory powers to bring forward regeneration under the 
general power of competence provided for in Section 1 of the Localism Act 
2011, and has powers to dispose of land under Section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Section 233 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

Page 57



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

4.2 This is a land disposal not a procurement exercise. CAB 3172 (28 August 
2019) and 3188 (18 September 2019) reports have given significant detail on 
the legal implications which is not repeated here. 

4.3 This report expands on the assessment approach detailed in CAB 3188. 

4.4 The marketing pack will set out the questions to be asked of prospective 
purchasers by reference to the criteria, and will include the draft agreement 
for lease (“AfL”) and lease. Under these documents, the purchaser will be 
subject to certain negative covenants to ensure that (so far as consistent with 
procurement law) the various commitments made under the competitive 
process are captured. In particular, it will be lawful to bind the purchaser to 
follow the outline planning consent and only depart from that with landowner 
(i.e. Council) permission. Equally, and for example, the AfL and lease may 
refer to the purchaser’s submitted programme, design approach, sustainability 
and approach to carbon neutral, stakeholder engagement plan, as well as 
their financial offer and funding solution.  

4.5 The Council may not exercise decisive influence over the purchaser’s 
approach, or seek to enforce the carrying out of specified works. But the 
Council has a legitimate interest, particularly since it has other land holdings 
in the City, in maximising the quality of the scheme and of the land value 
payment to be made; this, as indicated, may be done by suitably incorporating 
the successful purchaser’s commitments in the sales documentation.   

4.6 A further report will be brought to Cabinet in accordance with 
Recommendation 4 of Cabinet report 3188 which stated that “the Strategic 
Director – Place be required to bring a report to Cabinet for a decision on the 
disposal of the site to a purchaser once the marketing and selection process 
has been completed”. 

5 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Project management will be led by the Council’s Head of Programme and 
project team, supported by contracted consultants.  Significant input from the 
Council’s legal and financial teams will be required, supplemented, where 
appropriate, by external advisors. 

6 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The report sets out in Appendix 1 the assessment criteria to underpin the 
approved approach for a competitive selection process for the disposal of the 
Carfax site in accordance with the decision taken at Cabinet on 28 August 
2019 (CAB 3172) for a long leasehold disposal, subject to terms and 
conditions, and 18 September 2019 (CAB 3188) on the Purchaser Selection 
Process. 

 

 

Page 58



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

7 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

7.1 Scrutiny Committee on 14 August 2019 made comments on the report to 
Cabinet 28 August (CAB 3172) that set out the options and then 
recommended route for disposal of the Station Approach site.  The Committee 
explored a range of matters in particular seeking a reserve value for the site 
disposal and reviewing marketing in light of uncertainty in the commercial 
property market in late 2019/early 2020. 

7.2 These matters were considered by Cabinet on 28 August 2019 and are 
addressed in the risk register.  The purchaser selection process was 
considered at Cabinet on 18 September 2019 (CAB3188) and the comments 
raised at this meeting are addressed in Section 11 of this report: Supporting 
Information. 

7.3 A cross party group of Council members has met with the Council’s advisors 
and contributed to the development of the assessment criteria. 

8 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

8.1 The marketing pack and selection criteria will address the Council’s objectives 
to support a low carbon economy.  The BREEAM method of assessing the 
building design and impacts will be used to measure and test design 
proposals. The previous report to Cabinet on 28 August 2019 (CAB 3172) 
gave significant detail on this aspect of the project and that is not repeated 
here.  It is intended that this development will be a regional exemplar of 
carbon neutral development. 

9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) scoping process has been 
undertaken for the project in its entirety.  The EqIA scoping identified potential 
impacts for people with physical impairments or health problems.  Through 
liaison with accessibility and disability groups, the work on the public realm 
design within the Carfax scheme has addressed these impacts related to 
accessibility needs. 

10 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

10.1 None required at this stage of the process.  However data protection is 
ongoing and will be continuously re-evaluated, in particular throughout the 
selection process; and a secure dataroom will be hosted by JLL to ensure 
compliance with data protection requirements. 

11 RISK MANAGEMENT  

11.1 This project has a full risk register which is managed by the Head of 
Programme. 

Page 59



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

11.2 Key risks for the leasehold disposal process are listed below. The full detail 
for these risks is included as Appendix 2.   

 Change in commercial market including post Brexit 

 Programme risks in relation to governance, resourcing and contingency 

 Delivery decisions 

 Process for site disposal challenge 

 Changes to design through delivery 

 Selection of suitable purchaser 

 Financial returns 

 Phasing of works 

 Evaluation process governance 

 Capacity  for assessment of purchasers and governance reporting 
requirements overlapping pre-purdah  

 Planning application decision challenge 

11.3 These matters have been considered in the development of the assessment 
criteria. 

12 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

12.1 The strategic objectives for the Station Approach project build on those in the 
Business Justification Case (CAB2864 20 March 2017) and were confirmed in 
the Outline Business Case approved by Cabinet (Station Approach) 
Committee CAB3144(SA) on 25 March 2019 (and which also informed the 
consideration of OS225). These are set out below: 

12.2  Strategic Objectives: 

 Achieve greater economic performance from land uses 

 Maintain or improve the City Council assets 

 Improve the aesthetic and environmental impact of the area 

12.3 A scheme meeting these objectives will deliver a transformative, exemplar 
office- led regeneration of the area around the station, ensure the 
enhancement of the economic vitality of the city and wider District for the 
future; offering new, improved employment opportunities, whilst also creating 
an improved gateway with enhanced connectivity to the city centre. 

12.4 The Strategic Objectives for the scheme therefore create a framework for 
establishing the assessment criteria set out in this report. 

12.5 At the Cabinet meeting on 18 September 2019 (CAB3188), the following 
amended recommendation was approved ‘that detailed arrangements for the 
purchaser selection process for disposal are subject to a further report to 

Page 60



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Cabinet, having considered the specific comments of the Scrutiny Committee in 
this regard’.  

12.6 The recommended assessment criteria have been developed with the 
assistance of advice from JLL, the Council’s Strategic Placemaking Advisors, 
and Brown Jacobson, the Council’s legal advisors. 

12.7 These assessment criteria are attached as Appendix 1 and expand on the 
methodology already approved by Cabinet (18 September 2019 CAB 3188). 
The overall approach is set out below. 

Timetable:  

12.8 The marketing period commences on 31 October 2019 at the South Coast 
Commercial Property Show. This is a regular regional event, forming one of 
the leading property events in this region and provides a highly appropriate 
platform for the marketing launch of the Station Approach disposal. Marketing 
will also be carried out through established national, regional and local 
platforms, including the property press, web-based marketing and mailing. 

12.9 Submissions must be received by 17 January 2020 and it is expected a report 
will be made to Cabinet in March 2020 to recommend a preferred purchaser. 

12.10 Following negotiations and finalisation of legal documentation, it is anticipated 
that the selected purchaser will be contracted in late spring 2020. This 
timetable is important in relation to the EM3 LEP requirement for the awarded 
grant for the Carfax site preparation works, including archaeological 
excavation, to be spent by 31 March 2021. 

Assessment Process 

12.11 The Assessment Criteria, are grouped in 5 key themes: 

 Financial – Provides a financial return which, as a minimum, meets the 
Council’s obligation to secure best consideration. 

 Deliverable – Can be delivered to a Programme which meets the 
Council’s objectives for kick-starting regeneration opportunities in the 
Station area, and which utilises the EM3 LEP Grant.  

 Sustainable – Delivers an exemplar carbon neutral, office-led mixed 
use scheme including high quality Grade A office space, supporting 
uses and public realm. 

 Demonstrable (track record/experience) – Evidences relevant 
experience and track record of team, including securing a high level of 
stakeholder support by effective stakeholder engagement as part of the 
continuing planning process.  

 Commercial – Provides acceptable responses to the draft legal 
documentation, without unclear or unacceptable caveats. 

Page 61



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

12.12 Criteria in these areas have been developed linked to achieving best outcome 
from the disposal linked to the stated objectives set out in the Outline 
Business Case for Station Approach. These have been regularly reported in 
subsequent cabinet reports on this development (CAB 3144, 25 March 2019) 
as set out in earlier in this report.  

12.13 In addition to capturing the above objectives, submitting parties will be 
assessed on track record, including team, for delivering comparable projects, 
demonstration of approach to sustainable travel, planning, stakeholder 
engagement, securing tenants and risk. 

12.14 A key part of the Council’s assessment of bids relates to the track record and 
experience of submitting parties for delivering high quality development 
schemes of comparable size and type. The comments of the Regional Design 
Panel are very important and as part of the development process, it is 
considered that the purchaser should engage in with that panel. The Council 
is taking legal advice on how this can be robustly incorporated in the 
Agreement for Lease for disposal of the site. 

Process for assessment:  

12.15 Submissions will be receipted by the Council’s strategic advisors.  

12.16 Submissions will be reviewed by the Strategic Director - Place, Strategic 
Director – Resources, S 151 Officer and Head of Programme supported by 
the Council’s Strategic Placemaking Consultants (JLL) and Legal Advisor 
(Browne Jacobson). 

12.17 A key task will be to verify the financial offer in the submission. In order to 
assess best financial consideration, the submissions will be compared based 
on their Net Present Value (NPV), i.e. comparing the offers of capital receipt 
and the future lease income over the life of the lease.    

12.18 Assessment will also be made against the agreed criteria and if necessary, 
clarifications will be sought from a party at this time.  

12.19 The Council may choose to invite all or some short listed parties to make a 
presentation of their submission to a Presentation Panel.  In addition to the 
officer team the Cabinet Chair for Local Economy, 1 Ward Councillor, 2 
Administration Members and 2 Opposition Party Members will form the 
Presentation Panel. 

12.20 The Council is under no obligation to pursue any negotiation with any party 
but may choose to seek clarification at any part of the process in order to 
secure the best outcome for the Council.  

12.21 The Strategic Director - Place has delegated authority to bring forward a 
report with a recommended preferred party/parties to a future Cabinet. All 
parties will be advised on the outcome of the process. 

Page 62



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Associated documentation 

12.22 A Marketing Pack is being prepared, led by the Council’s Strategic 
Placemaking Consultants JLL, with legal input as appropriate. The Marketing 
Pack will include: 

 Details of the site development opportunity, 

 A ‘dataroom’ of all relevant technical background documents, including 
the Outline Planning Consent and all planning application and 
background technical documents and responses submitted, 

 The information within the Assessment Criteria document referenced in 
this report, and attached as Appendix 1, 

 A suite of legal documents to include the Draft Agreement for Lease 
(AfL) and Lease. 

 

13 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

13.1 This report provides further detail to the Cabinet report (3188) considered on 
18 September, and no further options have been considered or rejected.  

Page 63



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

None 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

CAB3188 Station Approach - site disposal process 18 September 2019 

Planning 
Committee 

Land East Of Station Road, Winchester, 
Hampshire. (Case number: 19/00601/OUT)  

12 September 2019 

CAB3172 Station Approach Proposals for Delivery and 
Further Public Realm Development 

28 August 2019 

SC009 Station Approach - Proposals for Delivery and 
Further Public Realm Development  

14 August 2019 

CAB3144(SA) Station Approach – Outline Business Case 
and associated matters 

25 March 2019 

OS225 Station Approach - Outline Business Case 
and Associated Matters (less 

exempt appendices) 

20 March 2019 

CAB3101(SA) Economic Appraisal and Business Case 
Preparation 

18 December 2018 

CAB3083(SA) Station Approach Update 4 October 2018 

CAB3055(SA) Station Approach – Update Report 12 July 2018 

CAB3021(SA) 

 

Station Approach - Public Realm Strategy 
and Masterplan Framework 

27 February 2018 

CAB3001(SA) Station Approach – Update 28 November 2017 

 

CAB2959(SA) Station Approach – Appointment of Design 
Team 

14 August 2017 

CAB2864 Station Approach – RIBA Plan of Works 
Stages Documentation 

20 March 2017 

OS157 Station Approach – End Stage review report 
for the competitive  dialogue process 

30 November 2016 

CAB2852 Station Approach - Procurement Process 
Update 

17 October 2016 

CAB2829 Station Approach - The Way Forward 7 September 2016 

 

Other Background Documents:- 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1: JLL Assessment Criteria 

Appendix 2: Station Approach Risk Register for Disposal Process 

  

Page 64



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Appendix 2: Station Approach Risk Register for Disposal Process 

       Risk Number: 15 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Change in commercial market including post Brexit 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Change in 

commercial 

market 

Potential 

occupiers do not 

sign up for pre-

lets of an 

appropriate level 

of office space 

prior to 

commencement of 

the development. 

Economic 

uncertainty due to 

Brexit 

 

Purchaser does not 

commence scheme. 

Required financial return for 

the Council is not met 

Delay in project programme. 

Changes to the programme 

and scope of the project 

incur additional fees. 

Impact on the interested 

businesses. 

Impact on the local economy. 

Impact on the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy. 

1. Maintain political support to move project forward and 

prevent delays.  

2. Continued economic and political monitoring.  

3. parties for the site to demonstrate how they will secure 

prospective occupiers , e.g. by way of pre-lets or  non binding 

expressions of interest.  A competitive process to secure a 

purchaser will provide assurance of genuine demand for the 

site. The outline planning application route will also b 

stimulate further market interest. 

4. - It will be expected that parties and the selected purchaser 

undertake market testing to ensure demand and do so 

regularly to ensure demand continues. Equally, they will 

engage with those retailers who have expressed an interest. 

Because of the significant uncertainties of a Brexit deal and 

the increased risk of no deal or an early general election, it is 

not possible to mitigate or quantify every possible outcome.  

So while mitigation can help to reduce the impact, it is not 

possible to mitigate entirely against these risks. 

Likely Major 2 £££ - 

££££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Market the site and ensure parties pursue and demonstrate suitable occupiers   

Market testing  (by the purchaser working with the Council) should also be undertaken to 

ensure continuing demand. 

 

Trend: Increasing 

Q3 2019 Likely Major  

 
 

P
age 65



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Risk Number: 27 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Programme risks in relation to governance, resourcing and contingency 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Pressure on 

delivery timescale 

(e.g. LEP Grant). 

Pressure put on project 

programme removes contingency 

from disposal and delivery 

stages; risks to resource 

availability and programme 

Ensure the purchaser has a risk register to monitor and 

manage risks to avoid them becoming issues.  

Manage all parties’ expectations for delivery timescales.  

Identify issues with relevant parties when they occur, 

and flag impacts on programme.  

Seek advice on any governance process changes. 

Likely Major 2 ££ 

Further actions 
Target 

date 

Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Engage in review process from new administration and identify where changes to scope/timetable 

would impact negatively on programme and benefits to be realised.  Trend: Increasing 
Q2 2019 Likely Moderate  

       Risk Number: 28 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Delivery decisions 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Decision on 

delivery 

Council's 

insurance does 

not cover chosen 

delivery option 

insurance 

requirements 

Council takes development route which 

increases the risks to the Council and 

requires increased insurance limits and 

indemnities. 

Risks not covered by insurance 

Insurers impose conditions for increase 

capital spend 

WCC need to identify a new risk insurer 

Mitigation -  

Advice form the Council’s internal and 

external risk advisors has been obtained to 

set the current insurance limits.  The Council 

has cover for public liability and employer's 

liability and can decide to increase this if after 

a risk re-assessment this is required. 

Unlikely Major 3 ££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Whilst unlikely, if a review of the risk assessment identified a need to increase insurance limits, 

the Council has the option of requesting contractors to increase insurance cover. 

Get Council's insurer to assess risk and advise on how to manage 

May need to expand premiums or insure any additional risks.  Trend: No change 

Q3 2019 Unlikely Low  

P
age 66



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Risk Number: 73 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Process for site disposal challenge 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Disposal of the site 

via land disposal 

rather than a 

procurement process 

is challenged 

Delay to project  

Additional cost to 

address challenge 

Negative publicity 

 

Appropriate legal advice obtained.  The procedural steps below 

are proposed to mitigate these risks: 

• Ensuring there is a fully documented audit trail to justify the 

transaction being undertaken outside of the PCR. 

• Conducting the competitive process to select a purchaser in a 

manner which clearly demonstrates the intention to enter into a 

land transaction.  

• Ensuring that the legal agreement entered into satisfies the 

relevant tests for being a land sale and is therefore not a 

contract for works or services.  

• If/when an agreement with the selected purchaser is 

successfully negotiated, giving due consideration to publishing a 

“Voluntary Ex Ante Transparency” (VEAT) notice in the Official 

Journal of European Union (OJEU), describing the nature of the 

agreement to be entered into and the reasons for not publishing 

an OJEU Contract Notice. 

Ensure the disposal is on terms which follow legal advice 

Unikely Major 2 ££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Trend: Increasing Q2 2019 
Highly 

Unlikely 
Major  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

P
age 67



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Risk Number: 74 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Changes to design through delivery 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Developer decides to 

change design within the 

outline consent 

Impact on programme Assess as part of selection process Likely Major 3 ££££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Trend: No change Q1 2020 Unlikely Moderate  

       Risk Number: 75 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Selection of suitable purchaser 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Sale of the 

leasehold to a 3rd 

party 

Concerns raised over quality of 

the scheme 

Risk of not all economic benefits 

being delivered 

Robust assessment as part of purchaser selection 

process  

Local Planning Authority decision making and through 

any future reserved matters application 

Likely Moderate 3 ££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Trend: No change Q2 2020 Unlikely Moderate  

       Risk Number: 76 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Financial returns 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Risk of loss on the 

sale of the 

Council’s asset 

The proceeds could be less 

than the value that the Council 

has invested in the site 

Assessment as part of purchaser selection process to 

consider best consideration.  Risk should also to be 

considered against regenerative benefits gained 

Unlikely Significant 3 ££££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Trend: No change Q2 2020 Unlikely Moderate  

P
age 68



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Risk Number: 77 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Phasing of works 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

LEP spend timescale 

requirements put pressure 

on suitable phasing of 

public realm 

implementation and 

Carfax site preparation 

works. 

Impact on programme Construction logistics 

Ongoing discussion with LEP 

Unlikely Moderate 4 £££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

 

Trend: No change 
Q2 2021 Unlikely Minor  

       Risk Number: 78 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Evaluation process governance 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Cabinet do not approve 

the evaluation criteria. 

project team resourcing 

risk, as resources are 

detracted away from the 

main stage objective to 

market the site. 

Marketing material cannot 

be finalised in time for 

launch on 31 October 

2019. 

Launch delayed. 

 

Cross party meeting to take place before dispatch to 

discuss the process. 

Likely Moderate 1 ££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

 

Trend: Increasing 
Q4 2019 Unlikely Moderate  

 

 

      

P
age 69



 CAB3197 
 

 
 

Risk Number: 79 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Capacity  for assessment of purchasers and governance reporting requirements overlapping pre-purdah 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Overlap of 

evaluation and 

Cabinet lead in 

times. 

Report for required governance 

sign-off cannot be finalised in 

time for Cab March 11 2020. 

Resourcing risk 

Flag to Head of Programme to raise at Project Board Highly likely Major 2 ££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Re-evaluate programme for governance sign-off 

Trend: No change 
Q1 2020 Unlikely Major  

       Risk Number: 80 Risk Owner:  Project Executive 

Risk Title: Planning application decision challenge 

Causes Consequences Current Controls 
Current Risk Score Risk 

Proximity 

Financial 

impact Likelihood Impact 

Planning 

Permission is 

challenged 

Risks to Council's reputation. 

Delay in project programme. 

Changes to the programme and 

scope of the project incur 

additional fees  

Impact on the interested 

businesses. 

Impact on the local economy. 

Impact on the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 

1. Address Cllrs concerns through follow-up cabinet 

report process, to give additional confidence in process 

Unlikely Significant 1 £££ 

Further actions Target date 
Residual Risk Score 

Likelihood Impact 

Wider Council strategy needed for areas of concern such as tree removal from the site. 

Trend: No change 
Q3 2019 unlikely Major  

 

P
age 70



Station Approach, Winchester
Process for Selection of a Site Purchaser
Draft Assessment Criteria

October 2019

P
age 71



The objective of the disposal process for the site at Station Approach, Winchester is twofold:

1). To proactively market the opportunity to maximise interest and therefore optimise competitive tension

2). To identify a purchaser best placed to deliver the Council’s key scheme objectives:

• Achieve greater economic performance from land uses

• Maintain or improve city council assets

• Improve the aesthetic and environmental impact of the area

The emerging new Council Plan will have significant emphasis on tackling the challenges of the climate 
emergency, and this is a very important factor in the purchaser selection process. The Council aims to ensure 
that this development is an exemplar sustainable office development, transforming the station area of the city 
and setting a regional benchmark in carbon neutral employment space.

Criteria have been developed to assess bids received. These have been grouped into five key themes:

Financial - Provides a financial return which, as a minimum, meets the Council’s statutory obligation to secure 
best consideration

Deliverable - Can be delivered to a Programme which meets the Council’s objectives for kickstarting 
regeneration opportunities in the Station area, and which utilises the EM3 LEP Grant 

Sustainable - Delivers an exemplar carbon neutral office-led mixed use scheme including high quality Grade A 
office space, supporting uses and public realm

Demonstrable (track record/experience) – Evidences relevant experience and track record of team

Commercial – Provides an acceptable response to draft legal documentation

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 2

Introduction

P
age 72



A review of bids will be undertaken by an Officer team comprising Strategic Director - Place, Strategic Director 
- Resources, S 151 Officer and Head of Programme supported by the Council’s Strategic Placemaking 
Consultants (JLL) and Legal Advisor (Browne Jacobson). 

Selected parties may be invited to interview to make presentations and answer questions on their 
submissions. The Council reserves the right to invite all, some or no parties.

Bids will be assessed in their totality across the key themes but as a minimum will need to judged as good or 
better in each key theme.

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 3

Introduction 

P
age 73



© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 4

Financial 

Criteria Key Factors

Financial appraisal - Full development appraisal
- Supporting rationale/evidence for appraisal assumptions
- Robustness

Non-returnable deposit on exchange - Quantum

Lease gearing - Commitment to a gearing of a minimum of 5% of rents received, or rationale for any 
variance

Capital premium - Quantum
- Timing of payment
- Conditionality

Funding approach and solution - Clarity on how the scheme will be funded
- Evidence that the necessary funding is in place and any conditionality/approvals 

required

Overage - Basis of any overage provision put forward by bidders

P
age 74



Excellent Response – an excellent financial offer with strong confidence in respect of robustness and 
deliverability.

Very Good Response - a very good financial offer with a high level of confidence in respect of robustness and 
deliverability.

Good Response - a good financial offer with satisfactory confidence in respect of robustness and deliverability.

Poor Response - a reasonable financial offer with minor reservations in respect of robustness and 
deliverability.

Unacceptable Response - a weak financial offer with significant reservations in respect to robustness and 
deliverability.

Page Limit

The maximum length of response (excluding third party letters/reports) must be no more than 15 A4 sides in 
length, including tables using no smaller font size than arial 10 pt. 

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 5

Financial Assessment

P
age 75



© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 6

Deliverable

Criteria Key Factors

Planning approach - Commitment to working within the existing Outline Consent, or a clear rationale of the 
benefits underpinning an alternative approach

Programme - Clear project programme including key milestones and supporting rationale
- Proposed phasing

LEP grant funding - Approach to utilising the available LEP funding by end March 2021 (to include site 
preparation works, including archaeology, decontamination, utility provision, 
demolition/clearance and other site prep work)

- Approach to achieving relevant LEP grant outputs

Stakeholder engagement - Understanding of who the key stakeholders are and how they will be engaged
- Approach to successful stakeholder engagement including building on the engagement 

carried out to date and ensuring the continuity of that engagement as part of the 
continuing planning process

Occupiers - Approach to securing high quality tenants
- Confirmation of how much space will require to be pre-let before development 

commences including the relationship with the project programme/phasing provided

Risks - Identification of project risks and how they will be addressed

P
age 76



Excellent Response – a strong level of confidence that the purchaser can deliver the Project. The response is 
well structured, coherent, and demonstrates significant innovation and relevant experience. 

Very Good Response – a high level of confidence that the purchaser can deliver the Project. The response is 
well structured, coherent, and demonstrates innovation and relevant experience.

Good Response - confidence that the purchaser can deliver the Project. The response is well structured and 
coherent.

Poor Response - limited confidence that the purchaser can deliver the Project. There are some minor 
reservations about the response.

Unacceptable Response – very limited confidence that the purchaser can meet the standard necessary to 
deliver the Project. There are significant reservations about the response.

Page Limit

The maximum length of response must be no more than 20 A4 sides in length, including illustrations using no 
smaller font size than arial 10 pt. Supporting information of plans/images may be included up to a maximum 
of 6 A3 sides 

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 7

Deliverable Assessment

P
age 77



© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 8

Sustainable

Criteria Key Factors

Carbon neutral - Examples of commitment to sustainability on previous projects including  approaches to 
carbon neutral in build and use, plus employee wellbeing

- Demonstrable commitment of implementing an exemplar solution
- Approach to achieving BREEAM accreditation in accordance with the existing Outline 

Consent plus other relevant standards

Sustainable travel - Commitment to minimising car parking numbers
- Approach to optimising cycle, walking and public transport accessibility including 

alignment with the Winchester Movement Strategy
- Approach to enhancing biodiversity

Placemaking - Experience and commitment to implementing a very high quality scheme
- Approach to successfully integrating the development with the adjacent station public 

realm project and wider historic city

P
age 78



Excellent Response – a strong level of confidence that the purchaser will bring forward an exemplar scheme. 
The response is well structured, coherent, demonstrates significant innovation and relevant experience.

Very Good Response – a high level of confidence that the purchaser will bring forward an exemplar scheme. 
The response is well structured, coherent, and demonstrates innovation and relevant experience.

Good Response - confidence that the purchaser will bring forward an exemplar scheme. The response is well 
structured and coherent.

Poor Response - limited confidence that the purchaser will bring forward an exemplar scheme. There are 
some minor reservations about the response.

Unacceptable Response - very limited confidence that the purchaser can meet the standard necessary to 
deliver the Project. There are significant reservations about the response.

Page Limit

The maximum length of response must be no more than 15 A4 sides in length, including illustrations using no 
smaller font size than arial 10 pt. Supporting information of plans/images may be included up to a maximum 
of 6 A3 sides 

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 9

Sustainable Assessment

P
age 79



© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 10

Demonstrable (Track Record/Experience)

Criteria Key Factors

Track record of delivered schemes of comparable 
scale and use

- Relevant examples in the last five years (limited to five case studies)
- Emphasis on quality, sustainability, transformational placemaking/regeneration, 

efficient/timely delivery and securing a high level of stakeholder support by effective 
engagement

Team and expertise - Team structure and CVs with clear evidence of relevant delivered schemes

P
age 80



Excellent Response – an excellent track record with strong confidence in the experience of the team.

Very Good Response – a very good track record with a high level of confidence in the experience of the team.

Good Response - a good track record with satisfactory confidence in the experience of the team.

Poor Response - a reasonable track record with minor reservations in the experience of the team.

Unacceptable Response - a weak track record with significant reservations in the experience of the team.

Page Limit

The maximum length of response (excluding CVs) must be no more than 15 A4 sides in length, including 
illustrations using no smaller font size than arial 10 pt. 

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 11

Demonstrable (Track Record/Experience) Assessment

P
age 81



© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 12

Commercial

Criteria Key Factors

Commercial documentation - Commentary on the issued suite of legal documentation and clear justification for any 
proposed amendments

- Minimal appropriate and acceptable conditionality
- Confirmation of how the purchaser will be structured (e.g. PLC, limited company, LLP, 

other partnership, sole trader, SPV etc.)

P
age 82



Excellent Response - the submission is transparent, and is absent of caveats or statements which leave 
positions unclear. The submission generally accepts the documentation provided and adds value in terms of 
points raised.

Very Good Response – the submission has some material but justified caveats and does not leave material 
points open. A number of the points raised add value.

Good Response - the submission contains some caveats of minor concern and does leave limited material 
points open. Only some of the points raised add value.

Poor Response - the submission lacks transparency and/or raises concerns on material items, without 
supporting justification. There is limited or no added value.

Unacceptable Response - the submission raises significant material points of concern with no added value or 
supporting justification and/or is lacking in transparency.

Page Limit

The maximum length of response must be no more than 5 A4 sides in length, no smaller font size than arial 10 
pt. 

© 2019 Jones Lang LaSalle IP, Inc. All rights reserved. 13

Commercial Assessment

P
age 83



P
age 84



  
 

CAB3190 
CABINET 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: RIVER PARK LEISURE CENTRE - FUTURE USE OF SITE 
 
23 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Kelsie Learney, Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Asset Management   

Contact Officer:  Steve Lincoln    Tel No: 01962 848 110 Email 
slincoln@winchester.gov.uk   

WARD(S):  ST BARTHOLOMEW 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

To update members on progress of the early-stage work to determine the future use 
of the River Park Leisure Centre (“RPLC”) site in central Winchester, as well as 
consideration of improvements and enhancement of the facilities and open spaces 
adjoining the centre. 

This includes consideration of the constraints that apply to the site and how they 
influence the way we proceed.  It also includes measures that will need to be taken 
when RPLC closes in early 2021 to ensure the availability of facilities for users of the 
adjoining open spaces, as well as making the closed building safe. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Cabinet: 

Notes: 

1. That the RPLC building will close in January 2021. 

2. The feedback from the stakeholder engagement event on 22/23 March 2019. 

3. Winchester Town Forum’s role in determining the provision of facilities to 

serve North Walls recreation area, and the ongoing work to resolve the future 

of the pavilion at North Walls. 

4. The legal complexities relating to potential future land uses of the RPLC 

building and surrounding site. 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 11

mailto:slincoln@winchester.gov.uk


  CAB3190 
 

 

Approves: 

5. That the Winchester Town Forum oversee the work relating to the 

improvement of the North Walls recreation area, and that the Cabinet Member 

for Housing and Asset Management  leads the work relating to the future use 

of the RPLC building site and associated buildings and parking areas. 

6. That further evaluation, including financial and legal implications, of the 

options for demolition or securing of the existing RPLC building once it is 

closed is undertaken and reported back to Cabinet for decision. 

7. That an evaluation of options for the provision of toilet and refreshment 

facilities on site once the existing RPLC building closes in January 2021 is 

undertaken and considered by the Winchester Town Forum. 

 

Page 86



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 North Walls recreation area is a significant public space. With the closure of 
River Park Leisure Centre there are several aspects to review including the 
use of North Walls recreation area and the future use of the River Park 
Leisure Centre site.  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 RPLC is an asset owned by the council that will close on the opening of the 
new Winchester Sport and Leisure Centre and will therefore be surplus to 
requirements. The council needs to determine how to make best use of this 
land to support the community in its widest sense. Closure will have a 
financial implication as the council will need to secure the unoccupied building 
initially and potentially demolish at the appropriate time. This cost will be 
considered as part of the normal budget setting process. 

2.2 It is envisaged that the River Park Leisure Centre site will be redeveloped. 
Any development will need to be considered in the light of the financial 
pressures that are facing the council, and will, ideally generate revenue or a 
significant capital receipt. 

2.3 The council will need to determine the viability and financing of the preferred 
option in the light of the medium term financial strategy and the financial 
pressures that are predicted for the future.  

2.4 A revenue budget of £150k was agreed to progress this project work through 
RIBA stage 0 (strategic definition) and will be sufficient to reach the stage of 
one or more preferred options for detailed evaluation in a strategic outline 
business case if required.   

2.5 Consideration of the re-provision of any facilities provided by River Park 
Leisure Centre for those that use North Walls recreation is likely to have 
financial implications.  The Winchester Town Forum will consider options on 
13 November 2019 relating to replacement of the cricket pavilion, and 
provision of toilets and refreshment facilities. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 Consideration of future land uses for both the building and surrounding site at 
RPLC site are subject to historic restrictions on the Land Registry title, which 
relate back to the original site purchase.  Subsequently the land is currently 
held on a statutory trust as a public park and recreation ground for the City, 
and subject to a restrictive covenant.  

3.2 The implications of the restrictive legal covenant and holding the land as a 
statutory trust on the site means that: 

Page 87



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

a) The building and the land may only be currently used for recreational 
and open space, and associated uses; 

b) Residential use is not permitted without discharge of the restrictive 
covenant by the Lands Tribunal, even following appropriation; 

c) Additional options for the use of the land and buildings become 
available following a valid appropriation of the land by the Council, 
being uses which are under the Council responsibilities; 

d) The Council could sell or grant a lease of the site provided it is first 
appropriated and the procedures in relation to disposal of open space 
under s123 Local Government Act 1972 are followed and best 
consideration is obtained or can be dispensed with. Any proposed 
development or disposal would need to respect or manage subsisting 
leases and easements.  

3.3 Appropriation of the whole or part of the site from open space to planning 
purposes is a statutory process which, in this case, requires public 
consultation, evidence that the land no longer required for the purpose to 
which it is held, consideration of any comments received and not able to be 
pursued if it would lead to a breach of a the restrictive covenant.  

3.4 The restrictive covenant may be modified or discharged pursuant to section 
84 of the Law of Property Act 1925 which requires an application to the Lands 
Tribunal to show that the restriction is obsolete and would not adversely affect 
those with the benefit of it, or that the beneficiaries agree to its modification or 
discharge. 

3.5 Further legal input is recommended as the Council develops ideas to pursue 
future land use options.  

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 At this early stage, work is being undertaken by existing staff.  

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 This project relates to the future use of the land owned by the council. 

5.2 The development of the Winchester Sport and Leisure Park will mean the 
River Park Leisure Centre will close to the public in January 2021. The 
building has reached the end of its economic life and would require 
considerable expenditure if it was to be renovated.  

5.3 The RPLC site has the potential to be used for a wide range of uses, subject 
to planning and legal constraints, and there is likely to be considerable 
interest in the market if it was to be offered for sale by way of a freehold or 
long leasehold interest. 

Page 88



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

5.4 The closure of RPLC in early 2021 will create some property implications in 
respect of the obsolete building and possible re-provision of certain facilities 
that directly support users of the adjoining open spaces.  These are discussed 
in detail later in this report. 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

Stakeholder engagement 

6.1 A major stakeholder engagement event was held in a marquee at North Walls 
recreation area over the weekend of 22/23 March 2019.  The event attracted 
835 attendees across the two days, comprising residents of the local area, 
park users and representatives of sports clubs and other amenity or interest 
groups. 

6.2 A key objective of the event was to reassure stakeholders that the future of 
North Walls recreation area is secure, irrespective of the future use of the 
RPLC site. A full summary of the engagement is shown at Appendix 1 

6.3 The event clearly demonstrated that the wider North Walls site is well used on 
a daily basis by local people, the majority of whom walk to the site.  There is 
an important thoroughfare running through the site as a route to the city 
centre and most visits to the site are for less than an hour. 

6.4 No major issues were highlighted as problem areas with the park, though a 
number of low-level issues were identified which, if addressed, would make 
the park better suited to the needs of the wide range of users. 

6.5 A number of people using the open space make use of facilities at RPLC to 
make their use of the park more enjoyable.  The most common example was 
toilets, followed by the café, and the re-provision of important facilities is 
discussed later in the report. 

6.6 While the event was focussed on the park area, a number of attendees 
wished to discuss or comment on the future of the RPLC site.  Various leisure 
and recreation uses were suggested and there was support for a vision for the 
whole site to ensure that the future use worked well alongside the park. 
People were assured that there would be further opportunities to discuss and 
comment on the future of the site as the project progresses. 

Councillor involvement 

6.7 Winchester Town Forum manages and maintains the green part of the site 
(see appendix 2) and the Forum will now lead on the future of that area.  The 
Forum has established an Informal Group to advise on this, which has met 
twice to date and the Forum will consider a report on the project at its 
November meeting. 

6.8 The Cabinet Member for Housing and Asset Management (Cllr Learney) will 
lead the work on the future of the RPLC building itself, supported by the 

Page 89



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

officer team, and this is subject to further consideration before next steps are 
determined. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 The Council announced a climate emergency in June 2019 and environmental 
impacts will need to be a key consideration. 

7.2 The North Walls site is in Flood zone Category 3 (recognising potential risk to 
life (residential/commercial uses)) and recent flood-prevention measures have 
been undertaken in the vicinity. Sensitivities in policy terms extend to the 
designation of the River Itchen (to the east) being designated as an area of 
Biodiversity interest as a Special Area of Conservation. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None specific at this stage of the project. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 Personal data was collected from people who attended the consultation event 
in March 2019 and is being managed in accordance with the council’s data 
protection policy. 

9.2 A full impact assessment is not required at this stage of the project. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

10.1 A summary of the key risks is given below. A project risk register will be 
developed as the project progresses. 

 

Risk 
 

Mitigation Opportunities 

Property 
River Park Leisure Centre 
has reached the end of its 
economic life and, 
following closure of the 
centre, there is a risk of 
misuse. 
 
There is a risk that the 
building will lie vacant for a 
long period of time and 
that Business Rates would 
continue to be payable. 
 
There is a risk that the 
Council does not have the 

 
The risk could be 
mitigated by either 
securing the property or by 
demolishing it pending the 
redevelopment of the site.  
 
 
The risk could be 
mitigated by seeking to 
sell the freehold or long 
leasehold of the property.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An exciting use for the site 
might come forward 

Page 90



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

Risk 
 

Mitigation Opportunities 

resources to run another 
major project and that the 
property/site will remain 
unused for a long period. 
 

generating a capital 
receipt or income stream 

Community Support 
The community is not well 
informed and are poorly 
engaged during the 
process. 
 

 
Communications and 
engagement will be at the 
heart of project planning. 
 

 
The council has the 
opportunity to work closely 
with the local community 
to achieve a co-created 
outcome that has broad 
support. 
 

Timescales 
The current leisure centre 
will close when the 
Winchester Sport and 
Leisure Centre opens in 
early 2021. 
 

 
Progressing this work now 
gives the opportunity to 
consider the best long 
term use for the current 
centre, and any short term 
use that may be suitable 
when the new centre 
opens. 
 

 
The project has the 
potential to enhance the 
current open space facility, 
and agree a use for the 
current developed site that 
meets financial and 
community objectives. 
 

Project capacity 
Inadequate project 
resource. 
 

 
The project lead is being 
met from within existing 
staff resources; the 
approved budget enables 
purchase of additional 
resource when required. 
 

 
There is a development 
opportunity for current 
staff to be involved in an 
exciting project. 

Financial / VfM 
The future use of the site 
could create an 
unacceptable financial 
burden on the council tax 
payer. 
 

 
Financial and value for 
money assessment will be 
part of the evaluation of 
options for redevelopment 
and enhancement of the 
site. 
 

 
A creative solution could 
provide a positive financial 
position for council tax 
payers, as well as 
enhance the built 
environment, and meet 
community aspirations. 
 

Legal 
Contractual, 
landownership and legal 
restrictions are 
complexities in relation to 
this site. 

 
Land use proposals in 
accordance with the land 
registry title will require 
statutory procedures to be 
pursued which are time 

 
The statutory procedures 
enable the Council the 
opportunity to work closely 
with the local community 
to achieve a co-created 

Page 91



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

Risk 
 

Mitigation Opportunities 

 consuming. . outcome with broad 
support. 
 

Innovation 
An approach that is 
innovative may inherently 
have more financial risk 
for the council tax payer. 
 

 
Financial risks, viability 
and feasibility will be part 
of the assessment of 
potential options for 
development. 
 

 
An innovative approach 
could produce an outcome 
that adds to the 
Winchester city offer. 
 

Reputation 
The site has the potential 
to be used for a wide 
range of uses subject to 
planning and there is likely 
to be considerable scrutiny 
of the process and the 
outcome. 
 

 
The process will be open 
and engaging, following 
the model that the council 
has developed over recent 
years in relation to major 
projects. 
 

 
The council has the 
opportunity to work closely 
with the local community 
to achieve a co-created 
outcome that has broad 
support. 
 

 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 The presumption is that the River Park Leisure Centre site will (subject to 
appropriate planning permission) eventually be redeveloped for an alternative 
use and not become open space. No decision or scoping work has been 
undertaken as to the footprint to be redeveloped but other community uses 
such as the skate park and bowls club are within the overall site boundary 
(appendix 2). 

11.2 The legal restrictions on the site result in current land use options summary, 
as follows. 

a) Use the land, or allow clubs or societies to use the land, for the 
provision of “recreational facilities”. 

b) Build facilities ancillary to recreational use on land currently laid out as 
open space but must preserve the main use which is recreational and 
keep any new facilities purely ancillary to the main use. 

c) Built facilities for cultural, leisure or educational use (related to 
recreational or leisure and not related to the Education Act 1996): 

(i) On land currently built on. 

(ii) On parts of land currently laid out as open space provided these 
are for purposes that are ancillary to the main recreational use. 

Page 92



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

11.3 Land Uses currently not available without undertaking additional legal 
processes are: 

a) Use the land for any profitable purpose not associated with recreational 
and open space. 

b) Residential accommodation. 

c) Office buildings or commercial buildings. 

d) Educational facilities for uses under the Education Act 1996. 

e) Build on parts of the land that are currently used as open space and/or 
recreation grounds, except by adding ancillary facilities to its 
recreational use). 

11.4 Additional land use options are available to the Council if the entire site and/ 
or land on which the buildings are located is validly appropriated from open 
space recreational use to planning purposes.  A formal statutory appropriation 
procedure is required. 

 Other constraints 

11.5 There are a number of other constraints that will influence any future 
development of the site. 

11.6 Planning: The RPLC lies outside the defined settlement boundary for 
Winchester and consequently falls within designated countryside in adopted 
local plans. However, the site is located at the edge of the existing urban 
fabric of a residential and University area and, therefore, falls in an area of 
transition from the core city centre to residential/recreational /countryside 
areas – with the University campus area on Park Avenue as the point of 
transition. There could be opportunity to review this as part of the Local Plan 
process. 

11.7 Flooding: Flood zone Category 3 (recognising potential risk to life 
(residential/commercial uses)) covers the entire footprint of RPLC. Recent 
measures have been undertaken around the site as part of the North 
Winchester Flood Alleviation Scheme and further work is planned, but it 
remains a high-risk area. 

11.8 Access: vehicular access is restricted off Gordon Road, off Hyde Abbey 
Road, both residential streets, in turn taking access off North Walls, part of the 
one-way system, currently being reviewed as part of the Winchester 
Movement Strategy which was endorsed in March 2019. 

11.9 Conservation and archaeology: remains of the former Hyde Abbey lie to the 
NE corner of the leisure centre, with designated Conservation Area adjoining 
the site. Initial officer advice is that the area currently used for car parking is 

Page 93

https://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/14652/flood-alleviation-scheme-durngate-terrace-and-the-trinity-centre
https://www.winchester.gov.uk/projects/14652/flood-alleviation-scheme-durngate-terrace-and-the-trinity-centre
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/winchestermovementstrategy
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/winchestermovementstrategy


  CAB3190 
 

 

 

likely to be highly sensitive archaeologically, but the remainder of the site less 
so. 

11.10 The site is adjacent to Winnall Moors SSSI, close to the River Itchen SAC and 
within 60m of the South Downs National Park boundary. 

Next steps  

11.11 No decision has been made regarding any future development of the River 
Park Leisure Centre site and potential options will be brought forward in a 
future report for consideration. 

11.12 However, when the Winchester Sport and Leisure Centre opens in early 2021, 
RPLC will close and the current operator will vacate the building leaving the 
council with a costly and obsolete building to manage. 

11.13 It is unlikely that an alternative use will be found for the building, even in the 
short-term.  The specific and bespoke nature of leisure centres means that 
few other uses could be made of the building so there is a high likelihood of 
the building being left empty.  This would represent a revenue budget 
pressure as costs would accrue without any associated income.  The site 
would be a potential health and safety concern, would detract from the 
aesthetics of the area and could deteriorate further over time. 

11.14 Consideration will be given to arrangements for the management of the 
Leisure Centre once closed. It is recommended that this work be undertaken, 
with costs to be met from the approved budget for this project, with the 
findings reported back to Cabinet. 

11.15 There are a number of other functions which River Park Leisure Centre 
provides in relation to the existing North Walls recreation area, the most 
significant of which is toilet provision. 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Occasionally

Always

Page 94



  CAB3190 
 

 

 

11.16 There are proposals for a new cricket pavilion at North Walls to replace the 
existing building which is no longer fit-for-purpose.  Winchester Town Forum 
set aside £300k for a replacement pavilion in 2015 but the project did not 
proceed because a group of residents and users requested time to raise 
additional funds to enable an enhanced pavilion to be built.  The Pavilion 
Project group has raised more funding but remains short of the total required.  
The Town Forum is in dialogue with the group to determine a way forward and 
in the long-term the building could meet the needs of certain park users for 
changing rooms and/or showers.  However, the location is less suitable to 
serve the needs of park users for public toilets or refreshments. This will be 
considered by the Town Forum at the meeting in November 2019.  

11.17 The options to be considered by Winchester Town Forum for provision of 
toilets are: 

a) A purpose-built toilet block, possibly combined with a café, to service 
the whole site for the foreseeable future. 

b) Provision of temporary toilets (for example on part of the current car 
park) to service the area until a decision is made on the long-term 
future of the site. 

c) No toilet provision on the site until the long-term future of the RPLC site 
is known. 

11.18 It will also be necessary for the Council team to manage bookings for the 
tennis courts following closure of the Leisure Centre. This is easily 
accommodated. 

11.19 However, consideration will also be given to the provision of floodlighting to 
the skate park at the meeting of the Town Forum in November. Lighting is 
currently provided via the Leisure Centre. 

11.20 There will be a need to review the charging strategy for and management of 
the car park at RPLC to ensure it is effective once the centre closes. 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 This report does not address the potential redevelopment of the River Park 
Leisure Centre site which is subject to a further report. As such the current 
focus is on the provision of the public open space following public 
engagement earlier in the year. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

Page 95

https://www.thepavilionproject.com/
https://www.thepavilionproject.com/


  CAB3190 
 

 

 

CAB3093; RIVER PARK LEISURE CENTRE – FUTURE USE OF SITE; 31 
OCTOBER 2018 

CAB3031; WINCHESTER SPORT AND LEISURE CENTRE – PROCUREMENT OF 
A CENTRE OPERATOR; 6 JUNE 2018 
 

Other Background Documents:- 

Proposals for a new pavilion at North Walls produced by The Pavilion Project. 

 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 - Results of public consultation: North Walls Engagement Event 22nd & 
23rd March 2019 

Appendix 2 – Plan of the site 

 

Page 96

https://www.thepavilionproject.com/


North Walls Engagement Event 
held on 22nd & 23rd March 2019 

 
 Feedback to Town Forum 

12 June 2019 

P
age 97



P
age 98



AIM OF ENGAGEMENT EVENT 

 Understand current use of North Walls open 
space. 
Provide confirmation to users that North Walls 
open space is secure. 
Inform users that WCC is in the early stages of 
considering the future of the wider site. 
Provide an early opportunity for input into the 
future for the recreation ground and its relationship 
with the wider site. 

 
 

 
 

P
age 99



THE ENGAGEMENT EVENT 

 Held on Friday 22nd and Saturday 23rd March 2019 
on North Walls open space. 
 Widely publicised including:  

individual letters to all home addresses within area  
individual invitations to known users of North Walls;  
social media;  
posters at park and area; and  
invitations to known community groups. 

 Format - manned stations which led attendees 
through all aspects of consultation.   
 Officers present to answer questions, to listen and 
encourage attendees to leave comments. 

 

 
 

 
 

P
age 100



FEEDBACK FROM THE ENGAGEMENT EVENT 

The event was attended by over 800 people over 2 
days. 

 
Overall atmosphere was lively, fun and engaging, 
with most attendees satisfied they had expressed 
their thoughts and concerns. 

 
 

 
 
 

P
age 101



RESULTS – WHERE DO YOU LIVE? 

68% 

6% 

6% 

4% 

4% 

2% 

4% 

St Bartholomews Ward

St Michaels Ward

St Pauls Ward

St Barnabas Ward

Out of district

Kingsworthy

St Lukes Ward

South Wonston

Littleton & Harestock

Headbourne Worthy

Badger Farm

Colden Common

Other

P
age 102



RESULTS – HOW DO YOU USUALLY GET TO THE 
RECREATION GROUND? 

 
 
 

58% 

19% 

13% 

8% 2% 

Walk Cycle Car Scooter / skateboard / roller blade Bus Other

P
age 103



RESULTS – WHICH ENTRANCES TO THE 
RECREATION GROUND DO YOU USE? 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Main
entrance
(Gordon

Road)

Park
Avenue

King Alfred
Place

Nuns Road Monks
Road

Hillier Way
(past the

rugby club)

Winnall
Moors

King Alfred
Terrace

Out

In

P
age 104



RESULTS – WHAT TIME OF DAY DO YOU VISIT? 

Morning 
42% 

Afternoon  
36% 

Evening 
22% 

P
age 105



RESULT – AVERAGE LENGTH OF EACH VISIT 

28% 

46% 

16% 

5% 
5% 

Less than 30 mins

30-60 mins

1-2 hours

2-3 hours

>3 hours

P
age 106



RESULTS – WHAT ACTIVITIES DO YOU ENJOY AT NORTH 
WALLS  

 

 
 

 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300
Daily

2-3 times a
week

Weekly

Monthly

Occassionally

P
age 107



RESULTS – FACILIITES ACCESSED WHEN USING NORTH 
WALLS OPEN SPACE 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Toilets Café Changing
roomss

Showers Lockers Water Vending
machines

First aid

Occasionally

Always

P
age 108



RESULTS – WHAT DO YOU MOST VALUE ABOUT THE 
RECREATION GROUND  

 

 
 

 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

P
age 109



RESULTS – WHAT DO YOU DISLIKE ABOUT THE 
RECREATION GROUND?  

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

200

225

250

275

300

P
age 110



RESULTS – SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENTS TO 
SPORTS FACILITIES. 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Path around
perimeter of

park

Outdoor gym Upgrade
pavilion

Fitness trail Improve cycle
track

Better pitch
marking /

maintenance

Have some
covered tennis

courts

Outdoor /
grass football

facilities

P
age 111



RESULTS – SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
RECREATION GROUND 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

P
age 112



RESULTS – SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 
OVERALL SITE 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

LIDO / open air
pool / splash park

Dry side type
facilities - gym,
studios, fitness

classes, spaces for
groups to hire

Cultural / Arts
Centre for music,

theatre, film,
dance etc

Extend green
space over leisure

centre site / car
park

P
age 113



RESULTS – NORTH WALLS SKATE PARK 

 

The skate park attracts a wider audience and the visit profile 
is different to the rest of the recreation ground.  For this 
reason, these results are being shown separately.   

Skateboarders come from a wide area including Eastleigh, 
Basingstoke, Portsmouth, Bournemouth and the Isle of 
Wight.  Users of the park generally visit only the skate park 
and do not use other areas of the recreation ground. 

The sample size was much smaller (ie around 30 people) so 
the significance placed on the results should be adapted 
accordingly. 

 
 

 
 
 

P
age 114



RESULTS – HOW DO YOU USUALLY GET TO THE 
SKATE PARK? 

39% 

30% 

21% 

5% 5% 

Skateboard

Car

Bus

Train

Walk

P
age 115



RESULTS – WHAT TIME OF DAY DO YOU VISIT THE 
SKATE PARK? 

16% 

18% 

41% 

25% 

Mon - Fri day time Mon - Fri evening Weekend day time Weekend evening

P
age 116



RESULTS – AVERAGE LENGTH OF EACH VISIT TO 
THE SKATE PARK 
 

12% 

28% 
60% 

1-2 hours

2-3 hours

>3 hours

P
age 117



SUMMARY OF RESULTS AND NEXT STEPS 
The site is a vitally important open green space supporting 
the health and wellbeing of local residents (both mental and 
physical). 

The site is primarily a local resource for local people and is 
generally meeting local need, although some minor 
improvements were requested.   

There are opportunities for additional facilities, but first it is 
necessary to develop a clear vision for the site. 

This vision will need to include a number of factors such as 
the relationship with the surrounding area, access points, 
the cricket pavilion, the need for toilets and a café and the 
management of existing facilities.   

 

 

P
age 118



Scale: 1:3000
Date: 14/10/2019
Drawn: AMurray
Dept: IMT/GIS
Doc:

River Park Leisure Centre Site

-

© Crown Copyright and 
Database Rights 

Winchester City Council 
License 100019531. 2019

Legend
Currently Developed Area
Area Managed by Winchester Town Forum

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

CAB3194 
CABINET  

 

REPORT TITLE: COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY SPENDING 
PROGRAMME  
 
23 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER:  Portfolio Holder for Built Environment, Councillor 
Jackie Porter  

Contact Officer:  Corinne Phillips    Tel No: 01962 841906 Email 
cphillips@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  DISTRICT WIDE 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The City Council approved its Community Strategy Levy (CIL) Operational Review in 
September 2018 (CAB3071 refers) which put in place a revised process for the 
allocation of district wide CIL funds. The review introduced a new protocol for 
developing a rolling 3 year programme of schemes and included for the first time an 
annual bidding process for members, Parish Councils, community groups and other 
partners to submit detailed proposals for CIL funding, for infrastructure projects in 
their area.  

A total of £1m was set aside to support this community scheme funding process 
between 2019 and 2022. Bids would be reviewed by an informal CIL allocations 
panel (“Informal Panel”) in order to make recommendations to Cabinet. This report 
recommends those bids which the Informal Panel recommended should receive 
funding from the £1m CIL allocation, for approval by Cabinet as part of setting the 
rolling programme of schemes to be funded using CIL income.  

It should be noted that this funding scheme does not include the neighbourhood 
portion of CIL for city area, which is managed by Winchester Town Forum, and is 
subject to separate spending protocol. However, it is still possible for a scheme 
within the town to benefit from funding from the £1m set aside for community 
projects using district wide CIL income. 

The CIL regulations were amended in September of this year and a summary of 
these changes along with any implications for they way the City Council deals with 
CIL is attached at Appendix B. 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 12



 2 CAB3194 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Cabinet: 

1. Approve the rolling three year CIL spending programme set out in Appendix A 

to this report. 

 

2. Approve the allocation of £635,000 from Winchester City Council CIL income 

receipts as set out in Section 12.4 of this report and approves its expenditure 

under Financial Procedure Rule 7.4. This includes the allocation of funding for 

the twelve community led projects recommended by the Informal Panel, 

subject to any conditions stipulated and included in Appendix A to this report 

which includes the following specific projects 

2.1 Abbotts Barton and Hyde Scout Group – Scout and Community Hall    

2.2 Colden Common Parish Church- community facility improvements 

2.3 Colden Common Parish Council – Footway improvements and upgrades 

2.4 Durley Parish Council – Crossing point near school 

2.5 Littleton and Harestock Parish Council- Parkour sports facility 

2.6 Otterbourne Parish Council – Zebra Crossing facility 

2.7 Shedfield Parish Council – Sports pavilion extension and refurbishment 

2.8 Twyford Parish Council – Extension of community car park 

2.9 Twyford parish Council – Footway/Cycleway upgrade 

2.10 Upham Parish Council – Traffic calming and gateway scheme 

2.11 Wickham Parish Council – Play equipment and upgrade to sports ground 

2.12 Havant Borough Council – Completion of missing cycle link 
 

3. Approve bringing forward £135,000 of the CIL funded community projects 

budget from 2020/21 to 2019/20 to bring the total 2019/20 budget to 

£635,000. 

 

4. Approve the allocation of £675,000 from Winchester City Council CIL income 

receipts as set out in Section 12.6 of this report. This is for the allocation of 

funding for the three Council-led projects recommended by the Informal Panel 

subject to any conditions stipulated and included in Appendix A to this report 

which includes the following specific projects 

3.1 South Downs Way and Blackpath Access Works 

3.2 Station Approach Public Realm Improvements 

3.3 Chilcomb Sports Pavilion Improvements 

  

5. Note the Central Government revisions to the Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations 2019, as set out in Appendix B. 

 

Page 122



 2 CAB3194 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will be used to fund infrastructure 
investment that will contribute to all four core priorities of the Council Strategy  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The Protocol set out in CAB3071 identified a methodology for allocating CIL 
income to infrastructure schemes. The Council currently has collected 
approximately circa £10m of CIL receipts in total with a further £1.4m 
expected by March 2020. Of the total collected, the City Council has retained 
circa £6.4m, with the remaining apportioned to Parish Councils, Hampshire 
County Council (to September 2018) and Winchester Town Forum. To date, 
only a small amount of the WCC CIL collected has been spent (circa 
£265,000) however another circa £4.2m has been formally allocated for 
projects (See table 1 below).  This still leaves an estimated circa £1.9m of CIL 
contributions currently available.  £1m was allocated for the bidding process 
for proposals from parish councils and other bodies. If all the 
recommendations for the bids agreed by the panel are approved by Cabinet 
and therefore are incorporated into the rolling 3 year spending programme set 
out in Appendix A , there will be circa £380,000 remaining from the £1m which 
will be available for future community lead schemes  in the next two financial 
years (2020/21 and 2021/22). 

2.2 The CIL funded community projects budget of £1m is profiled £500,000 to 
2019/20 and £250,000 in each of the two subsequent years. It is necessary 
therefore to reprofile £135,000 from 2020/21 to 2019/20 to fund all of the 
recommended community projects detailed in appendix A. 

Table 1. CIL Income, commitment and funds spent, including funds 
transferred to Parish Councils and Hampshire County Council (to 19/9/18) 

Balances correct as at 18/09/2019: 

Allocation Due Received Allocated Spent 
WCC 

Balance 
of 

Received 

CIL Admin     142,968    444,177   286,202 286,202              0 

Parishes   289,990   900,967   900,967     N/A              0 

Town Forum     205,601    638,779     50,000       0    588,779 

WCC CIL  2,030,497 6,308,523 4,160,000 267,000 1,883,523 

HCC CIL       17,075 1,543,013 1,558,947     N/A      17,075 

Page 123



 3 CAB3194 
 

 

 

(to 19/9/18) 

TOTALS £2,686,131 £9,835,459 £6,956,116 £553,202      N/A 

 

NB The above figures are approximate. Parish Councils and Hampshire 
County Council are responsible for the allocation and spending of CIL funds 
transferred to them, therefore spent totals are identified as N/A above. A 
maximum of 5% of collected CIL can be spent on CIL admin per year. Any 
funding not spent on admin is not able to be rolled forward and is therefore 
added to the overall WCC CIL allocation.  

 

Table 2 WCC CIL Commitments and Spending 

Project  Allocated 

 

Amount 

Committed 

Spent 

Whiteshute Ridge   £   25,000 £  25,000 

New Road Swanmore   £ 185,000 £185,000 

Jubilee Hall Bishops Waltham   £   50,000  

Cycle/Pedestrian links Bishops  

Waltham 

  £   50,000  

Flood Prevention Works (Durngate)  £  178,000 £  57,000 

Flood Prevention Works (Durngate)  £  622,000  

Winchester Sports and Leisure Park  £1,800,000  

The Dean Car Park Alresford  £   250,000  

CIL Funded Community Programme  £  500,000  

CIL Funded Community Programme  £  250,000  

CIL Funded Community Programme  £  250,000  

 

TOTALS 

  

£4,160,000 

 

£267,000 

 

Page 124



 4 CAB3194 
 

 

 

Once the existing commitments and funds already spent are taken in to 
account there will be approximately £1.9m of WCC CIL funds remaining 
unallocated at present.   

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 The updated regulations governing CIL came in to force on 1st September 
2019. The bidding process was however undertaken under the regulations in 
force prior to this change. The Council’s Regulation 123 List (“R123 List”) 
specifies projects or types of infrastructure that the City Council intends will be 
or may be partly or fully funded by CIL contributions. The R123 List also 
separately identifies the infrastructure for which S106 contributions may be 
sought, as prior to 1st September 2019 CIL contributions and payments made 
under S106 agreements could not overlap.  

3.2 The R123 List is not a definitive statement of all the individual projects that 
might be funded by CIL. Most projects will fit in to one or other of the broad 
categories identified on the list, with the exception of transport projects. The 
R123 List therefore specifically lists those transport projects for which CIL will 
be used because they are unlikely to be funded from individual development 
proposals.  

3.3 The Terms of Reference which sets out the remit of the Informal Panel 
(referred to as the CIL Allocations Advisory Panel) and the membership is 
attached as Appendix C 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1  None 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 Whilst CIL income cannot be used to fund general maintenance of existing 
assets, or to remedy existing problems, it may be used to increase the 
capacity of existing infrastructure or to repair failing infrastructure if that is 
necessary to support development.   

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 The current priorities, protocols and R123 list were all developed in 
consultation with key partners. The bidding process was advertised as a news 
item on the City Council website in December 2018 inviting bids from parish 
councils and community groups. As a result, 22 bids were received, although 
the initial timescale for receiving bids was from January to March.  

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 Many of the bids agreed for infrastructure funding will have significant positive 
impacts on the environment including better pedestrian and cycle routes, 
open space improvements and investment in community facilities.   

Page 125



 5 CAB3194 
 

 

 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT 

8.1 None required 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None required 

 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Property 
Assets may not have 
capacity to cope with 
increased pressure from 
new  development 

 
CIL will be allocated to 
enhance capacity to meet 
increased demand in 
accordance with the 
agreed spending protocol. 

 
Communities will benefit 
from infrastructure that 
would otherwise be 
unfunded.  

Community Support 
Failure to deliver schemes 
using CIL income from 
new development could 
harm   the Council’s 
reputation with local 
communities particularly in 
areas where new 
development has taken 
place. 

Allocate CIL funds to 
projects using the agreed 
spending protocol and 
review the programme 
annually to ensure it is up-
to-date with deliverable 
schemes. 

Provide funding for 
community lead schemes 
which would otherwise be 
unfunded.   

Timescales 
Projects will not be 
delivered within a 
reasonable timescale 

 
CIL spending programme 
will be reviewed and up-
dated annually.  

 

Project capacity Lack of 
resources could hinder 
use of CIL funds to deliver 
much needed 
infrastructure. 

Use up to 5% of CIL 
income to provide 
administrative support for 
CIL collection and 
implementation.  

 

Financial / VfM 
Schemes coming forward 
for funding exceed CIL 
income.  

 
The assessment process 
will prioritise schemes 
within budget limits in 
accordance with the 
agreed spending protocol. 

 
Council could decide to 
increase provision to 
support ‘bid’ process for 
community lead schemes 
as additional CIL funds are 
collected.  

Legal CIL funds are not 
used in accordance with 
the allocations made for 
each approved project. 

Funding agreements or 
other mechanisms will be 
put in place to ensure 
funds are used in 

 

Page 126



 6 CAB3194 
 

 

 

accordance with agreed 
allocations and 
implementation of 
schemes will be 
monitored.  

Innovation N/A   

Reputation Failure to 
deliver schemes using CIL 
income from new 
development could harm   
the Council’s reputation. 

Allocate CIL funds to 
projects using the agreed 
spending protocol and 
review the programme 
annually to ensure it is up-
to-date with deliverable 
schemes. 

 

Other N/A   

 
 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 Background 

The City Council introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy in April 2014, 
and since that date approximately £10.5m has been collected with about 
£6.4m retained by the City Council (district wide CIL funds), which can be 
used to provide infrastructure required to support the growth planned in the 
Council’s Local Plans. A further £1.4m is due to be collected. The City Council 
has produced and subsequently updated a R123 List that outlines the specific 
infrastructure and broader schemes, for which CIL funding may be allocated. 
Currently CIL funding is apportioned the in the following way; 

 Up to 5% of CIL receipts can be used to cover administrative costs 
(this covers the cost of a CIL officer for the collection of funds and an 
implementation officer for distribution and monitoring of CIL) 

 15% of CIL from qualifying development is allocated to the relevant 
parish council (25% in the case of Denmead because it has an 
approved neighbourhood plan) 

 15% of CIL from qualifying development in Winchester itself to the 
Winchester Town Account for expenditure on infrastructure projects in 
the Winchester Town area, in accordance with their agreed spending 
protocol. This is the neighbourhood portion for the town area.   

 The remaining CIL receipts are used for both the delivery of priority 
infrastructure projects by the City Council, including the commitment of 
£1.8m to the new sports and leisure park, £800,000 to the Durngate 
Flood Alleviation scheme and the allocation of £1m by the Council on 
behalf of the community for investment into infrastructure for the wider 
District. There is a separate CIL administration process for the area of 

Page 127



 7 CAB3194 
 

 

 

the district within the South Downs National Park. The proposed 
programme of infrastructure projects is included at Appendix A. 

11.2 The City Council’s proportion of CIL funds must be spent on the provision, 
improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure needed 
to support the development of the area. It is intended to focus of the provision 
of new infrastructure and should not be used to remedy pre-existing 
deficiencies, unless they will be made more severe by new development. 

12 Summary of the Bidding Process 

12.1 One of the recommendations in CAB3071 agreed by Cabinet in September 
2018, was to allocate £1m of District CIL receipts to fund community lead 
proposals of between £10,000 and £200,000 over the next three years.  This 
was open to all, (members, parish councils, community groups etc.) and they 
were able to submit requests for funding between January and March this 
year, and for the following year up to 2022. Bids would be considered by an 
informal panel consisting of the Portfolio Holder for Built Environment, 
Strategic Director (Services) Strategic Director (Resources) and Strategic 
Director (Place). The panel would review the bids and make 
recommendations to Cabinet for formal approval based on the protocol 
agreed (CAB3071) which identified criteria for prioritising the allocation of 
district wide CIL income.  It was also proposed that bids for schemes 
promoted by the City Council itself along with other partners, like Hampshire 
County Council, could be assessed using the same criteria by the panel. 
These would not be funded from the £1m set aside for community based 
projects, and were not subject to a limit of £200,000, but had to meet the 
same criteria as the bids received from the parishes and other community 
groups. . 

12.2 The criteria used to evaluate bids were agreed in CAB3071, and is set out in 
table 1 below. 

Criteria (Projects to meet at least one of the following 
criteria) 

Yes/No 

Proposal contributes to the delivery of infrastructure schemes 
and requirements set out in the adopted Winchester District 
Local Plans (Parts 1 and 2) Council strategy or supporting 
strategies 

 

Proposal contributes to the delivery of key development sites 
in the District. 

 

Proposal is included in the R123 list  

Proposal is included in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan  

Proposal contributes towards the delivery of infrastructure by 
a provider (including the County Council) where it can be 

 

Page 128



 8 CAB3194 
 

 

 

satisfactorily demonstrated that the infrastructure would not 
otherwise be delivered i.e. that other possible funding 
sources are insufficient.  

Proposal levers in other funds that would not otherwise be 
available e.g. needed to match or draw grant funding 

 

Proposal offers wider as well as local benefits  

Proposal addresses a specific impact of new development 
beyond that which has been secured through a s106 
Obligation or a s278 Agreement 

 

 

12.3 In total, 22 external “neighbourhood-led” bids for CIL funding were received, 
and subsequently considered by the Informal Panel along with four internal 
“Council-led” bids. The meeting was held on 14th August 2019 and the 
minutes are attached as Appendix D 

12.4 The bids were considered against the criteria and discussed by the Informal 
Panel with advice from the Corporate Head of Regulatory, and the Service 
Lead for Legal. Of the 22 community bids, 12 were recommended for funding 
(some with conditions attached), subject to Cabinet approval, which would 
require total funding of £635,000. Due to the requirement for further 
information it was agreed to defer one bid to the next round of bidding which 
will open in January 2020. Nine bids were not agreed for funding for various 
reasons which are recorded in the minutes of the meeting attached at 
Appendix D.  

12.5 A range of schemes throughout the District were recommended for funding, 
which had wider as well as local benefits, including highway schemes and 
recreational facilities. The highway schemes recommended for funding 
included footway/cycleway improvements, pedestrian crossings, traffic 
calming and village gateways. The recreational facilities recommended for 
funding included extensions and improvements to existing community 
buildings, play equipment and allocations towards new community buildings. 
The schemes were spread geographically from Wickham to Littleton and 
included Durley, Colden Common, Shedfield, Twyford and Otterbourne.  

12.6 Of the four bids submitted by the City Council, three were recommended for 
funding by the panel  with preliminary agreement for one bid (Appendix A) 
The three recommended bids include the improvement of the footpath link 
between South Downs Way and Blackpath, public realm access 
improvements from the train station to the city centre and the refurbishment 
and enhancement of the pavilion and facilities at Chilcomb Sports Ground. 
These three projects would require funding of £675,000 from the remaining 
CIL funding. The timescale for some of the Council-led projects considered by 
the Informal Panel are quite lengthy and it is anticipated that further CIL 
funding would have been collected by the time all the funding is required. 

Page 129



 9 CAB3194 
 

 

 

13 Conclusion 
 

13.1 The allocation and monitoring of CIL is an evolving process and the recent  

Government changes to the legislation will have an impact on the way the 
allocation of funds is monitored and reported going forwards. The process of 
allocation must therefore be consistent and transparent. The bids submitted 
have been carefully appraised by the Informal Panel against the criteria which 
was agreed and adopted to support the allocation of CIL funds and to 
prioritise spending, as part of a three year programme of schemes.  
If approved by Cabinet, £635,000 of the £1m allocated for the Parish bids, 
would be committed to those schemes identified for approval by the Informal 
Panel. This would allow £365,000 to be rolled forward to the next round of 
bidding which would take place between January and March 2020. The 
Council-led bids recommended for approval by the panel would require 
£675,000 to be allocated from the remaining WCC CIL funds.  

 
 
14 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

14.1 The bidding process and subsequent consideration of the bids by the Informal 
Panel were previously agreed by Cabinet.  As the purpose of this report is to 
seek approval from Cabinet for the recommendations made by the Informal 
Panel, it was not necessary for other options to be considered. This forms part 
of the process for agreeing a 3 year programme of CIL funding for 
infrastructure schemes.    

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

CAB3071 - Community Infrastructure - Operational Review dated 19th 
September 2018 

Other Background Documents:- 

 None 

 

 APPENDICES: 

A. Community Infrastructure Levy Scheme Programme  

B. Summary of Revised Community Infrastructure Regulations (2019) 

C    Legal Terms of Reference  

D    Minutes of the Informal Panel Meeting 

Page 130



1 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                               CAB3194 

Appendix A 

Proposed CIL spending programme (including those previously agreed by Cabinet) 

 

Location Est.Year 

of 

Implem’n 

Scheme Est. 

total 

cost 

CIL 

contitri’n 

In 

R123 

/IDP      

Delivering 

Organisat’n 

Comments 

 

Completed Schemes 

Whiteshute 

Ridge 

2017 Pedestrian/cycle 

access link                         

 £23k Yes         City Council (CAB2962 refers) 

New Road 

Swanmore 

2018 Refurbishment of 

recreation ground 

 £183k Yes Parish 

Council 

(CAB2807 refers) 

 

Schemes yet to start for which funding has already been allocated  

Jubilee Hall 

Bishops 

Waltham 

Not before 

2020 

Extension of car 

park 

c£150k £50k Yes Parish 

Council 

(CAB2962 refers) Funding has been 

allocated but to date there have been 

issues with raising the remaining 

funds required. It should be noted 

that originally the car park was to be 

managed by the City Council with 

P
age 131



2 
 

£50,000 allocated from the Parking 

Reserve.  It is understood that the 

intention is now that the parish will 

manage the car park. This means 

that the parking reserve allocation 

will need to be reviewed but it is 

recommended that the CIL funding is 

appropriate and the scheme remains 

in the programme. 

Winchester 2020 Durngate Flood 

alleviation scheme 

 £800k  City Council (CAB2962 refers)  

The Dean 

Alresford 

Not before 

2020/2021 

Provision of public 

car park 

c£1m £250k Yes Town Council (CAB2962 refers) 

Bishops 

Waltham 

Not before 

2018/ 

2019 

Southern 

footpath/cycle link 

c£500k £50k Yes  (CAB2962 refers) 

Winchester 

 

2021 

 

Winchester Sport 

and Leisure Park 

 

 £1.8m Yes City Council 

 

(CAB3123 refers) 

 

 

 

 

P
age 132



3 
 

 

Schemes Removed From Programme 

Wickham 2018/ 

2019 

Drainage 

improvements to 

foul and surface 

water systems 

 c£1m £250k Yes  Environment 

Agency/Water 

Company 

(CAB3123 refers) Southern water 

have confirmed that a scheme will be 

funded by developers as part of new 

development in Wickham 

 

Community Bids Recommended by the Informal Panel on 14/08/2019 

Abbotts 

Barton and 

Hyde Scout 

Group 

2019/ 

2020 

New Scout 

building and 

community facility 

c£600k £200k Yes Abbotts 

Barton and 

Hyde Scout 

Group (6th 

Winchester) 

The scheme would provide wider 

community benefits and will help 

address the impact of new 

development. Planning permission is 

required for the scheme to progress.  

Colden 

Common 

2019/ 

2020 

Improvement of 

Church community 

facilities 

c£85k £17k Yes Colden 

Common 

Church 

There is ongoing significant growth in 

Colden Common. Improved facilities 

(toilets, kitchen and children’s play 

zone) at the church will support the 

wider community 

Colden 

Common 

2019/ 

2020 

Upgrade and 

improvement of 

footways and 

pedestrian links 

c£90k £25k Yes Parish 

Council 

There is ongoing significant growth in 

Colden Common and improved 

footway links are party of a wider 

plan for which HCC are also 

P
age 133



4 
 

providing funding 

Durley 2019/ 

2020 

Crossing point 

near Primary 

School 

£10k £10k Yes Parish 

Council 

The scheme for a crossing point near 

the school is supported by HCC, 

Although Durley itself has no 

development, there are large 

housing developments nearby which 

impact on traffic volumes in Durley 

Littleton and 

Harestock 

2019/ 

2020 

Provision of 

Parkour sports 

facility 

£18k £18k Yes Parish 

Council 

 

The scheme would enhance play 

facilities for older age groups and 

has wider benefits. There is 

development nearby. (Kings Barton) 

Otterbourne 2019/ 

2020 

Zebra Crossing Not yet 

known 

£50k Yes HCC/Parish 

Council 

Data and design to be finalised by 

HCC. Exact cost of the scheme 

unknown 

Shedfield 2019/ 

2020 

Extension and 

enhancement of 

sports pavilion 

c£300k £100k Yes Parish 

Council 

There is development planned for 

the wider area so the facilities would 

have a wider benefit 

Twyford 2019/ 

2020 

Extension of 

community car 

park 

c£290k £65k Yes Parish 

Council 

The scheme would have a wider 

benefit and may help alleviate wider 

highway issues associated with 

parking in the vicinity 

Twyford 2019/ 

2020 

Upgrade and 

improvement of 

footway to 

c£110 £50k Yes Parish 

Council 

The scheme would have a wider 

benefit and supports the delivery of 

P
age 134



5 
 

cycleway the Council Strategy 

Upham 2019/ 

2020 

Traffic calming 

and enhanced 

signing 

c£50k £25k Yes Parish 

Council/HCC 

The scheme is being developed with 

HCC. Development on the B2177 

corridor (Bishops Waltham, Waltham 

Chase and Colden Common) will 

impact upon traffic volumes in 

Upham 

Wickham 2019/ 

2020 

New play 

equipment and 

upgrade of 

recreation ground 

c£100k £20k Yes Parish 

Council 

Significant development is planned 

for Wickham which has a shortfall of 

children’s play space in the LPP2 

Open Space Strategy 

Havant 2019/ 

2020 

Completion of 

missing cycle 

route link 

c£110k £55k Yes  The scheme will improve connectivity 

between Waterlooville and 

Denmead. There has been 

significant development in the area. 

Havant BC will match fund the 

scheme 

 

Winchester City Council Bids Recommended by the Informal Panel on 14/08/19 

Winchester 2019/ 

2020 

South Downs Way 

and Blackpath 

access works 

£35k £35k Yes City Council The Scheme will provide better 

pedestrian links to the new leisure 

centre and playing fields from 

Winnall and Highcliffe 

P
age 135



6 
 

Winchester 2019/ 

2020 

Public Realm 

improvements 

linking station and 

city centre 

c£4.7m £500k Yes City 

Council/HCC 

The scheme aims to improve access 

for pedestrians and cyclists and 

encourage the use of public 

transport. Much of the scheme will 

be funded by a LEP grant awarded 

28/03/19 

Chilcomb 

 

2019/ 

2020 

 

Chilcomb Sports 

Ground Pavilion 

improvement 

 

£135k 

 

£135k 

 

Yes 

 

City Council 

 

The site was acquired from HCC last 

year and requires improvement. The 

facility will have wider as well as 

local benefits and supports Local 

Plan policies. 

 

P
age 136



                                                                                                                       CAB3194 

Appendix B 

Brief Summary of Changes to CIL Regulations with effect from 1st September 2019 

 

The main changes to the CIL Regulations are; 

 The removal of the requirement to consult on a preliminary charging schedule 

which reduces the stages for consultation to one. This will make it faster and 

simpler to introduce or amend CIL, but charging authorities will need to be 

clear about how the response to consultations have been taken into account. 

Charging authorities are required to invite representations from consultation 

bodies, including adjoining planning authorities, County Councils and 

neighbourhood forums.  

 Planning authorities are required to consult before ceasing to charge CIL 

 Currently the number of planning obligations (s106) that can be used to fund a 

single infrastructure project is limited to five. The new regulations allow 

greater flexibility over the use of CIL and s106 planning obligations, with the 

restrictions on pooling removed. This means that both CIL and s106 will be 

able to be used to provide for the same item of infrastructure.  

 There are detailed technical changes to how CIL is calculated on amended 

consents. One of these changes ensures that where planning permission is 

altered, and a new CIL liability is created, the most recent CIL rate is only 

charged on the altered area.  

 Developments which are otherwise exempt from CIL, which include residential 

extensions and self-build housing will not lose that exemption when failing to 

notify an authority when a development has commenced. The penalty for 

developers failing to submit a commencement notice is reduced to 20% of the 

charge or £2500, whichever is lower.  

 The current Regulation 123 lists will be replaced by Infrastructure Funding 

Statements (IFS). Collaborative working between County Councils and 

charging authorities will be especially important in relation to the preparation 

of the IFS, as County Councils are responsible for the delivery of key strategic 

infrastructure. The IFS should identify infrastructure needs, the potential cost 

and anticipated developer contributions. Parish Councils who have received 

CIL funding will also have to produce an IFS stating how they have used CIL. 

The IFS should identify the choices made by the authority in relation to how 

the contributions have been used. 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

                                                                       CAB3194 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 2010 (CIL) 

ALLOCATIONS ADVISORY PANEL (“CAAP”) 

Terms of Reference  

17 September 2019 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 and the CIL Regulations 2010 local authorities across 

England are empowered to collect CIL payments required for infrastructural 

development and upgrades in order to support development within their respective 

administrative areas. 

 

1.2 The money collected from the imposition of Winchester City Council’s approved CIL 

Charging Schedule and associated Regulation 123 List supports the delivery of 

infrastructure across the district of Winchester City Council and provides crucial 

financial support for the four delivery targets in the Core Strategy, Local Plan, 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) and the defined infrastructural needs of local 

communities up to 2031. 

 

1.3 The allocation of CIL receipts is divided into several streams which are explained in 

more detail under the CAB2569 approval by Cabinet in March 2014 which sets out 

how CIL receipts will be broadly allocated to infrastructural demands of the district as 

identified in the CIL 123 List and to properly identified local neighbourhood and 

parish infrastructural demands.  

 

1.4 The Council’s most up to date CIL Protocol contains details on the nomination 

process whereby members, parish councils, community groups and other 

development partners will be encouraged to submit detailed proposals for CIL 

funding in their area of between £10,000 and £200,000. £1m of CIL income in total is 

proposed to be set aside to support this process between 2019 and 2022. It is also 

proposed that all proposals for the “District CIL” element of the programme (whether 

from Council teams, statutory providers or other partners) should be assessed using 

the same criteria. The CAAP Terms of Reference will establish these allocations 

criteria and the CAAP shall act as an advisory panel only with Cabinet being 

authorised to take the final decision in each case. 

 

1.5 The authority for the establishment, membership and Terms of Reference of the 

Council’s CIL Allocations Advisory Panel (“CAAP”) is based in the Cabinet approved 

Community Infrastructure Levy – Operational Review report of Portfolio Holder for 

the Built Environment, Cllr. Caroline Brook dated 19 September 2018. Details about 

Page 139



2 
 

the current levels of CIL receipts and the allocation plans are found within this report 

and will be used to inform the decisions of the CAAP. 

 

 

2. Membership 

 

2.1 The CAAP which is an informal advisory panel of senior officers shall include, but not 

be limited to: the Portfolio Holder for Built Environment; the Strategic Director 

(Services); the Strategic Director (Resources), the Strategic Director (Place) and 

may include, but not necessarily, a willing representative from Hampshire County 

Council. 

 

2.2 The panel shall review valid CIL allocation proposals properly received and make 

recommendations to Cabinet which will have the final decision. 

 

2.3 Three members of the CAAP shall constitute a quorum for each sitting of the panel. 

 

2.4 A member who brings their own CIL allocation proposal may not sit as a member of 

the panel for the session (or part thereof) where that proposal is considered by the 

CAAP but he/she may appoint a substitute. 

 

2.5 In the event of a panel member’s absence from a sitting of the CAAP no substitute 

shall be allowed to sit instead, except where it is done so as a result of 2.4 above. 

 

2.6 In the event that the panel member titles referred to in 2.1 above are amended from 

time to time, the substantive holder of the post, or equivalent post, shall qualify 

instead. 

 

3. Meetings 

 

3.1 The CAAP shall convene as and when it is necessary to consider allocation 

nominations that have been received in the intervening period. 

 

3.2 The date and times for the meeting of the panel shall be distributed to members of 

the panel in advance of the meeting with an agenda and list of allocation 

nominations to be considered and advice given. 

 

3.3 The CAAP is not a formally constituted sub-committee and has no decision-making 

authority, therefore, sessions are not required to be held in public and public 

attendance and participation is not necessary before the panel. 

 

3.4 The informal advice of the CAAP shall be captured in the record of the meetings and 

a recommendation recorded for Cabinet to consider at its next convening. 

 

Page 140



3 
 

3.5 A meeting is not required for amendments or updates to any of the allocation 

proposals that may arise from time to time and these may be circulated by email if 

the CAAP members agree. 

 

 

 

4. Terms of Reference 

 

4.1 The CAAP shall be responsible for reviewing valid CIL allocation nominations 

received by the Council from time to time against the Council’s formal infrastructural 

strategies and plans dealing with the allocation and spending of CIL monies, 

 

4.2 The Cabinet decided under CAB3071 in September 2018 to adopt the following CIL 

allocation criteria and compliance (or not) with these criteria will inform the advice 

and recommendation of the CAAP: 

 

 

4.2.1 Proposal contributes to the delivery of infrastructure; 

4.2.2 Schemes and requirements set out in the adopted Winchester District Local 

Plans (Parts 1 and 2), Council Strategy or supporting strategies; 

4.2.3 Proposal contributes to the delivery of key development sites in the District; 

4.2.4 Proposal is included in the CIL Reg. 123 List; 

4.2.5 Proposal is included in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP); 

4.2.6 Proposal contributes towards the delivery of infrastructure by a provider 

(including the County Council) where it can be satisfactorily demonstrated 

that the infrastructure would not otherwise be delivered, i.e. that all other 

possible funding sources are insufficient; 

4.2.7 Proposal levers in other funds that would not otherwise be available, e.g. 

needed match or draw grant funding; 

4.2.8 Proposal offers wider as well as local benefits; 

4.2.9 Proposal addresses a specific impact of new development beyond that 

which has been secured through a s106 planning obligation or s278 

highways agreement 

 

4.3 Once a full review of the information provided in support of the allocation proposal 

has been made the CAAP shall determine whether it is going to recommend the 

approval of the proposed spending of CIL monies to Cabinet. 

 

4.4 Once there is consensus amongst members of the CAAP a recommendation in the 

form of advice to Cabinet must be resolved and recorded by the CAAP in writing. 

 

4.5 Recommendations of the CAAP may take into account the nature of the 

infrastructural requirement, the value of the proposed spend and the proportion of 

CIL monies that the proposal represents in relation to the four primary allocation 

strategies of the Council and the financial limitations set out in 4.6 below. 

 

Page 141



4 
 

4.6 To enable the CAAP to make a fully informed recommendation, the panel shall be 

entitled to consult any party associated with a nomination for further information to 

enable the CAAP to better understand the proposal. 

 

4.7 Only nominations which are valued between £10,000 and £200,000 in respect 

nominations by members, parish councils, community groups and other 

development partners will be considered by the CAAP and the maximum amount of 

CIL spending that the CAAP may make recommendations for is £1,000,000 in total. 

 

4.8 Nominations of any amount for the “District CIL” element of the programme 

(whether from Council teams, statutory providers or other partners) will be 

considered by CAAP and assessed using the same criteria. 

 

4.8.1 In the event that the CAAP considers an allocation proposal during a period 

where one or more of the Council’s infrastructural or policy plans is under 

review the recommendation of the CAAP shall take into account the prevailing 

strategy, policy or plan, as the case may be, EXCEPT where the imminent 

strategy, policy or plan is at such an advanced stage that it carries sufficient 

material weight to affect the recommendation. 

 

4.9 Where the CAAP has made a recommendation on an allocation proposal and 

it later transpires that some or all of the information provided as part of the 

nomination is false or misleading the CAAP shall be entitled to withdraw or 

amend its recommendation. 

 

4.10 The CAAP shall also be entitled to consider amendments, updates or an 

adjustment to any nomination(s) by email if agreed by members of the CAAP. 

 

 

5. Review  

 

5.1 These CAAP Terms of Reference shall be reviewed and if necessary amended 

annually and may also be amended from time to time when it is expedient to do so. 

 

August 2019 

Page 142



                                                                                                                     CAB3194 
 

Winchester District Community Infrastructure Levy Informal Panel Meeting 
 

14 August 2019 at 4.30pm 
 

 Broadway Room, City Offices. 
 

 
 
Minutes of the meeting 
 
Present:  
 
Councillor J Porter (Chair) (JP) 
Joseph Holmes (Strategic Director; Resources)(JH) 
Richard Botham (Strategic Director; Services)(RB) 
Chas Bradfield (Strategic Director; Place)(CB) 
Simon Finch (Corporate Head of Regulatory)(SF) 
Catherine Knight (Service Lead – Legal)(CK) 
James Leibetrau (Senior Planning Attorney)(JL) 
Corinne Phillips (CIL Implementation Officer)(CP) 
 
Apologies: Apologies were received from a representative of Hampshire County 
Council, who was invited to attend.  
 
Minutes 
 
1) Terms of Reference 

 
The legal Terms of Reference for the allocation of CIL funding by the CIL 
Allocations Advisory Panel (CAAP)were circulated to the Panel. It was agreed 
that the Terms of Reference will be amended to cover the allocation of funding for 
WCC District-Wide bids which can be of any value. The Parish Bids (including 
bids by members, parish councils, community groups and development partners) 
are up to a maximum value of £200,000 with a minimum value of £10,000 but RB 
clarified that the WCC bids will not be limited to this amount and can be of any 
amount.  CK clarified that the role of the panel was to resolve to recommend 
approval of the bids that met the criteria, and not to consider matters related to 
the actual ‘deliverability’ of the bids. The WCC District-Wide and the Parish Bids  
will be assessed according to the same criteria as set out in the Terms of 
Reference.   

 
2) Criteria 

 
The bids must meet at least one of the specified criteria, as set out and agreed in 
CAB3071. Perhaps for future rounds of bidding the deliverability of a scheme can 
be included as one of the criteria. The current application form would have to be 
amended to reflect this. (CP to discuss with SF) 

 

Page 143



3) Assessment of bids. 
 
Parish Bids 

 
3.1      Colden Common Parish Church.  

Bid for funding of £17,000 for the improvement of the toilets, kitchen access to 
the building and introduction of a children’s zone. The bid meets the criteria as 
it is included in the R123 List and has wider community benefits. Bid 
recommended for approval by the panel.  
 

3.2      Colden Common Parish Council.  
Bid for funding of £25,000 for the upgrade and improvement of footways and 
drainage. The bid meets the criteria as contributes towards the delivery of 
infrastructure that would not otherwise be provided and is being funded partly 
by HCC so the CIL contribution is helping to lever in funds from elsewhere. It 
also has wider community benefits. Bid recommended for approval  by the 
panel 
 

3.3      Durley Parish Council.  
Bid for funding of £10,000 for the provision of a crossing point near Durley 
School. The bid meets the criteria as it is included in the IDP and broadly 
aligns with the R123 list. Although Durley has little in the way of new 
development within the parish, it is affected by large developments within 
Eastleigh Borough Council’s area, in close proximity to Durley. Bid 
recommended for approval by the panel. 
 

3.4      Littleton and Harestock Parish Council.  
Bid for funding of £18,000 for the provision of a Parkour facility (free running 
sports activity) The bid meets the criteria as it is broadly included in the R123 
list and will help to address impacts of new development beyond that secured 
by planning permissions (Kings Barton is an example in the area) There is a 
shortfall of categories of open space except for parkland/recreation grounds. 
Bid recommended for approval by the panel. 
 

3.5      Otterbourne Parish Council.  
Bid for funding of £50,000 for the funding of a zebra crossing on the main 
road through Otterbourne to facilitate pedestrian movements. The bid meets 
the criteria with regard to inclusion in the R123 list and the IDP. More 
information is required as to whether the technical criteria for a pedestrian 
crossing has been met (this is an HCC numerical criteria) Preliminary 
recommendation for approval in principle resolved by the panel pending 
further information becoming available. To be reviewed once more information 
is made available and final recommendation made. 
 

3.6      Shedfield Parish Council.  
Bid for funding of £100,000 for the extension and refurbishment of the sports 
pavilion. Broadly meets the criteria for CIL in terms of the R123 list and IDP. 
Bid was vague in terms of detail and further information is required. 
Preliminary recommendation for approval in principle resolved by the panel 
pending further information becoming available.  

Page 144



 
3.7 Shedfield Reading Rooms. Bid for funding of £24,000 for re-roofing of the 

Reading Rooms. This does not fall within the criteria for CIL funding as it is 
maintenance work. Not recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.8      St Swithun’s Church. Bid for funding of £100,000 for the provision of a car 

park. There was some discussion regarding the use of the proposed car park, 
which appeared to be for the exclusive use of the Church. There was not 
sufficient benefit for the wider community therefore this bid was not 
recommended for approval by the panel.  

 
3.9      Twyford Patient Participation Group. Bid for funding of £11,440 for the               
 provision of a social worker to assist patients. This does not satisfy any of the 
 criteria for CIL funding and was not recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.10   Twyford Parish Council. Bid for funding of £300,000 for a flood mitigation 

scheme  for Hazeley Road. Not only was this bid above the £200,000 limit for 
Parish bids but there was little detail submitted and as Twyford is within the 
South Down national Park area the bid was not recommended for approval by 
the panel. 

 
3.11    Twyford Parish Council. Bid for funding of £65,000 for traffic management for 

Dolphin Hill and Hazeley Road. There was insufficient detail to make an 
informed decision, and as Twyford is within the South Downs National Park 
the bid was not recommended for approval by the panel. Funding could be 
pursued within the National Park Authority. 

 
3.12    Twyford Parish Council. Bid for funding of £65,000 for an extension to the car 

park accessed from Hazeley Road near the doctors surgery and shop. 
Broadly meets the criteria for CIL in terms of the IDP and satisfies the 
prioritisation criteria in that the scheme has benefits for the wider community. 
Bid recommended for approval by the panel.  

 
3.13    Twyford Parish Council. Bid for £50,000 for the upgrading of the footway to 

cycleway along the B3335 through Twyford. Meets the criteria for CIL in terms 
of delivering much wider as well as local benefits beyond Twyford. It may also 
help to lever in other fudning. Bid recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.14    Twyford Parish Council. Bid for £10,000 for tree survey project work. This bid 

does not fall within the criteria for CIL funding and was not recommended for 
approval by the panel.  

 
3.15    Twyford Parish Council. Bid for £70,000 for a traffic management scheme for 

Finches Lane and Twyford Road. There was not sufficient detail to make an 
informed decision, on whether this would have wider benefits. As Twyford is 
within the South Downs National Park so funding could be pursued with the 
National Park Authority. The bid was not recommended for approval by the 
panel. 

 

Page 145



3.16    Twyford parish Council. Bid for £20,000 for a footway improvement for 
Hazeley Road. There was not sufficient detail to make an informed decision 
on this bid. As Twyford is within the South Downs National Park so funding 
could be pursued within the national Park Authority. The bid was not 
recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.17    Upham Parish Council. Bid for £25,000 for traffic calming on the B2177 

through the village. The bid broadly meets the CIL criteria in terms of 
delivering much wider as opposed to just local benefits and would help 
address traffic impacts of new development in the adopted Local Plan beyond 
that which would be secured by planning permissions. The scheme is being 
developed with HCC input. The bid was recommended for approval by the 
panel. 
 

3.18    Wickham Parish Council. Bid for £5240 for improvements to the access of  
Knowle Village Hall. Bid was below the specified minimum limit £10,000 
required. Bid was not recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.19    Wickham Parish Council. Bid was for £20,000 to improve the recreation  

ground with new play equipment. The bid meets the CIL criteria in terms of 
the IDP and would help to address the recreational impacts of new 
development in the adopted local plan beyond that which would be secured 
through planning permission. Bid recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.20    Havant Borough Council. Bid for £55,000 for a missing cycle link from 
 Waterlooville to Denmead. The scheme will be match funded by Havant  

Borough Council so awarding WCC CIL funding will help lever in other funding 
and will address impacts of new development beyond that secured by 
planning permissions. The bid would also have wider benefits. Bid 
recommended for approval by the panel.  
 

3.21    Abbotts Barton and Hyde Scout Group (6th Winchester).  Bid for £200,000 for 
 a new scout building and community facility. The bid meets the CIL criteria in  

that it has wider community benefits and will address the impacts of new 
development beyond that secured by planning permissions. Awarding CIL 
funding will also help lever in other funds. There was some discussion on the 
lack of certainty around planning permission and the current lease 
arrangements. The bid was recommended for approval by the panel subject 
to planning permission being granted within 12 months of the date of the 
panel’s recommendation.  

  
3.22    Alresford and Cheriton Scouts. Bid for £200,000 for a new scout facility. The  

scheme is someway off being in a position where it might be delivered and 
requires more information for an informed decision to be reached. Suggested 
this bid is deferred to the next round of bidding.  
 
A total of £435,000 was agreed for district CIL bids. With a further 
£200,00 for the 6th Winchester Scouts subject to planning permission 
being secured which makes a total of £635,000. 

 

Page 146



 Winchester City Council Bids; 
 
3.23    South Downs Way/Blackpath. Bid for £35,000 for the improvement of the  
 footpath link (an additional £15,000 was requested for signing) The bid meets  

the CIL criteria in terms of addressing the impacts of new development 
beyond that secured by planning permissions and achieving wider benefits by 
improving linkages /sustainable transport routes. Bid recommended for 
approval by the panel. The additional bid for signing will need to be re-
submitted in the next round of bids. 
 

3.24    Central Winchester Regeneration. Bid for £500,000 for remodelling the lower 
High Street and Broadway. Total cost of the scheme is not yet fully known. 
The bid meets the CIL criteria in terms of the R123 List and the IDP. More 
information is required but preliminary recommendation for approval of the bid 
was resolved by the panel.  

 
3.25    Station Approach Public Realm Access Improvements. Bid for £500,000 for  
 improved pedestrian and cycle access to and from the city centre and the  

railway station. The bid meets the CIL criteria in terms of delivering 
improvements beyond that which could be secured by planning permission 
(development of Station Approach is included in the Local Plan) and will have 
wider as well as local benefits. The scheme supports the LEP funding already 
awarded for the public realm improvements. Accords with the Council 
Strategy. Bid recommended for approval by the panel. 

 
3.26    Chilcomb Sports Ground. Bid for £135,000 for the refurbishment and  

improvement of the pavilion which will enhance the offer at this location . The 
bid broadly meets the CIL criteria in terms of the R123 List and accords with 
the Council Strategy. Bid recommended for approval by the panel. 
 
A total of £675,000 was agreed for WCC CIL bids. If taken further, an 
additional £500,000 may be required at a later date for Central 
Winchester Regeneration.  
 

4) Service Agreement 
 

A Service Agreement will need to be drawn up for each community group 
awarded funding, which will detail how the money will be awarded to ensure 
transparency and accountability. (CP to Liaise with JL) There will also need to 
be a form of legal wording for those bids that have not been resolved to be 
approved in this round of bidding due to a requirement for more information, 
or a lack of certainty regarding the timescale of a scheme.  
 
 
The meeting concluded at 6.10pm.  

  
            
 

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

CAB3200 
CABINET 

 

REPORT TITLE: ADOPTION OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY WITH RESPECT 

TO HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES, DRIVERS AND PRIVATE 
HIRE OPERATORS 
 
23 OCTOBER 2019 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Jackie Porter, Portfolio Holder for Built 
Environment and Wellbeing 

Contact Officer:  Carol Stefanczuk    Tel No: 01962 848 188 Email 
cstefanczuk@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

At the Licensing and Regulation Committee on 19 September 2019, Members 
resolved to recommend for approval the revised Statement of Licensing Policy with 
respect to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire 
Operators (“the Policy”).  

Prior to publication, the revised Policy must be approved and adopted by the 
Cabinet. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Cabinet approve and adopt the Statement of Licensing Policy with 

respect to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private 

Hire Operators as set out in Appendix 1. 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 13



  CAB3200 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME 

1.1 The Policy relates to the fourth Strategic Outcome; ‘Improving the quality of 
the District’s environment’ by ensuring that all licensed drivers, vehicles and 
operators meet a high standard to protect the public and promote that 
Winchester is a safe and pleasant place to live, work and visit. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 The changes to the Policy and implementation do not require any additional 
resource implications and will be covered by the two officers seconded to this 
project. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The basis for determining the Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire 
Operators is set out in Part 3.3 of the Council’s constitution at paragraph 3.ii); 
Delegation of functions and Table D which provides that the Licensing and 
Regulation Committee is the correct forum for recommendation to Cabinet of 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire policies. Legal Services has reviewed the 
Policy.  

3.2 Statutory consultation is required and has been carried out with all 
stakeholders.  

3.3 Whilst a Judicial Review challenge is a possibility where there has been a lack 
of meaningful consultation; irrelevant information has been taken into account 
or relevant information has not been considered, as there has been full 
compliance with the correct procedures, the risk of a successful challenge is 
considered minimal. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 Two members of the licensing team have been seconded to the ‘Policy 
Review’ project to undertake the revision of the Policy. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 None  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 All licence holders were consulted on the proposed changes to the Policy with 
the consultation period held from 17 June 2019 to 31 July 2019. 

6.2 One comment was received which was acknowledged and referred as a 
recommended amendment to the Licensing and Regulation Committee on 
19 September 2019. Members agreed to the amendment.  

Page 150



  CAB3200 
 

 

 

6.3 Cllr Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for Built Environment and Wellbeing and 
Cllr Roger Bentote, Chairman of the Licensing and Regulation Committee are 
actively involved in the Policy review and attend the working party meetings. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 The Council’s Air Quality Action Plan will be considered as part of phase two 
of the Policy Review which will propose to reduce the size of vehicles and 
offer incentives to licence environmentally friendly vehicles. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 The Council is committed to offering a range of licensed vehicles for all 
customers. The current Policy requires all new hackney carriage vehicles to 
be wheelchair accessible; there is no proposal to change this.  
 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 Information and personal details of licensed drivers and operators are kept on 
a secure system and no changes are proposed. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Property N/A 
 

 

Community Support There is a working party 
involving the Portfolio 
Holder for Built 
Environment and 
Wellbeing and the 
Chairman of the Licensing 
and Regulation 
Committee. 

 

Timescales The reviewed Policy will 
take effect once adopted 
by Cabinet. 

 

Project capacity N/A  

Financial / VfM N/A  

Legal The Policy could be 

challenged by Judicial 

Review, but as the 

Council’s decision-making 

process is believed to be 
lawful, a challenge is 
considered to be unlikely. 

 

Innovation N/A  

Reputation The Council’s paramount 
consideration is to protect 

 

Page 151



  CAB3200 
 

 

 

the public. This Policy sets 
out what is required of 
new applicants and 
current licence holders in 
line with relevant 
legislation. 

Other N/A  

 
 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

Introduction 

11.1 It is accepted good practice for the Council to regularly review their Statement 
of Licensing Policy to ensure that it keeps up to date with legislative changes, 
changes recommended by the government or where the licensing authority 
considers amendments necessary to promote the safety of the public. 

11.2 The current Statement of Licensing Policy was reviewed and adopted with 
effect from 1 June 2017. 

Review of Policy 

11.3 The previous Administration tasked the licensing team to review the Policy 
with specific areas of interest; safeguarding, review of convictions policy, 
wheelchair training, payment methods, vehicle livery and CCTV. 

11.4 Officers have split the Policy Review into two phases. Phase one has been 
approved by the Licensing and Regulation Committee which is attached at 
Appendix 1 for adoption. This includes the requirement for safeguarding and 
wheelchair training and changes to the convictions policy in line with the 
Institute of Licensing’s Guidance of determining the suitability of applicants 
and licensees in the hackney and private hire trades. 

11.5 Phase two is in progress and will focus on vehicles in relation to age, type, 
environmentally friendly options, payment methods, livery and CCTV. A full 
consultation will be carried out including all licence holders, relevant 
groups/charities and members of the public, to ensure a wide range of views 
are received and considered.  

11.6 All licence holders were consulted on phase one of the Policy Review, with 
one comment received. This amendment was agreed by officers and 
approved by the Licensing and Regulation Committee on 19 September 2019. 

11.7 At the Licensing and Regulation Committee on 19 September 2019, Members 
resolved to approve the revised Policy, to be recommended to Cabinet for 
adoption. 

11.8 The reviewed Policy can be found at Appendix 1 of the report. 

Page 152



  CAB3200 
 

 

 

 
12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 None 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

LR527 - Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy – Phase One 
– Consultation Response – 19 September 2019 

LR520 Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy - Phase One 
Tip Top Taxis – 6 June 2019 

LR 495 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators – consultation 
comments – 16 March 2017 
 
LR 490 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators – 19 January 2017 
 

Other Background Documents:- 

Report of the Task and Finish Group on Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing. 

Institute of Licensing - Guidance of determining the suitability of applicants and 
licensees in the hackney and private hire trades – April 2018  

 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 - Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators V8 – reviewed June 2019 
 

Page 153

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=2089&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=1918&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=135&MeetingId=875&DF=16%2f03%2f2017&Ver=2
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=135&MeetingId=874&DF=19%2f01%2f2017&Ver=2


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Statement of Licensing Policy 

with respect to 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire 

Operators 
 

 
 

Version 8 – reviewed June 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winchester City Council 
City Offices 

Colebrook Street 
Winchester 
SO23 9LJ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 155



Contents                                            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

Contents 
 
Introduction 
 

Section 1 Page 1 

Hackney Carriage Vehicles 
 

Section 2 Page 3  

Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

Section 3 Page 5  

Hackney and Private Hire Driver Licences 
 

Section 4 Page 8 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Section 5 Page 14 

Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Section 6 Page 19 

Glossary 
 

 Page 24 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



1 

Section 1 - Introduction                      Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 This information is intended to provide guidance on the licensing 
requirements in the Winchester City Council district under the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847, as amended, and Part II of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Attention is also 
drawn to certain provisions of the Transport Acts 1980, 1981 and 1985, 
and Regulations made under the Road Traffic Acts. 
 

1.2 It is not intended to be an exhaustive or definitive statement of the law 
and all drivers, operators and proprietors  must familiarise themselves 
with the provisions of the relevant Acts, local byelaws and conditions. 
 

1.3 Winchester City Council is the Licensing Authority for hackney   
carriages, private hire vehicles, their drivers and private hire operators.  
 

1.4 Winchester City Council reserves the right to depart from this Policy if 
there are, in its reasonable opinion, exceptional or compelling reasons 
to do so. In addition, the Council may follow any current or subsequent 
recommendations made by the Institute of Licensing or any other 
national guidance issued. 

 
 
2 Enquiries 
 
2.1 All correspondence, applications and enquiries should be addressed to 

the Licensing Manager, Winchester City Council, City Offices, 
Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ. If you wish to see a licensing 
officer, an appointment can be made by telephoning / .01962 848 188 
 

3 Types of Licences 
 
3.1 A hackney carriage (taxi) may be used to ply for hire at an authorised 

taxi rank, pick up passengers when “flagged down” in the street, and 
when pre-booked. 
 

3.2 A hackney carriage may be licensed to carry up to a maximum of 
8 passengers. 
 

3.3 The number of saloon vehicles is limited. All other hackney carriages 
must be capable of carrying a wheelchair and passenger. In these 
cases the number of passengers which may be carried is reduced. 

 
3.4 A hackney carriage driver’s licence is a combined licence allowing the 

holder to drive both hackney and private hire vehicles. 
 

3.5 Hackney carriages are also regulated by Byelaws with respect to 
hackney carriages and conditions made by the Licensing Authority. 
 

Page 157



2 

Section 1 - Introduction                      Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

3.6 A private hire vehicle may only be pre-booked via a private hire 
operator. Such vehicles may not ply for hire or take bookings other than 
via an operator. 

 
3.7 A private hire vehicle may be licensed to carry up to a maximum of 8 

passengers. There is no requirement for such vehicles to be able to 
carry wheelchair bound passengers, although many do. 
 

 
4 Licence Fees 

 
4.1 The fees charged by the Council for licences cover Licensing 

Authority’s costs of administering the licensing process. Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Driver licences are issued annually for the 
first three years and then can be renewed for one year or three years. 
New Private hire Operator licenses are issued for one year and then 
can be renewed for one or for five years. All other licences are renewed 
annually. The fees are periodically reviewed. The Current fees can be 
found on the Council’s website at:  
 
www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 158

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing


3 
 

 
Section 2 - Hackney Carriages            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 

Reviewed June 2019  
 

5 Hackney Carriage Vehicles  
 

5.1 When first presented for licensing as a hackney carriage, the vehicle 
must be within certain age limits: 
 

a All vehicles, both saloon and purpose built, when licensed for the first 
time must be less than three years from the date of first registration. 
The vehicle must be renewed on a year by year basis at the discretion 
of an Authorised Officer.  
 

b All hackney carriage vehicles presented for licensing for the first time 
must be wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAV), except in cases where 
the vehicle is to replace an existing saloon vehicle which is already 
licensed. 
 

5.2 Purpose built and conversion vehicles should also be capable of 
carrying a wheelchair securely with seats that slide on rails, or 
individual seats that can be removed, or flip down seats, to allow more 
room for luggage and wheelchairs or both. The first row of seats behind 
the driver must not be a bench seat.  
 

5.3 All vehicles, other than saloons, must be capable of carrying a 
wheelchair and its passenger, and a minimum of three other 
passengers, and at least five passengers at any other time. 

 
5.4 A converted vehicle must meet “M1” specification and should have a 

certificate of conversion from a reputable company and a voluntary 
Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) application must be submitted to the 
DVLA. A converted vehicle will not be licensed without confirmation of 
this. Wheelchair accessible vehicles over 10 years of age from date of 
first registration do not require an IVA. 

 
5.5 Wheelchairs must be capable of being secured in the vehicle with the 

passenger in a forward or rearward facing position. 
 

5.6 Saloon vehicles must be capable of carrying four passengers. 
 

5.7 Prior to licensing, and annually the vehicle must undergo a mechanical 
inspection all vehicles over three years old from the date of first 
registration must be tested and pass an MOT. If the vehicle is under 3 
years old it will require a mechanical and condition test. These must be 
carried out at a testing station specified by the Licensing Authority.  
 

5.8 The Vehicle may be called in for inspection at any time by an 
Authorised Officer to ensure compliance. Failure to attend and show 
any documentation as requested may lead to suspension or revocation 
of licence under Section 68 of the Act. 
 

5.9 All vehicles must have at least four doors. Saloon vehicles must have 
four doors in addition to any tailgate. 

Page 159



4 
 

 
Section 2 - Hackney Carriages            Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 

Reviewed June 2019  
 

 
5.10 The engine capacity must be not less than 1500 cc. The Head of 

Licensing may depart from this section of the Policy where an applicant 
can produce evidence of a vehicle that has a similar power to weight 
ratio to a 1500cc vehicle, or, where the vehicle is environmentally 
friendly.  

 
5.11 All vehicles must be right hand drive. In exceptional circumstances a 

licence may be granted for a left hand drive vehicle. 
 

5.12 Where a licensed vehicle is involved in an accident and classes as a 
‘write off’ under Category  S or  N, all vehicles must pass a further 
mechanical inspection check by a nominated testing station or 
nominated vehicle inspector and all paperwork relating to the vehicle 
repair must be provided to the nominated garage or inspector. If the 
repair is likely to have affected the steering then a full steering 
alignment check must be completed prior to any inspection and all 
paperwork must be presented to any inspecting agent and to the 
licensing section before the vehicle is returned for use to carry 
passengers for hire. 
 

5.13 A temporary licensed vehicle may be required in cases where a 
licensed vehicle has been involved in an accident or is unusable for 
mechanical reasons. All temporary vehicles must be of the same 
type/category of vehicle that it is temporarily replacing and must comply 
with this section of the Policy. Any licence shall be granted for a 
maximum of two months. 

 
 

Page 160



5 
 

 
Section 3 - Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

6 Private Hire Vehicles 
 

6.1 When first presented for licensing as a private hire vehicle,  all vehicles, 
both saloon and purpose built, when licensed for the first time must be 
less than five years from the date of first registration. The Vehicle can 
remain in use for six years from the date of first registration after which 
it may be renewed on a year by year basis at the discretion of an 
Authorised Officer.  
 

6.2 A converted vehicle should have a certificate of conversion from a 
reputable company and will not be accepted without such a document. 
 

a In exceptional circumstances these age limits may be waived. For 
example, a classic car in excellent condition which will be used for 
special events.  

 
6.3 A converted vehicle must meet “M1” specification and should have a 

certificate of conversion from a reputable company and a voluntary 
Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) application must be submitted to the 
DVLA. A converted vehicle will not be licensed without confirmation of 
this.  Wheelchair accessible vehicles over 10 years of age from date of 
first registration do not require an IVA. 

 
6.4 Wheelchairs must be capable of being secured in the vehicle with the 

passenger in a forward or rearward facing position. 
 

6.5 All vehicles must have at least four doors. Saloon vehicles must have 
four doors in addition to any tailgate. 
 

6.6 Prior to licensing, and annually the vehicle must undergo a mechanical 
inspection and all vehicles over three years old from the date of first 
registration must be tested and pass an MOT. If the vehicle is under 3 
years old it will require a mechanical and condition test These must be 
carried out at a testing station specified by the Licensing Authority. 
 

6.7 The engine capacity must be not less than 1500cc. The Council or 
Authorised officer may depart from this section of the Policy where an 
applicant can produce evidence of a vehicle that has a similar power to 
weight ratio to a cc 1500 cc vehicle, or, where the vehicle is 
environmentally friendly.  
 

6.8 In exceptional circumstances an exemption certificate may be granted 
to dispense with the requirement to display the licence plate. This will 
only be granted where satisfactory proof of “executive hiring” has been 
received by the Licensing Authority. Satisfactory proof must be 
provided to the licensing department at application and thereafter when 
requested by an Authorised Officer. Failure to provide such proof will 
result in the exemption to display a plate being refused or withdrawn. 

 

Page 161



6 
 

 
Section 3 - Private Hire Vehicles and Operators 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

6.9 All vehicles must be right hand drive. In exceptional circumstances a 
licence may be granted for a left hand drive vehicle. 
 

6.10 Where a licensed vehicle is involved in an accident and classed as a 
‘write off’ under Category  S or  N, all vehicles must pass a further 
mechanical inspection check by a nominated testing station or 
nominated vehicle inspector and all paperwork relating to the vehicle 
repair must be provided to the nominated garage or inspector. If the 
repair is likely to have affected the steering then a full steering 
alignment check must be completed prior to any inspection and all 
paperwork must be presented to any inspecting agent and to the 
licensing section before the vehicle is returned for use to carry 
passengers for hire. 
 

6.11 A temporary licensed vehicle may be required in cases where a 
licensed vehicle has been involved in an accident or is unusable for 
mechanical reasons. All temporary vehicles must be of the same 
type/category of vehicle that it is temporarily replacing and must comply 
with this section of the Policy. A licence shall be granted for a 
maximum of two months. 
 

 
 
7 Private Hire Operators 

 
7.1 A private hire operator dispatches a private hire vehicle to a customer. 

An operator may have just one or a fleet of vehicles under their control. 
 

7.2 An applicant for a private hire operator licence must be a “fit and proper 
person” to hold such a licence.  
 

7.3 Pursuant to the Immigration Act 2016, applicants must prove that they 
have a “right to work” in the UK. Failure to provide satisfactory 
documentation will result in the application being refused. 
 

7.4 The Licensing Authority reserves the right to provide documentation or 
information to the Home Office where it is considered appropriate to do 
so in the interests of complying with legislation or to protect the public. 
 

7.5 An applicant must supply a Basic Disclosure from the Disclosure and 
Barring Service (DBS). The disclosure is required on application for the 
grant of a licence and every three years thereafter.  

 
7.6  A basic disclosure can be obtained from Personnel Checks  

www.personnelchecks.co.uk  Telephone 01264 355679. Alternatively 
through www.gov.uk Telephone 0300 0200 190. 

  
7.7 An applicant for a private hire operator licence who also holds, or is 

applying for a private hire driver licence, is required to have an 
enhanced DBS check when applying for the driver licence. Therefore it 

Page 162

http://www.personnelchecks.co.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/


7 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

will not be necessary for the applicant to have a further check for the 
operator application.  
 

7.8 All private hire operators must provide to the Licensing Authority, 
names and addresses of any staff employed to make the provision for 
bookings on their behalf. These staff (non licensed drivers) must 
provide a basic disclosure DBS certificate to the Licensing Authority 
prior to the start of employment. 
 

7.9 All new applicants must provide a copy of their complaints procedure 
which must be to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority prior to any 
licence being issued. A complaint procedure may be recorded on 
paper or computer and must show the Date, Name, Contact details, 
nature of complaint, how rectified and date and by what staff member. 
 

7.10 In order for the Licensing Authority to review the conduct of new private 
hire operator licence holders, new applicants will be granted a licence 
for one or five years. . The Council reserves the right to withhold 
issuing a five year licence where there are reasonable grounds to do 
so. 

 
  

Page 163



8 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

8 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
 
8.1 Ability to Communicate in English 
 
a Licence holders will need to be able to engage with passengers and 

must therefore be able to understand and converse in English to an 
adequate standard for this purpose. This is assessed by means of  an 
interview with a licensing officer and any test the Licensing Authority 
deem appropriate to ensure that the applicant is a ‘fit and proper’ 
person to hold a licence. 

 
8.2 Driving Licence 
 
a Applicants must be 21 years of age or more and have held a full driving 

licence for at least 12 months, granted by a country which belongs to 
the European Union or is within the European Economic Area (Iceland, 
Liechtenstein, and Norway are not in the EU, but are members of the 
EEA). An applicant from any country outside of these is required to 
pass a U.K. driving test and hold a full driving licence for at least 12 
months before re-applying. The Council reserve the right to assess 
every driving licence in line with Government or Institute of Licensing 
recommendations or national guidance. 

 
b All applicants must consent  to allow  the Licensing Authority to check 

their Driving Licence online: - The Authority will check vehicles the 
applicant is entitled to drive and any penalty points or disqualifications. 
Failure to consent to Officers obtaining this information shall result in 
the application being refused or current Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
driver’s licence being suspended or revoked. 

 
8.3 Entitlement to Work in UK  
 
a Pursuant to the Immigration Act 2016, applicants must prove that they 

have a “right to work” in the UK. Failure to provide satisfactory 
documentation will result in the application being refused. 

 
b The Licensing Authority reserves the right to provide documentation or 

information to the Home Office where it is considered appropriate to do 
so in the interests of complying with legislation or to protect the public. 

 
8.4 Assessing Applicants’ Fitness and Propriety 
 
a Applicants who were not born in the U.K. and/or have not lived in the 

U.K. for past 10 years continuously must supply a certificate of good 
conduct from their embassy, home country or from the country in which 
they have been living. .This may result in more than one certificate 
being required; for example if the applicant has lived in multiple 
Countries within the past 10 years. All Certificates must be written in 
English. If this is not possible from the suppling country the applicant 
must employ the services of a translation service. This service must 

Page 164



9 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

authenticate the certificate in English by confirming in writing to the 
Council with full details of any certificate supplied. 

 
8.5 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Check 
 
a All applicants must apply for an enhanced DBS check using the 

Council’s approved provider only. .Full information on how to apply for 
an enhanced DBS can be found on the Council’s website. A basic or 
standard DBS certificate will not be accepted.  
 

b Authorised Officers will review any convictions disclosed and this will be 
taken into account when deciding whether or not to grant the application 
in accordance with the Policy on Criminal Convictions. Any Authorised 
Officer may also contact the Police for further information surrounding a 
conviction, caution, arrest or any other police investigation that has 
involved the applicant. This information will be used when deciding 
whether an applicant is a “fit and proper person”. Such checks shall be 
carried out on initial application and during the course of a licence 
where there are sufficient grounds to do so.  
 

c Notwithstanding the Licensing Authority’s requirements for a Disclosure 
and Barring Service check, applicants MUST disclose full details of any 
criminal convictions (including any “spent” convictions under the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974), cautions, arrest or any other 
police investigation on the application form. Failure to disclose this 
information  that is subsequently disclosed under the Disclosure and 
Barring Service check or discovered by any other means will be taken 
into account when considering their application. Failure to notify a 
conviction on an application form is also a criminal offence and is likely 
to result in the application being refused.  
 

d The Licensing Authority strongly encourages drivers to register with the 
DBS online system. The applicant and any current driver must permit 
an Authorised Officer to check their DBS status at regular intervals at 
the discretion of the Council and in line with national guidance. . The 
Council may also authorise their current DBS provider to carry out 
status checks of any Council licensed driver’s DBS at regular intervals.  
A refusal by any applicant, current driver, Operator or Operator’s 
member of staff to permit regular checks of any DBS will cause the 
licence to be refused, suspended or revoked.  
 

e Where the DBS online system shows that there has been a change to 
the applicant’s record, a new enhanced DBS application will be 
required.  
 
In the case of renewals, where an applicant is unable to produce a 
satisfactory DBS certificate or online equivalent using the DBS update 
service, within one month prior to the expiry date of their current 
licence, the licence will not be renewed.  
 

Page 165



10 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

8.6 Safeguarding 
 

a All applicants must pass the Council’s approved Safeguarding 
Awareness training before a Driver or Operator Licence is granted.  The 
pass certificate must be submitted to the Council as part of the 
application process. 
 

b All Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Drivers licensed before 
25 February 2019 must pass the Council’s approved Safeguarding 
Awareness training no later than 31 October 2019.  Failure to do so will 
result in their Licence not being renewed, suspended or revoked. The 
pass certificate must be provided with the application to renew a 
hackney carriage and/or private hire driver’s licence.  
 

c All Operators licensed before 25 February 2019 must pass the 
Council’s approved safeguarding training no later than 31 October 
2019.  Failure to do so will result in their Licence not being renewed, 
suspended or revoked. The pass certificate must be provided with the 
application to renew a hackney carriage and/or private hire driver’s 
licence. 

 
d All Drivers and Operators will be required to update their safeguarding 

training upon the Council’s request using a Safeguarding Training 
Provider/assessment approved by the Council. 
 

8.7 Driving Standards 
 
a In addition to possessing a driving licence issued by a relevant country, 

all new applicants are required to undertake the Blue Lamp Trust taxi 
driving assessment test (or any other driving assessment or training, 
which the Licensing Authority considers appropriate) and produce a 
pass certificate.  
 

b Contract drivers licensed for Schools and Disabled Contracts are 
exempt from 8.7a above, where the contracting authority carries out its 
own assessment of driving standards which is to the satisfaction of the 
Licensing Department.  
 

c An Authorised Officer may require any licensed hackney carriage or 
private hire driver to undergo and pass a driving assessment test, or 
training, which is considered appropriate e.g. Blue Lamp Trust, where 
satisfied that the driver’s standard of driving or general conduct are 
such that an assessment is desirable. 
 
 
 

8.8 Wheelchair Assessment  
 

a Any Licensed driver who drives a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle must 
complete and pass an approved Wheelchair Safety Assessment with a 

Page 166



11 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

training provider approved by the Licensing Authority e.g. The Blue 
Lamp Assessment. A pass certificate must be presented to the 
Licensing Authority. 
 

8.9 Wheelchair exemptions  
 

a A wheelchair exemption may be granted to drivers who provide written 
evidence issued by a medical professional, that they are unable to 
safely secure a wheelchair bound passenger into their vehicle, to the 
satisfaction of the Licensing Authority.  

 
8.10 Knowledge Test. 
 
a All applicants are required to take and pass the Private Hire and 

Hackney Carriage Knowledge Tests. Tests are conducted by the 
Licensing Authority on a regular basis. The test will be conducted in 
English only.  Payment for the test will be made in advance and failure 
to attend without prior notice shall mean forfeiture of any monies paid.  
Information regarding the Knowledge Test can be found on the 
Council’s website at www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing. 
 

b An Authorised Officer may include additional modules to the knowledge 
test where it is considered appropriate or necessary to ensure that the 
applicant is a ‘fit and proper person’ and in the interests of public safety. 
 

c The pass mark for all tests is 80% in each section.  
 

d Where an applicant applies to work for an operator who does not 
primarily provide a service in the Winchester Town area (i.e the five  
Town Wards together with Oliver’s Battery & Badger Farm,  and the 
The Worthys), certain modules of the test may not be required. 
 

e Where an applicant or current driver opts to amend their working 
practices in order to work  primarily in the Winchester Town area  they 
shall notify the Licensing Authority and pass the relevant knowledge 
test prior to commencement. 
 

f Drivers licensed for School contracts and Disabled passengers only will 
only be required to pass modules which are relevant to the work that 
they will be undertaking. Where the contracting authority carries out its 
own assessment of the required knowledge, applicants are exempt from 
the requirement to undergo a knowledge test.  
 

g In circumstances where a licensed driver’s knowledge or conduct is in 
question, such as following a complaint, an Authorised Officer or 
Licensing Sub-Committee may require a driver to complete relevant 
modules of the knowledge test within a time specified. 
 

h An Authorised Officer may require current licence holders to pass 
relevant modules of the knowledge test where it is considered 

Page 167

http://www.winchester.gov.uk/licensing


12 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

necessary to ensure that they are a fit and proper person and/or in the 
interests of public safety. 
 

i An applicant who was previously licensed with this Council less than 
three years from the date of application who originally passed the 
knowledge test will not be required to re-take the knowledge test. 

 
8.11 Practical Knowledge Test 

 
a  All new applicants who have passed an approved Driving Assessment 

Test and knowledge test, may prior to, or after, a licence being issued 
be required to take a practical knowledge test. This test allows the 
applicant to prove that they have a practical knowledge of the area. 
Should the applicant demonstrate a poor knowledge of the area, they 
will not be issued with a licence and are advised to spend a reasonable 
amount of time driving around Winchester and surrounding areas, 
before making a further appointment to demonstrate their increased 
knowledge. 
 

b The licensing officer will determine whether an applicant has 
demonstrated a ‘practical knowledge of the area to which the 
application applies’.   

 
8.12 Medical Fitness 
 
a All applicants must undergo and pass a medical examination that meets 

the DVLA Group 2 Medical Standard of fitness to drive must provide a 
medical assessment form completed by the examining doctor. This 
must be provided to the Licensing Authority no later than 28 days from 
the date of the examination. 
 

b  A medical examination is to be carried out on initial application and 
every fifth year thereafter until the age of 65 years and every year 
thereafter.  

 
c The examination must take place at the surgery where the applicant is 

registered in order that the examining doctor has access to their 
medical records, or at another surgery provided that the examining 
doctor has access to the applicant’s medical records. 

 
d Any Authorised Officer  may require any licensed driver  to undergo a 

medical examination with an approved medical provider, where satisfied 
that a condition has arisen which might affect the person’s fitness to 
drive a licensed vehicle . This may result in the current driver’s licence 
being suspended or revoked. 

 
e Where the applicant has been diagnosed with Diabetes Mellitus, other 

than treatment by diet only, applicants must provide on renewal of their 
hackney carriage and/or private hire driver licence, or every 12 months 
in the case of a driver with a 3 years driver licence (when a medical 

Page 168



13 
 

 
Section 4 – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
 

  Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

report is not due) confirmation that they meet the Group 2 medical 
standards of fitness to drive in the form prescribed by the Licensing 
Authority. This must be signed by the applicant’s registered GP or a 
diabetic consultant.  

 
8.13 New applicants 
 
a If an applicant has not fulfilled all of the above criteria within 12 months 

of submitting an application to drive a hackney carriage and/or private 
hire vehicle, the application will be refused. 

 
b Where an applicant has been refused a licence due to failing the 

knowledge test three times and not completing the above criteria within 
12 months, applicants must wait no fewer than 3 months from the date 
of refusal before re-submitting an application for a licence to drive a 
hackney carriage and/or private hire vehicle. 
 

8.14 Duration of licence 
 

a In order for the Licensing Authority to review the conduct of new 
hackney carriage and/or private hire drivers, new licences are granted 
annually for the first three years. After the initial three year period, on 
renewal, a licence may be granted for one or three years, depending 
on the case. The Licensing Authority reserves the right to withhold 
issuing a three year licence where there are reasonable grounds to do 
so. 

 
 

Page 169



14 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

9 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licences and Operators 
Criminal Convictions Policy  
 

9.1 This Policy applies to the following:- 
 
a Applications for a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s Licence; 
 
b Revocation of an existing Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s 
  Licence; 
  
c Suspension of an existing Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver’s 
  Licence. 
 

9.2 Each case will be decided on its own merits. All decisions will be in the 
interests of public safety.  
 

9.3 A Caution, Fixed Penalty or Community Resolution must be disclosed 
and will be assessed under the character of applicant or current licence 
holder if deemed appropriate. 
 

9.4 A person with a conviction for certain crimes will not normally be 
permanently barred from obtaining a licence but is expected to remain free of 
conviction for between5 and 10 years, depending on the seriousness of the 
offence and the relevant circumstances, before an application is considered. 
However, persons with convictions of a sexual or child-related nature or 
other very serious crime will not normally be issued with a licence.  

 
9.5 Winchester City Council reserves the right to extend the number of years 

free from conviction or caution depending on the severity and/or the number 
of offences.  

 
9.6 Offences will not necessarily be disregarded on the basis that they are 

“spent” convictions according to the relevant provisions of the Rehabilitation 
of Offenders Act 1974. These provisions do not apply to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Drivers but whether or not Winchester City Council 
considers that the safety of the public may be put at risk if a licence was 
granted. 

 
Offences resulting in Death 

 
9.7 Where an applicant or current driver has been convicted of a crime which 

resulted in the death of another person or was intended to cause the death 
or serious injury of another person they will not be licensed or will have their 
current licence revoked. 
 

Exploitation 
 

9.8 Where an applicant or current driver has been convicted of a crime involving, 
related to, or has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment 

Page 170



15 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

of another individual irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults 
or children, they will not be licensed or will have their current licence 
revoked. This includes slavery, child sexual exploitation, grooming, 
psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list. 

 
Offences involving violence 

 
9.9 Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence, or connected 

with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any 
current driver convicted of a violent offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 
 

Possession of a weapon 
 

9.10 Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any 
other weapon related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any 
current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 

 
Sex and indecency offences 

 
9.11 Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected 

with illegal sexual activity or any form of indecency, a licence will not be 
granted. Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence 
to be revoked. 
 

9.12 In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any 
applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any ‘barred’ 
list. 

 
Dishonesty 

 
9.13 Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or any 

offence where dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not be 
granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect 
their licence to be revoked. 

 
Drugs 

 
9.14 Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, 

or possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent 
to supply, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed 
since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted 
of this offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 

Page 171



16 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

9.15 Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to 
the possession of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years 
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. In these 
circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their 
own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. Any 
current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 
 

Discrimination 
 

9.16 Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with 
discrimination in any form, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years 
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Any current 
driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 

 
Motoring convictions 

 
9.17 Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged 

with the responsibility of carrying the public. Any motoring conviction 
demonstrates a lack of professionalism and will be considered seriously. It is 
accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single 
occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence 
or may not result in action against an existing licence. Subsequent 
convictions reinforce the fact that the licence holder does not take their 
professional responsibilities seriously and is therefore not a safe and suitable 
person to be granted or retain a licence. 
 

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs/using a hand‐held telephone 
or hand held device whilst driving 

 
9.18 Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the 

influence of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In 
these circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at 
their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 
Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be 
revoked. 
 

9.19 Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held‐hand mobile telephone 

or a hand‐held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at 
least 5 years have elapsed since the conviction or completion of any 
sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later. Any current driver 
convicted of this offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 
 

Other motoring offences 
 

9.20 A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve loss of 
life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobile 

Page 172



17 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

phone, and has not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any 
property (including vehicles). Where an applicant has nine or more points on 
their DVLA licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a licence will not be 
granted until at least three years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. 
 

9.21 A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above 
and also any offence which resulted in injury to any person or damage to any 
property (including vehicles). It also includes driving without insurance or any 
offence connected with motor insurance. Where an applicant has a 
conviction for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be 
granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this offence can expect 
their licence to be revoked. 
 

Hackney carriage and private hire offences 
 

9.22 Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or 
connected to hackney carriage or private hire activity (excluding vehicle use), 
a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since 
the completion of any sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this 
offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 

Vehicle use offences 
 

9.23  Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence which involved the use 
of a vehicle (including hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a licence 
will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the 

completion of any sentence imposed. Any current driver convicted of this 

offence can expect their licence to be revoked. 
 
9.24 Applications would not normally be approved from licensed drivers who had 

been convicted of an offence where the offence was carried out whilst the 
applicant was acting as a hackney carriage or private hire driver, or where 
commissioning of the offence related to the applicant’s driver’s licence 
 

9.25 The Licensing Authority may exercise discretion where an offence is isolated 
and there are mitigating circumstances. However, the overriding 
consideration in all cases is the protection of the public. 

 
9.26 An Authorised Officer may contact the Police for further information 

surrounding a conviction or caution and use this information when deciding 
whether an applicant is a “fit and proper person”. 
 

9.27 An Authorised Officer has delegated authority to issue Drivers’ Licences. In 
any case where he or she considers it appropriate, he or she may refer the 
application to the Licensing Sub-Committee for a determination as to 
whether or not an application for a licence should be granted or, where a 
licence has already been granted, whether that licence should be suspended 

Page 173



18 
 

 
Section 5 - Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences 
Convictions Policy 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

or revoked. 
 

9.28 The Licensing Authority accepts that where an applicant or licence holder 
has been found guilty of a criminal offence, the Court will have imposed what 
it considers to be an appropriate penalty for that offence. Accordingly, in 
considering convictions for such offences, the Sub-Committee dealing with a 
case should not ‘re-try’ any offence for which the applicant or licence holder 
has pleaded guilty or been found guilty by a court of law. However, it should 
take into account the type and nature of the offence, and the penalty 
imposed, and should bear in mind the fact that the paramount consideration 
is the protection of the public.  

 
9.29 For the same reason, offences will not be disregarded simply on the basis 

that the offender has served his or her sentence, and has therefore paid the 
appropriate penalty for his or her crime. In considering whether to grant an 
application for a licence, or to revoke an existing licence, the Sub-Committee 
will be determining whether or not   the public would be adequately protected 
should a licence be granted or not revoked, rather than whether to impose a 
penalty. 

 
9.30 The Licensing Authority considers that in determining applications for 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licences, or deciding whether to revoke 
or suspend such licences, the Sub-Committee proceedings  constitute 
“proceedings before a quasi-judicial authority” within the meaning of Section 
4(6) of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, and therefore, where the 
Sub-Committee hearing a case considers that justice cannot be done except 
by admitting evidence relating to spent convictions, such evidence may be 
admitted in accordance with Section 7 of that Act. Given the need to protect 
the public, it is likely that in the case of spent convictions involving serious 
offences. (e.g. death by dangerous driving, drugs, violence, sexual offences 
or offences of an habitual nature), evidence of such convictions will be 
admitted. 

 
9.31 It is an offence, punishable by up to seven years imprisonment upon 

conviction, for any person knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement 
or to omit any material details when giving information required in an 
application for a licence. With regard to questions concerning previous 
convictions, the applicant’s attention is drawn to the provisions of section 
4(2) of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.  This, in summary, provides 
that any such question shall be treated as not relating to “spent” convictions 
as defined in that Act. Applicants, applicants are also notified that Sections 4 
(2), and 6 and 7 of this Act provide that the Local Authority may admit 
evidence of “spent” convictions which are relevant in determining whether an 
applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence.  

  

Page 174



19 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

10 Enforcement and Compliance 
 

10.1 Holders of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators, Drivers and 
Vehicles licences are principally governed by the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town Police Clauses Act 1847, the 
Council’s Byelaws and Conditions. 

 
10.2 If Operators, Drivers or Proprietors of Vehicles commit an offence or breach 

of those rules, regulations or conditions of licence, persons involved may be 
asked to attend the Council offices for an interview and, when investigations 
are completed, may receive a letter detailing the outcome. A copy is placed 
on the person’s file. The outcome of investigations may result in immediate 
revocation or suspension of any licence, no further action,, penalty points 
being awarded, a formal warning or , referral to the Licensing Sub-
Committee and/or prosecution. 

 
10.3 The aim of a penalty points scheme is that it should work in conjunction with 

other enforcement options.  It provides a formalised, stepped, enforcement 
plan.  The purpose of the scheme is to record misdemeanours and to act as 
a record of a licence holder’s behaviour and conduct so as to ascertain 
whether they are a fit and proper person to hold a licence.  It does not 
prejudice the Council’s ability to take other action. 

 
10.4 The primary objective of the penalty points scheme is to improve the levels 

of compliance and help improve standards, and to ensure the safety and 
protection of the travelling public. 

 
10.5 Any penalty points imposed remain on a person’s record for a twelve month 

period.  This period is on a roll-forward basis, so as to allow any  points 
imposed 12 months or more earlier to be considered as spent and therefore 
excluded from the running total recorded against any individual  licence 
holder. 

 
10.6 In the event that a driver/owner/operator commits an offence or breaches a 

condition as listed in the penalty points table below he/she may be awarded 
the number of points applicable to the circumstances as shown in the table 
for the breach/offence. 
 

11 Issue of Penalty Points 
 
11.1  Breaches of conduct will be subject to investigation by Authorised Officers 

and may be reported to the Licensing Sub-Committee. Penalty points may 
be issued by an Authorised Officer. Alternatively, the Licensing Sub-
Committee can impose between 1 and 12 discretionary points as shown in 
the table. The points table is to be used as a guide only, the Authorised 
Officer or Licensing Sub-Committee can depart from this table to award 
points for any offence or behaviour that is not covered. 

 
11.2 Where a licence holder accumulates 12 or more penalty points in any 

12 month period, the matter will be referred to the Council’s Licensing Sub-

Page 175



20 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

Committee to decide whether the licence holder is a fit and proper person.  
The Licensing Sub-Committee may then revoke a licence, or issue a warning 
to the licence holder, depending on the circumstances. The Licensing 
Manager will have the discretion to revoke or suspend any licence 
immediately following receipt of information regarding a serious driving 
incident that involves any licence holder.  
 

11.3 Penalty Points will remain current for 12 months from the date the penalty 
points are issued.  Points issued to either the proprietor of a vehicle, operator 
or a driver will be confirmed in writing within 10 working days from the 
discovery of the contravention. 

 
11.4 The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take other 

action that it is entitled to take under legislation, byelaws and regulations. 
 

11.5 Any disputes regarding the issuing of penalty points will be referred to the 
Licensing Sub-Committee who will have the discretion to vary the points. 
However, in appealing to the Sub-Committee, drivers should be made aware 
that if the complaint is upheld, the Sub-Committee may decide to award 
more points than had been originally awarded.  
 

11.6 Where a driver wishes to appeal the issue of penalty points to a Licensing 
Sub-Committee they must inform the Licensing Authority, in writing, within 21 
days from the date of issue. 

 
11.7 If points are issued to a proprietor/driver for a matter which is also a criminal 

offence, eg bald tyres, no badge, those person(s) will not then be the subject 
of a prosecution by the Council. 
 

11.8 If a licence is revoked under this procedure, no new application will be 
considered until a period of 12 months has elapsed since the revocation. 

 

PENALTY POINTS TABLE 

   
Offence/Breach of Condition 

Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 

Driver Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

1  Providing false or misleading 
information on licence application 
form/failing to provide relevant 
information or the relevant fee 
(including dishonoured cheques). 

6   

2  Failure to notify, in writing, the 
Licensing Authority of change of 
address within 7 calendar days. 

3   

3  Refusal to accept hiring without 
reasonable cause eg drunk or rude 
customer 

1-12   

Page 176



21 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 
Driver 

Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

4  Unreasonable prolongation of 
journeys or any misconduct 
regarding the charging of fares. 

6   

5  Plying for hire by Private Hire 
drivers. 

9   

6  Failure to hold a current vehicle 
excise licence (road tax). 

9   

7  Using unlicensed vehicle or vehicle 
without insurance. 

12   

8  Failure to produce relevant 
documents within timescale when 
requested by an authorised officer. 

4   

9  Unsatisfactory condition of vehicle, 
interior or exterior. 

4   

10  Failure to produce MOT certificate 
when requested. 

6   

11  Failure to produce Hackney 
Carriage or Private Hire vehicle for 
testing when required 

6   

12  Failure to provide proof of 
insurance cover when requested. 

4   

13  Using a vehicle subject to a 
suspension order issued by an 
authorised officer or a police 
officer. 

12   

14  Using a vehicle for which the 
licence has been suspended or 
revoked. 

12   

15  Failure to report, in writing, within 
72 hours accident or damage to 
licensed vehicle, which would 
cause the vehicle to breach licence 
conditions. 

4   

16   Carrying more passengers than 
stated on the vehicle licence. 

6   

17  Failure to display external/internal 
licence plate or signs as required. 

4   

18  Carrying an offensive weapon in 
the vehicle. 

12  
 
 

19  Failure to notify transfer of Private 
Hire or Hackney Carriage vehicle 
licence. 

4   

20  Unnecessarily Idling of Hackney 
Carriage or Private Hire vehicle  

3   

Page 177



22 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 
Driver 

Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

21  Displaying unsuitable or 
inappropriate sited signs or 
advertisements in the vehicle. 

3   

22  Failure to use authorised roof light 
4  

 
 
 

23  Failure to maintain records in a 
suitable form of the 
commencement and cessation of 
work of each driver each day. 

4   

24  Failure to produce on request 
records of drivers work activity. 

4   

25  Using a non approved or non-
calibrated taximeter. 

6   

26  Obstruction of an authorised officer 
or police officer wishing to examine 
a licensed vehicle. 

12   

27  Displaying any feature on private 
hire vehicle that may suggest that it 
is a taxi. 

6   

28  Failure to carry an assistance dog 
without requisite exemption. 

12   

29  Driver not holding a current DVLA 
Licence. 

12   

30  Failure to wear driver’s badge. 4   

31  Failure to notify, in writing, a 
change in medical circumstances. 

6   

32  Unsatisfactory appearance of 
driver. 

3   

33  Failure to observe rank discipline.  
(Hackney Carriage) 

3   

34  Leaving an unattended Hackney 
Carriage on a taxi rank 

3   

35  Failure to maintain proper records 
of private hire vehicle. 

3   

36  Failure to keep or produce records 
of Private Hire bookings or other 
documents required to be kept or 
produced. 

6   

37  Misleading use of the words ‘Taxi’ 
or ‘Cab’ on advertising materials. 

3   

38  Failure to issue receipt on request. 
 
 

1-12   

Page 178



23 
 

 
Section 6 – Enforcement and Compliance 
 

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 
Driver 

Vehicle 
Owner or 
Operator 

39  Failure to return vehicle licence 
plate within 7 days after due notice 
following revocation or suspension 
of such licence. 

4   

40  Unsatisfactory behaviour or 
conduct. 

1-12   

41  Failure to notify the Licensing 
Authority, in writing, of any 
motoring or criminal convictions 
within 21 day of conviction or 
cautions during period of current 
licence. 

6   

42  Failure to give assistance with 
loading/unloading. 

1-12   

43  Failure to display fare card. 
3   

44  Failure to carry legal spare wheel 
and tools, or suitable tyre 
reinflation device. 

4   

45  Failure to attend punctually at 
appointed time and place without 
sufficient cause. 

4   

46  A licensed vehicle with a bald tyre. 
4 per tyre   

47  Failure to submit licence renewal 
application including documents 
and attendance at a vehicle 
inspection. 

6   

48  Failure to comply with any other 
conditions 

3   

49  Waiting or stopping on a double 
yellow line area, restricted parking, 
bus stop or private land (without 
the owner’s permission) unless 
requested by a paying customer 
present in the vehicle. 

3   

50  Use of hand held mobile device (eg 
mobile phone) whilst driving 
licensed vehicle 

6   

51  Smoking in licensed vehicle 
3   

52  Points awarded by Licensing Sub-
Committee where matters referred 
to them for decision. 

4-12   

53  Private hire vehicles stopped or 
waiting on a taxi rank 

3   

Page 179



24 
 

Glossary 
  

Licensing Policy – Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Reviewed June 2019 

 

 
Glossary 

 
“Authorised Officer” means any officer of the Council authorised in writing 
by the Council for the purpose of these conditions. 
 
“Hackney Carriage” has the same meaning as in the Town Police Clauses 
Act 1847. 
 
“Private Hire Vehicle” means a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat 
fewer than eight passengers, other than a Hackney Carriage or public service 
vehicle, which is provided for hire with the services of a Driver for the purpose 
of carrying passengers. 
 
“Taximeter” means any device for calculating the fare to be charged in 
respect of any journey in a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle by 
reference to the distance travelled or time elapsed since the start of the 
journey, or a combination of both. 
 
“the Act” means Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and 
the Town Police Clauses Act 1847. 
 
“the Council” means  Winchester City Council. 
 
“the Driver” means a person licensed to drive a Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire vehicle under Section 51 of the Act. 
 
“the Licence Holder” means the holder of the Hackney Carriage and/or 
Private Hire Driver’s or vehicle licence. 
 
“the Licensing Authority” means the licensing section of Winchester City 
Council. 
 
“the Operator” means the person(s) or company directors whom the Council 
has granted the Private Hire Operator’s Licence under Section 55 of the Act.  
 
“Winchester District” – the administrative area of Winchester City Council 
 
“Winchester Town” - the Five Town Wards plus Oliver’s Battery & Badger 
Farm, and The Worthys. 

Page 180



 
 Strategic Director: 

Resources 
City Offices 

Colebrook Street 

Winchester 

Hampshire 

SO23 9LJ 

  Tel:  01962 848 220 

Fax: 01962 848 472 

email ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 
website www.winchester.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

November 2019 
 
The Forward Plan is produced by the Council under the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. The 
purpose of the Plan is to give advance notice of Key Decisions to be made by the Cabinet,  
Cabinet Members or officers on its behalf.  This is to give both Members of the Council 
and the public the opportunity of making their views known at the earliest possible stage.  
 
This is the Forward Plan prepared for the period 1 - 30 November 2019 and will normally 
be replaced at the end of each calendar month.   
 
The Plan shows the Key Decisions likely to be taken within the above period.  Key 
Decisions are those which are financially significant or which have a significant impact.  
This has been decided, by the Council, to be decisions which involve income or 
expenditure over £250,000 or which will have a significant effect on people or 
organisations in two or more wards.  
 
The majority of decisions are taken by Cabinet, together with the individual Cabinet 
Members, where appropriate.  The membership of Cabinet and its meeting dates can be 
found via this link. Other decisions may be taken by Cabinet Members or Officers in 
accordance with the Officers Scheme of Delegation, as agreed by the Council (a list of 
Cabinet Members used in the Plan is set out overleaf). 
 
The Plan has been set out in the following sections: 
 

Section A – Cabinet   
 
Section B - Individual Cabinet Members 
 
Section C - Officer Decisions  
 

Anyone who wishes to make representations about any item included in the Plan should 
write to the officer listed in Column 5 of the Plan, at the above address.  Copies of 
documents listed in the Plan for submission to a decision taker are available for inspection 
on the Council’s website or by writing to the above address.  Where the document is a 
committee report, it will usually be available five days before the meeting.  Other 
documents relevant to the decision may also be submitted to the decision maker and are 
available on Council’s website or via email democracy@winchester.gov.uk or by writing to 
the above 
 

Page 181

Agenda Item 14

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk


Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 refers to the requirement to provide notice of an 
intention to hold a meeting in private, inclusive of a statement of reasons.  If you have any 
representations as to why the meeting should be held in private, then please contact the 
Council via democracy@winchester.gov.uk or by writing to the above address.  Please 
follow this link to definition of the paragraphs (Access to Information Procedure Rules, 
Part 4, page 32, para 10.4) detailing why a matter may be classed as exempt from 
publication under the Local Government Acts, and not available to the public. 
 
If you have any queries regarding the operation or content of the Forward Plan please 
contact David Blakemore (Democratic Services Manager) on 01962 848 217. 
 
Cllr Lucille Thompson 
 

 

Leader of the Council 3 October 2019 
 
 

Cabinet Members: Title 
 

 Cllr Lucille Thompson 
 

Leader & Cabinet Member for Communications & 
Transformation 
 

 Cllr Neil Cutler 
 

Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Finance & 
Risk 

 Cllr Lynda Murphy Environment 
 

 Cllr Jackie Porter Built Environment & Wellbeing 
 

 Cllr Kelsie Learney 
 

Housing & Asset Management 
 

 Cllr Malcolm Prince Sport, Leisure & Communities 
 

 Cllr Anne Weir Local Economy 
 

 
 
 

Page 182

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/get-asset?id=fAAxADgAMAA5AHwAfABUAHIAdQBlAHwAfAAwAHwA0
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/get-asset?id=fAAxADgAMAA5AHwAfABUAHIAdQBlAHwAfAAwAHwA0


 

 

 Item Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

Wards 
Affected 

Lead 
Officer 

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker 

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Cabinet 
Member or 
Officer 

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken 

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable) 

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 

private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number 

Section A 
Decisions made by Cabinet 

1   Land 
Transaction 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Housing 
and Asset 
Manage-
ment 
 

Expend-
iture > 
£250,000 

All 
Wards 

Kevin 
Warren 

Committee 
Report 

Cabinet Nov-19 tbc Part exempt 
3 

Section B 
Decisions made by individual Cabinet Members 

2   Highcliffe Area 
Traffic 
Regulation 
Order 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Environ-
ment 

No St 
Michael 

Andy 
Hickman 

Cabinet 
Member 
Decision 
Report 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Environ-
ment 
 

Nov-19 tbc Open 
 

3   Pest Control 
Fees & 
Charges 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Environ-
ment 

No All 
Wards 

Simon 
Finch/ 
Darren 
Lewis 

Cabinet 
Member 
Decision 
Report 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Environ-
ment 
 
 

Nov-19 tbc Open 
 

P
age 183



 

 Item Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

Wards 
Affected 

Lead 
Officer 

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker 

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Cabinet 
Member or 
Officer 

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken 

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable) 

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 

private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number 

4   Planning pre-
application 
fees & 
charges 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Built 
Environ-
ment and 
Wellbeing 

No All 
Wards 

Julie 
Pinnock 

Cabinet 
Member 
Decision 
Report 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Built 
Environ-
ment and 
Wellbeing 
 

tbc Nov-19 Open 
 

Section C 
Decisions made by Officers 

5   Treasury 
Management - 
decisions in 
accordance 
with the 
Council's 
approved 
strategy and 
policy 

Deputy 
Leader and 
Cabinet 
Member 
for Finance 
and Risk 

Expend-
iture > 
£250,000 

All 
Wards 

Hampsh
ire 
County 
Council 
(HCC) 
Finance 
Departm
ent on 
behalf of 
WCC 

Designated 
Working 
Papers 

Designated 
HCC 
Finance 
staff, daily 

tbc 30-Nov-19 Open 
 

P
age 184


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 September 2019
	8 Draft Council Plan 2020-25
	CAB3195 Appendix 1 Draft Council Plan for consultation

	9 Outcome Based Budget Challenge
	10 Station Approach - Purchaser Selection Process
	CAB3197 - APDX 1 - Station Approach Draft Assessment Paper 4

	11 River Park Leisure Centre - Future Use of Site
	CAB3190 Appendix 1 - North Walls Engagement Event March 2019 - Feedback
	CAB3190 Appendix 2 - River Park Leisure Centre site

	12 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Spending Programme
	CAB3194 Appendix A
	CAB3194 Appendix B Regulation changes 2019
	CAB3194 Appendix C CIL Allocations Advisory Panel 2019 Terms of Reference UPDATED 17 09 2019
	CAB3194 APDX D Winchester District Community Infrastructure Levy Informal Panel Meeting

	13 Adoption of Statement of Licensing Policy with respect to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles, Drivers and Private Hire Operators
	CAB3200 Appendix 1

	14 To note the future items for consideration by Cabinet as shown on the November 2019 Forward Plan.

